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COMMISSION ON INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS.

Los ANGELES, CAL,, Tucsday, September 8, 191,—10 a. m.

Present: Chairman Walsh, Commissioners Commons, Garretson, Weinstock,
and O’Connell. William O. Thompson, counsel.

Chairman WaLsH. You may proceed, Mr. Thompson. Mr. Garretson will
be lhere in a few moments,

Mr. THOMPSON. Gen, Otis, please take the stand.

TESTIMONY OF GEN. HARRISON GRAY OTIS.

Mr. THoMPSON. Please give us your name, business address, and your busi-
ness?

Gen. Orrs. H. G. Otis; business address, Times Building.

Mr. THoMPSON. You are the publisher of the Los Angeles Times?

Gen. Otis. Yes, sir.

Mr. THOMPSON. Are you the sole owner of the paper?

ten, Oris. No; I am not.

Mr. THoMPSON. You are interested as a stockholder?

Gen. Or1s. I am a majority owner.

Mr. THoMPSON. Majority owner?

Gen. Otis. Yes.

Mr. THompPsoN. How long have you heen publisher of the Los Angeles Times?

Gen, Or1s. Nearly a third of a century.

Mr. THoMPsON. And during that time have you had any agreements with
organizations of workingen?

Gen. Or1s. Yes; we have had agreements,

Mr. THoMPsoN. When first did you have agreements with the labor organiza-
tions, and what organizations were they with?

Gen. Ot1is. I came into the establishment in the year 1882, It was a very
small affair then—a very small newspaper—and it was a small town. We em-
ployed union men. We had not any very distinet agreements, or at least no
agreements, written agreements, with eny local, but we had union men and
paid the rates then prevailing.

Chairman WarsH. What date was that, please?

Gen. Otis. That was in 1882,

Mr. THoMPsoN. Well, at any time after that, General, did you have either a
written or verbal agreement with any labor organization?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes; we had a verbal agreement and we had a written agreement.
We had first a strike in the year 1890, and the union men walked out of the
establishment. We refused to yield to their demands, and after the strike we
employed nonunion men and have employed them since.

Mr, THoMPsON. But prior to that tlme, from 1882 to 1890-——

Gen. Ot1s. Yes.

Mr. THOMPSON. You dealt with the organizations?

Gen. O11s. Yes; we dealt with the organizations.

Mr. THoMPsoN. How long did the strike of 1S90 last, about?

Gen. O11s. Well, in a sense, it lasted one day.

Mr. THoMPsON. Well, what crafts then went ouf on strike?

Gen. Or1s. Pardon me; I didn't quite hear.

Mr. THoMPSON. What crafts, the compositors and the pressmen?

Gen, Otis. The strike was defeated, and a boycott was instantly instituted.

Mr. THOMPSON. Well, I mean w lmt workingmen went out on strike, tlie type-
setters and the pressmen"

Gen. Ot1s. No; the compositors—lmnd compositors. There were no machines
at that time. /
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5488 REPORT OF COMMISSION ON INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS.

Mr. THoMPSON. And did the other men continue to work at their employ-
ment; that is, the pressmen, stercotypers, and others?

Gen. OTtis. There were no stereotypers. Yes; the pressmen continued to
work

Mr THOMPSON. And you employed then other men {o take their places, and
the paper went on?

Gen. Ot118. Yes.

Mr, THoaPsoN. Issuing its editions?

sen. OTis. We never lost an issue. -

Mr. TrompsoN. From that time, from 1890 you have had no dealings with
organized labor as such?

Gen, Or1s. No; not in the composing room.

Mr, Tuoymrson, The scale of wages which existed and the hours which ex-
isted on your paper prior to 1890 were the union scale, were they?

Gen. OT1s. Yesg, sir; they were,

Mr. TroMPsoN. Since that time what have been the hours and what has been
the scale as compared to the union hours and the union scale, if you can tell us?

Gen. OT1is. Well, of course, in a long period of time like that there have been
some variations and changes. The rate for hand composition paid at the time
of the strike was 45 cents per thousand ems. After the strike I raised the rate
a little, to 46 cents. I will have to look back at the record to find out the day
rates for men employed by the day, hour, or week. Subsequently, in 1896, there
was an agreement aside from the piece scale; there was an agreement with cer-
tain day workmen—a graduated scale. There were three scales for those work-
ing, for this reason—that some of the men had been in our service a long time
and were old. They were efficient—they were capable and competent, but not
cfficient in the highest degree by reason of their age. We were adverse to dis-
missing these faithful men and accordingly offered them employment at a certain
rate per hour, day, and week, which they accepted willingly and signed an
agreement.

’\[r THoMrsoN. You say there were three seales you put into effect then?

yen. Ot1s. Yes, sir; three scales at that time,

Mr."THoMPSON., W ]10 were the other two with?

Gen., Otis. Well, the three scales were with the same class of men—com-
positors.

Mr, THoMPsON. That was a written agreement, if I understand you correctly?

Gen. OT11s. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoymprsoN. But it was not made with an organization of labor, but just
with these workmen, as workmen, in your plant"

Gen. Ot1s. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMPSON, Have you any agreement of that kind existing to-day with
the workmen in your plant as such?

Gen. OTtis. Yes, sir; we have.

Mr. TuodMPSON. Is the agreement in writing?

Gen. OT1s. Yes, sir.

Mr. THOMPsON, Will you be willing to furnish us with a copy of it?

Gen, Or1s. I will

Mr. TaoyMPsoN. Be very much pleased to have it.

Gen, Otrs. If you will give me a little time I will furnish it this afternoon.

('The data requested were later submitted and are printed as “ Otis exhibit.””)

Mr. THoMpsoN. The first agreement was made in 1896?

Gen. Ot18. Yes, sir; in 1896.

Mr. THomPsoN. That was the first written agreement with your own men,
How many agreements have you made since that time?

Gen. Otis. That was a specific agreement as to a lHimited class of men, as I
have explained. They were old men and were not capable of the highest
speed, consequently a special agreement was made with that class of men,
a small number—comparatively small number.

Mr. TaHoMPsON. About how many of them? .

Gen. Ot1s. T think about 20, I can furnish the exact list. I fortunately
found the list yesterday, or my foreman did.

Mr. THoMPSON. Be pleased to have it,

( See Otis exhibit.)

Mr. Trormrson. How long did that agreement exist, or did it have a term?

Gen. OTtis. It did not have any term. It existed some years, and then was
rencwed,
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Chairman Warsir. Find out from Gen. Otis if there was any agreement with
the other employees, and how many altogether.

Mr. THoapsox. General, did you have agreements with any of the other
employees—I mean written agreements now first?

Gen, Otis. I think not, but I will asecertain and let you know. This specific
agreement I have in mind, and following on your question, answering your
question—this agreement was made in 1896, which involved reduction of hours
from nine to eight, and an advance in rates, a very material advance in rates,
and that agreement exists to-day, so far as I am speaking now of hours and
days.

Mr. TmoypsoN. How many men does that agreement take in, and include?

Gen. OT1s. Tt takes in practically all the men who work by the hour and
day. The great body of our men are piece compositors, operate linotype ma-
chines. -

Mr. THoMPsON, Well, about how many men were engaged, you may state
that.

Gen. Ortis. Fifteen or twenty—meaning the second and third classes in
the list.

Mr. THOMPSON. Fifteen or twenty.

Gen. Or11s. I would like to say with regard to these specific facts, if you will
permit me, I would like to refer to the record, because I am anxious to give
you the exact information,

Chairman WaLsH. We would be much obliged if you would.

Mr. THoMPsoN. How many men have you working for you that are not
working under any written or verbal agreements other than an understanding
of what the wages and hours shall be?

Gen. Ot1s. Well, the main body of skilled and unskilled 1labor—some of the
former we have written agreements with.

Mr. THOMPsoN. How many people would they include?

Gen. Ot1s. Well, we had last year altogether in our service 660 men, first and
last. It would take a little inquiry and a little figuring to give you the num-
ber that we work on an unskilled basis and without contract.

Mr. TroMPsoN. Let me ask you then, General, specifically, are the pressmen
under any agreement with you of any kind?

Gen. Or1s. Yes; they are.

Mr, TaoMPsoN. Is it a written agreement?

Gen, Otis. I think not. No written agreement.

Mr. THOMPsON. Could you state, in a general way, the verbal agreement as
vou understand it, with the permission, of course, to correct 1t later, if you
find you desire to make any correction.

Gen. Ot1s. Yes. In employing men we come face to face, and the man says—
we find out what he is and what he can do, and he finds out whether he wants
to work for us, and we get together a good deal like two men trading horses.
And we say to him, “ What wages do you want?” Well, he wants so and so.
Well, we dicker with him, and we finally get together. -We may yield to him and
he may yield to us, but finally we get together, the rate is fixed, and we pay the
rate.

Mr. TrooympsoN. But this is an individual agreement, General, and not an
agreement with the body of pressmen?

Gen. Otis. No; not as a body. No, no; we don't do that,

Mr. TraoMpson. Have you any agreements with any other of the skilled men
in your plant as a body and not as individuals?

Gen. O11s. I will answer that in this way, in order to make it as fairly in-
telligent as I can. After the strike of 1890 we employed a body of organized
labor known as the Printers’ Protective Fraternity, and with them we made an
agreement. We got the original men from Kansas City, and there was an agree-
ment in regard to rates and hours, and so forth. And those men are still—
that organization is still in our employ.

Mr. TnompsoN. Have you a written agreement with them, General?

Gen. Ortis. Not as a body.

Mr. THoMPSON. Not as a body?

Gen, Oris. No. :

Alr. THoMPsoN. Have you any verbal agreement with them as a body and not
as individuals?

Gen. Ot1s. No; we deal with men individually. And we assured them in the
outset of protection. If a niaw has-a grievance he ¢omes to us direct.
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Mr. TaoypsoN. What rates of wages, General, do you now pay to the various
classes of skilled men who work for you?

Gen. Otis. We pay the linotype operators at the rate of 11} and 13 cents
per thousand ems, according to the size of the type. At that rate they make
in seven hours’ work of a night an average of five and a half to seven and a half
dollars a night. To week workers or day workers—hour workers properly, be-
cause I believe the hour should be the unit, not the day—we pay 53, 56, 62, and
75 cents per hour, respectively., Now, I will figure that out for the day by you.

Mr. TroMPSON. General, could you give us

Gen. Oris. The day is eight hours.

Mr. THoMmPpsoN. The day is eight hours?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes,

Mr, THOoMPSON. All through?

Gen. Or1s, It is eight hours for week men that do the hand composition—
the linotype composition is seven lhours as a rule, except in the later days of
the week, when the hours are increased.

Mr. THoMPsoN. What hours and what scale of wages do you have for the
pressmen, General?

Gen. Ot1is. I will give you that, because there are different grades of press-
men. :

Mr. Taompeson. That varies with the men?

Gen. Otis. Yes, sir.

Mr. TuoympsoN. Now, General, could you furnish us with a pay roll covering
the different classes of skilled mmen working for you, and giving us the hours
of work?

Gen. Or1s. Yes; I will.

(See Otis exhibit.)

Mr. THoatpsoN. You mentioned the fact that when the strike of 1830 was on
the union indulged in a boycott?

Gen. Otis. Yes.

Mr. TuoMpsoNn. Will you tell us——

Gen. OTis. Yes.

Mr. TuoMPpsoN (continuing). What they did in pursuit of that boycott?

Gen. Otis. Well, they instituted a boycott immediately after the strike failed,
which was the day they attempted it; that is, it failed as to the Times office.
It succeeded as to the other offices in the ecity—three others. DBut the boyecott
was instituted forthwith upon our advertisers, and as far as they could upon
our subscribers, and it was carried on for a very considerable time. It did
some damage, at first a good deal of damage; but little by little the merchants
recovered their nerve, asserted their manhood, and they recommenced to adver-
tise in the Times, and that class of patronage increased steadily, year after
year, until it is now what it is.

Mr. TaoatpsoN. General, could you tell us what means were used to carry
out the boycott?

Gen. Or1is. All the means that it was possible to invent to terrorize the mer-
chant. They boycotted his store and put tickets before it, circulated offensive
literature, threatening literature, and sent persons into the store, women par-
ticularly, to buy goods, have the goods wrapped up, and when the package was
ready for delivery the woman would say, “ By the way, do you advertise in the
Times?” “Yes.,” “ Well, I don’t want the goods,” and she would then throw
them back on the merchant. Things like that—those are only a few of the
incidents.

Mr. TaoMmPsoN. To go back for a moment, General, to your relations with
the men. When any of your men have a grievance, how do they bring it up; do
they take it up with you personally ?

Gen. Oris. They have a right to come to me personally, or to the manager
of their department. They come as individuals, if they choose, and sometimes
they come as committees.

Mr. THoMPsoN., There is no organization of your men of any kind that you
know of?

Gen. Or1s. Oh, yes.

Mr. THoMPSON. Among themselves.

Gen. Oris. I have already testified that it is the Printers’ Protective Ira-
ternity in full bloom.

Mr., THoMPSON., But that only relates to the compositors?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes.

Mr. THoMPSON. Is there any organization of therest of the men?
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Gen. Ot11s, No; there is not.

Mr. THoMPsoN. Now, when the compositors have a grievance to bring up,
does this organization that you have spoken of send a comrmittee to you, or
does the individual man who has the grievance come to you or your foreman
himself?

Gen. Otis. He comes individually, he himself, or his associates, if there are
a number of them, they appoint a committee.

Mr. ToompsoN. And when they appoint a committee, do you deal with the
committee as such?

Gen. Otis. Yes; we do.

Mr. THOMPSON. You recognize it?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMPsoN. When the committee brings a grievance up to you for adjust-
ment, who finally determines whether or not there is a grievance and what
shall be done in the matter?

Gen. Otis. We discuss it pro and con. If the men make out a fairly good
case and have a real grievance, we try to redress it; we do redress it. If the
men haven’t a good case, we try to talk them off their feet, and if they yield,
as they do instead of striking, they go back to their work. That is the end
of It. .

Mr. THoMPsoN. Well, General, who decides as to whether they have a good
case or whether they have no grievance at all; how is that decided?

Gen. O11s. Well, if we are sure they have not a good case, we decide it.

Mr, THoMPSON. You decide it?

Gen. Otis. And we deny the application. [Laughter.]

Chairman WaLSH. One minute. Say, ladies and gentlemen, one minute; we
must have perfect order, and if there Is any demonstration of feeling of any
kind, why, we will have to ask the lady or gentleman that expresses it to retire.
You can readily see that there will be varying opinions expressed here, some
popular and some unpopular with certaln portions of the audlence, and we have
discovered that we must have perfect order; please, no expression of feeling
one way or the other with the witnesses.

Gen. Oris. Mr. Chairman, will you permit me to say that I am not seeking
any popularity.

Chairman WavrsH. I understand.

Gen. Ot1s. Pursuing that subject a little further to make it clear: You asked
me a pertinent question—a polnted question, what we do if we can’t get to-
gether. We yield, if it is a good case, to the demands and pay the rate, if it
is a question of rate or hours or whatever comes along. If it is not a good
case, we do not yield. If a workman thinks he Is wronged and does not
choose to remain in our service, he quits. He don’t strike and don’t boycott ;
don’t try to create a disturbance to our injury or engage in a conspiracy for
our injury. He quietly leaves our service to seek a better place. That thing
very rarely occurs, very rarely.

Mr. THompsoN. Without lmpugning your wisdom, General, take a body of
600 men working for the one employer, do you believe that the presentation of
grievances singly or In the way you mention safeguards the interest of the
worker where the declsion finally must be left to the employer as to whether
his grievance Is good or not?

Gen. Ortis. You mean that his interests may not be safeguarded?

Mr. THoMPsON. Yes; where the decislon iIs finally left to the employer in each
case?

Gen. Oris. Well, the decision is left to each side, isn’t it? In other words,
if the workman feels that he can not accept the wages, the treatment, the
hours, he does not continue in our employ. Of his own volltion he leaves our
employ.

Mr. THoMPsoN. General, take that case which you first mentioned in your
establishment. Is the workman better off there in the matter of the adjust-
ment of grievances than the workman In an establishment where there is a
board of arbitration or a board to adjust the grievances, where the decision
is left to a third party, for instance?

Gen. Ot1s. Our workmen are unquestionably better off than in any rival
establishiment. We can demonstrate that out of their own mouths, if needs be.

Mr. THoMPsoN. You think your system is better than any system of arbi-
tration?

Gen. Otis. Unquestionablgii/7e M (

Mr. THOMPSON. Or any commniittee adjustment? .
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Gen. Or11s. Unquestionably, because it is based upon mutual eonfidence and
respect, toleration and understandings, and the individual negotiutions with
the men.

Chairman WaLsH. Just a little louder, please. It is very difficult to hear
here.

Mr. THoMPSON. General, in the present running of a manufacturing estab-
lishment, we will say a printing office, they generally run them for profit, do
they not, that is, profit is the idea back of the business enterprise?

Gen. Ot18. It certainly should be, if the business is to be kept up.

Mr. THoMPsON. And the manufacturer would seek to buy his raw material
and purchase his labor as cheaply as he could?

Gen. Otis. He should. Not only has he a right, but he should do it, if a
sensible business man, because the great object is to make the business pay out
of its own resources, in order that the business may be successful, in order that
the workmen may be paid, in order that the best possible wages that the busi-
ness will permit shall be paid. A losing business is a delusion.

Mr. THoMPsoN. General, if that is true of business, do you think that the
workman working and handling his own case individually has the same oppor-
tunity to make a fair bargain with the employer that he would have it he
were to join himself with an organization and work collectively ?

Chairman WarLsH. It was suggested here by some of the commissioners
that Gen. Otis state the facts before the commission, the things that have oc-
curred in his establishment, and which, as he thinke, work better than the
situation in other establishments. So we do not care for any further informa-
tion. He has stated the facts as to how he is conducting his business.

Gen. Oris. I will prove it clearly beyond peradventure, Mr. Chairman, and
will give you the specific figures.

Mr. TaoMPsON. I have no desire to pursue it any further. General, I under-
stand you have a statement in reference to the questions submitted to you in
writing by the commission.

Gen. Otis. Yes. 1 will have a statement. It is not finished, but it prohably
will be to-day.

Mr. TaompsoN. I understood you had a statement you wanted to present to
the commission.

Chairman WarsH. May I say a word to Gen. Otis, Mr. Thompson? Gen-
eral, I wish that you would give us a statement as specifically as possible
within the next day or two, beginning with the year 1890; what your wage
scale was, the number of employees, and how your business either progressed
or retrograded down to the present day. Any organizations that you have
had in your office during that time, and your general specific industrial situation.

Now, then, if you will kindly go to the questions that were asked you, because
we have a desire to get your general opinions upon these matters, especially as
you gather from the whole local situation what you consider industrial freedom.

Gen. Otis. I do not think I have the copy of the list of questions, although
I have seen it.

Mr., THoMmpsoN. I may be misinformed.

Chairman WatrsH. It was intended that you should have one.

Mr. THoMPsoN, If you will allow me—we will see that you get a copy of it.

Gen. Otrs. I have my statement, but it is not quite finished. It covers, I be-
lieve, all those questions. I can add to it the answers to the questions aeccord-
ing to the instructions of the chairman just given me.

Chairman WarsH. General, I will give you a list of these questions. Will
you follow them through and elaborate on them? Give us your full informa-
tion, freely expressed.

Gen. Or1s. You mean now?

Chairman WarsH. Now; yes, sir. It was intended you should have had a
copy of that. I will say to the staff I wish that they would see that these
questions are in the hands of all the witnesses beyond any question; have
two of them.

Mr. TrHoMmpsoN. I have understood these were all circulated among all the
witnesses. It has been so reported to me.

Gen. Or1s. Mr. Chairman, how does the San Fernando Valley figure in this
inquiry ?

Chairman Wavrsm. If there is anything there that you do not think figures
in the inquiry, you may just omit it.

Gen. Oris. There is nothing I want to conceal about it, Mr. Chairman.
I am acquainted with what s known ‘as the Suburban Homes Co. project in
the San Fernando Valley, but it is very remote from this inquiry.
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Chairman WaLsH. Very good; you may omit that then.

Mr. Trompson. I understand that Gen. Otis has a written statement in
regard to certain questions put to him by the commission. I understand he
simply hasn’t got it typed yet.

Gen. Otis. It is nearly finished, and I think I will have it this afternoon.
Then I will pass on. * First. What is industrial freedom?” 1 have elaborated
that under my own understanding of the question.

“ A brief account of your general relations with the labor unions and fight
for the open shop.” Yes; I will answer that.

“In what industries and locations are industrial conditions considered to re-
quire improvement?” Yes, sir; I will answer that by saying that organized
labor, the closed shop, coupled with violence and restriction, needs improve-
ment, needs a change.

Mr. TraompsoN. General, could you talk just a little louder? The commis-
sioners can’t hear you.

Gen. Ot1s. Certainly I will,

Mr. TuoxpsoN. It is a noisy hall, and we have to speak a little loud on
that account.

Gen. O718. I have just read the third question. *“In what industries and
localities are industrial conditions considered to require improvement?” 1
will answer that.

¢ Fourth. By what means can these conditions be improved?” I will answer
that by saying the open shop, nonunion conditions.

“ Fourth. In what conditions and localities are industrial conditions con-
sidered to be most satisfactory?” I don’t know whether I can give a very clear-
cut answer to that. I can answer it very specifically as to our case.

“ Fifth. What is the proper relationship that should exist between employer
and employee?’ Yes; I will answer that very clearly.

¢ Sixth. Industrial conditions and public welfare and the right and power of
the community to deal therewith.” Yes; I can answer that. I have very clear
and well-fixed ideas on that subject.

Mr. THoMPSON. Mr, Chairman, that is all T have to ask the witness.

Chairman WarsH. Will you please return, Gen. Otis, at 2 o’clock sharp, can
you, with your written statement, so that we can defer asking you questions
until that time?

Gen. Ot1s. I think I can have everything except possibly an answer to one or
two of these questions, and I may be able to get them,

Chairman WaLsH. Very good, then. Then we will expect you at 2 o’clock, so
that we may do it all at once.

Call your next,

Mr. THoMmPsoN., Mr. Zeehandelaar.

TESTIMONY OF MR, F. J. ZEEHANDELAAR.

Mr. THoMPSoN. Will you give us your name?

Mr. ZEEHANDEL AAE., My name is I, J. Zeehandelaar.

Mr. THOMPSON. Your business and address?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. 228 Wilcox Building.

Mr. THoMPsoN. And your business?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Secretary of the merchants and manufacturers’ asso-
ciation.

Mr. THoMPpsoN. Of what territory or district does that assoctation have juris-
diction?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Purely local.

Mr. THOMPSON. The city of Los Angeles?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. THOMPSON, How long has it been formed?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. Up to 1894 there were two distinct organizations, the
merchants’ association and the manufacturers’ association, and at that time
both organizations were consolidated as the merchants and manufacturers’ asso-
ciation and as such incorporated.

AMr. THoMPSON. Has your association any relation with other associations in
this State and elsewhere? .

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The only organization that we are a member of is the
California Employers’ Federation that was or"ani7e(1 two years ago prior to the
1zeeting of the legislature.

Mr. THOMPSON. What sort of or gamzatlon is the latter?
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. It has, I believe, a membership of some twenty-four or five
crganizations with headquarters in San Francisco, purely for the purpose of
watching State legislation in the interest of the employing classes.

Mr. THOMPSON. Has that latter assoclation got a constitution and by-laws?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR, Yes, sir.

Mr. THOMPsON. Have you a copy of them?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir.

Mr. THOMPSON. Who are the officers, can you tell us?

Mr. ZEEBRANDELAAR. I could not tell you.

Mr. TaoMPsoN. Could you find out and let us know later on?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I could; yes, sir,

Mr. TrOMPSON. Pleased to have you do it

(A pamphlet entitled “Californla Employers’ Federtalon, Constitution, and
By-Laws, Revised September 3, 1914,” in printed form, was later submitted.)

Mr. TrEOMPsON. What relations, if any, have you got with the Merchants and
Manufacturers’ Association of San Franciseo?

Mr, ZEEIIANDELAAR, None at all.

Mr. THoarpsoN. How about the association at Stockton?

Mr. Z¥EHANDELAAR, None at all.

Mr. THoMmPsoN. When you say you haven’t any relations, you mean you
haven't any agreement of any kind or character?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; I mean just what I say—no relations.

Mr, TroxpsoN. Do you ever work in harmony with any of these associations,
or have you in the past?

Mr. ZeeHaNDELAAR. We haven’t been asked to work in harmony with any
organization except when the Stockton organization wired me to come up there
and assist them in their fight, and I declined to go, and they asked to have a
number of mechanics sent there, which I declined to do. In other words, we
have been absolutely free from any entanglement of any character with the
conditions in Stoeckton.

Mr. THoMmPsON. You sent no funds there?

Mr. ZeEnmANDELAAR. No, sir; none at all; baven't been asked to send funds.

Mr. THoMPsON. Do you know whether any of your members sent funds as
individuals?

Mr. ZeEnANDELAAR. That I don’t know.

Mr. THoMPsoN, How large an organization is your organization to-day?

Mr. ZeEHANDELAAR. Between 700 and 750 or 760 ; something like that.

Mr. TrOMPSON, What proportion of the business men, if you know, eligible
to membership in your association, belong? In round numbers, the per cent,
if you can give it?

Mr. ZELHANDELAAR, You mean how many eligibles?

Mr. TuomrsoN. Do 50 per cent of the business men who are eligible to mein-
bership belong?

Mr. ZEruANDELAAR. More than that. Our association is purely what the
name implies, merchants and manufaecturers, and our membership consists of
firms and not individuals, unless the man does business as an individual.

Mr. THoamPsoN. About what proportion of the merchants and manufacturers
of this city belong to your organization?

Mr. ZEEEANDELAAR. I should say 80 per cent—S85 per cent.

Mr. TuompsoN, What dues do they pay?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. One dollar a month.

Mr. THOMPSON. Any initiation fee?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, No, sir.

Mr. THoMmPsoN. Has your organization a constitution and by-laws?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMPSON. Would you furnish the commission with a copy?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; I have it here.

(The constitution and by-laws referred to is printed as “ Zeehandelaar Ix-
hibit No. 1.”)

Mr. THOMPSON. How long have you been conneeted with the association?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Seventeen years on the 1st of August this year.

Mr. THompPsoN. What was the first labor matter that the association took a
stand in, if you can remember?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. You mean durlng my incumbency, or prior to that?

Mr. THoMpsoN. Prior, if you know. The first labor problems.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I could not give you full information prior to my con-
nection with the associgition,-but /to the best,of any knowledge during my in-

-
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cumbeney it was brought about by—the labor condition was forced upon us
through circumstances, If you will read our constitution and by-laws, they do
not provide for the work in connection with the industrial conditions. This
was forced upon us by the strike, or boycott, rather, in 1899 or 1900, when the
American Federation of Labor sent to Los Angeles Arthur A. Hay, as their
representative to condnet a boycott against the advertisers of the Times. Our
members had at that time realized they had no fight—no controversy with
either organized labor or with the Times, and they decided they would remain
peutral, and under those conditions an industrial controversy was forced
upon us.

Mr. THoMmPsoN. What specific action did your organization take at that time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. We had a meeting of all the advertisers, and they signed
a statement that was presented to the county council of labor, as well as to the
Times, in which they declared they did not have any controversy with either
party and that they decided to remain neutral.

Mr, TuompsoN. What was the next industrial or labor matter in which your
association took a hand?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The next was the labor council then declared a boycott
on A. Hamburger & Sons, as the result of their refusal to withdraw advertising
from the Times,

Mr. THoMPSON. That is a dry-goods house?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yeg, sir; a department store. And we assisted them
morally and every way we possibly could to maintain their freedom and in-
dependence,

Mr. TroMPsON. Can you give us any of the ways in which you gave assist-
ance?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR. Well, T could not enumerate. We created a feeling
among our people that a boycott of that character, “‘where the third party was
absolutely innocent, was contrary to the law and every principle of justice and
right, to place a boycott on a store simply because they did not want to become

party to the controversy between the employer and employee, or organized
labor.

Mr. THOMPSON. I mean what means did you take? Were there any specific
nmeans other than general moral support?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I can better tell you what means were taken by the
unions to inflict injury on their business than the means we took to offset it.

Mr. TuHoMPsoN, Tell us what the unions did at that time in pursuance of
their boycott.

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR. There were inflammatory and false statements circulated
by handbills, by publication in the labor press, by picketing. I remember one
instance where balloons were sent up, and flyleaves were distributed, carica-
tures made, and matters of that kind. Of course our efforts to negative the
assaults that were made by the labor unions were simply in a lawful and
peaceful way by telling the truth and creating a feeling among the public at
large that any attempt of that kind was un-American and unjust.

Mr. THoMPsoN. How long did the boycott of that store exist, if you know?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Pretty nearly a year.

Mr. THoMPsoN. What was the next matter in which your association took
part?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. I think the next one was the teamsters’ strike.

Chairman WarsH. One minute. I wish you would have the witness detail
the means that they took to overcome this.

Mr. THoMmMPsoN. I have asked him twice.

Chairman WarsH. You have stated what the unions did, and now please
state what you did to overcome that.

Mr. ZEEHANDELLAR., We took no measures except an educational campaign.

Chairman WarsH. In what way?

Mr. ZeenANDELAAR. Through the independent newspapers and through cir-
eculars addressed to our members,

Chairman WavrLsH. By word of mouth also? Did you have committees call at
the various places and do work of that sort?

Mr. ZrEHANDELAAR. No, sir., This was a retail store that depended on the
general publie for its business. We tried to reach the public and not so much
our menibers. Our members realized the motives.

Chairman WarsH. Did you do it qn\'\\a\ except by printed propaganda?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, siv,

Chairman WarsH. Did you contr 1bute funds to the Hambulger store?
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Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir.

Chairman WiALsH. Have you stated all the means you took?

Mr. ZreHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; a general edueational campaign; that is the
only way I can deseribe it.

.\ir. "T11oMPSoN. You may go on and state the next matter in which you took
part. 3 |

Mr, ZeraANDELAAR. I believe it was the teamsters’ strike.

Mr, Tuoarsox. Tell us what you did in that strike.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. In that strike we had several conferences

Chairman Warsx. While we are on that point let’s see how Hamburger
came out. What was the result?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, The result is that they oceupy now practically the
largest store in the city.

Chairman WaLsH. The boycott was ineffective?

Mr. Zreganprrasr. Ineffective in every possible way.

Chairman WaALsH. Were any legal proceedings instituted at that time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. No injunction or anything of that kind?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. We never applied for an injunection; no, sir.

Chairman WAvLsH. Any arrests made?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. I think not; that was before we had an antipicketing
ordinance. i

Mr. TraomprsoN. You may go ahead and tell us about the teamsters’ strike
Nnow,

Mr. ZrEHANDELAAR. If T remember correctly we had several conferences with
the representatives of the teamsters’ union. We demand open-shop condi-
tions. I will say here that

Mr. THOMPSON. Tell us first about the teamsters’ strike, Were all the teain-
sters of the city on strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, Sir.

Mr. THOMPSON. In all classes of husiness?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; only the truck drivers.

Mr, THoMPSON. The truck drivers?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir. I believe they were largely unionized—not so
much the teamsters in the retail business or the ordinary wagon drivers, and
we simply carried out the policy of demanding the open shop. After 10 days,
I believe—shortly after the strike was declared it was called off.

Mr. THoxMPsON. What was the cause of the strike? What demand was made
by the union, or were demands made by the union?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Yes, sir; for a closed shop. I don’t believe auny working
conditions were at all a factor in the controversy.

Mr. THOMPSON. Was this closed-shop demand the only demand made at the
time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. As T say, I think it was.

Mr. TroampsoN. Was that demand made in writing?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; it was made in writing. Not to us, but to the
individual employers that the agreement was presented to them.

Mr. THoxmPsoN. What employers, if you remember, at that time were en-
gaged in that strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They were the Pioneer Truck Co,, the Citizens’ Truck
Co., I think the Merchants’ Truck Co. I can’t remember all of them. There
were only three or four firms.

Mr. THoMPSON. When the strike was called by the union for a closed shop,
what specifically did your association do? Was it ealled upon by the truck
firms for assistance? -

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Mr. THOMPSON. Then what kind of assistance did they ask for, and what kind
of assistance did you give?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They asked for the protection of the lives and of their
employees and their property, and that we gave them.

Mr. THoarsox. In what form did you give them protection for the lives
of their employees and their property?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. We called upon the police to do their duty, to see that
men were protected who were driving the teams, and that their wagons that
were engaged in delivering goods were not interfered with.

Mr. TuomprsoN., You sent a cgmmittee to the mayor, did you?
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; we did not have fo appoint a committee for
that. We simply called up the chief of police and told him personally of the
conditions or called up the mayor.

Mr. THoMPsON. And asked for protection and he gave it, and you got it in
that case?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes, sir; and we employed also some deputy sheriffs to
follow the teams so that no obstruction could be made in the delivery of goods.

Mr. TrodpPsoN. What was the reason for calling in yourn own—or rather
paying deputy sheriffs, who, I take it, were additional men put on for that
purpose?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. TroMmpsoN. What was the reason for employing them, if the police were
doing their duty?

Mr. ZeepanDpeELAAR. I will answer that questiotn with an illustration, in one
case where a truck was proceeding on the public street and an obstruction was
place in front of that truck, and while efforts were being made to continue
the truck on its way, an attempt was made to take out the bolts of the wheels.
Yur special deputy sheriffs were following the team, and, of course, stopped
that, That can not be done by policemen, of course, as the police can not
follow each individual truck or vehicle.

Mr. THoMpsoN. Did you ask that the police follow each individual truck?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, No. We asked them in a general way, but left the pro-
tection to the judgment of the police department.

Mr. TuaompsoN. Since that timme, have you had any strike here m which the
policemen did give protection to specific trucks or places?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Mr. THoMPsON. But you did not ask for it at that time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. But that was in the metal strike that commenced, I
believe, on the first of June, 1910.

Mr. THoMPsON, You say that strike ended in June—that is, the teamsters’
strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Oh, yes; it was just two weeks.

Mr. THoMPsoN. What further action, if any, did your organization take in
that strike than what you have named?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. We tried to show the representatives of organized labor
that their attitude in that case, as well as in others, was neither to their
interest nor to the interest of the general publie, or the welfare of this com-
munity.

Mr. TuompsoN. Did you do that by means of conferences with the union
leaders?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMPsON. Well, just the leaders of the teamsters or the leaders of
unions generally here in the city?

Mr. ZrEHANDELAAR. No; that was a specific committee of the teamsters’
union in that case.

Mr. TuaoMpsoN. Did you assist the firms in getting nonunion men at that
time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; they got them on their own hook.

Mr. TrmompsoN. Did you assist the firms by any funds of any character dur-
ing that strike;

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Not for their own personal use; no. We did pay—-

Mr. TaoMprsoxn, Well, for what use did you furnish funds?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR., We did pay for the protection, extra protection.

Mr. Tuompsox. Was that the beginning of the open-shop policy of your asso-
ciation here?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I can noly answer that in this way: There is a strong
sentiment in this community that the open shop is the greatest asset we have
in our prosperity and our development. The open shop——

Mr. THoMPsoN. I will give you a chance on that later on. Just now I
would like to ask you about the specifie facts.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Mr. THoMPsON. Then you will have an opportunity to make a statement
later on. When was the next trouble?

Chairman WarsH. Was that the beginning of the contest over the open shop,
Mr. Zeehandelaar?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The sentiment for, the open shep, Mr. Chairman, mani-
fested itself at the time of the attempted boycott.

38819°—S. Doc. 415, 64-1—vol 6——27
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- Mr. TuoMPsoN. Whel was the next trcuble of an industrial character that
you took part in?

Mr. UEEHANDELAAR. I think it was the teamsters’ strike in 1910.

Mr. TuaompsoN. 1910. What was the nature of that strike?

Mr. ZeeaANDELAAR. The metal strike, T guess, not the teamsters.

Mr. THoMPsoN. The metal strike—and did you take part in any journeymen
tailors’ strike at that time? .

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. What?

Mr. THOMPsON. The journeymen tailors?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Mr. TaHomMPsoN. What was that strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. That was a demand for the closed shop and a scale of
wages on piecework.

Mr. TuHoMPsoN. Well, how many people did it include; how many firms,
about?

Mr. ZEXHANDELAAR. Oh, I don’t know.

Mr. THomMPsoN. About how many men?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Probably practically involved every first-class merchant
tailor in the city.

Mr. TroamrsoN. When was that strike; what year?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think that was prior to 1910.

Mr. TroMmpsox. Well, what did your association do at that time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. We went along the same lines that we conducted the
other strikes. >

Mr. THoMPsoN. I see. You employed special deputy sheriffs?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes; in some cases,

Mr. TrHoMmpsoN. Did you have any trouble in getting them?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. In cases where the rights of the individual were inter-
fered with.

Mr. TaompsoN. But during that strike you employed special deputy sheriffs;
did you or did you not?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR._I think in some cases, yes.

Mr. THOMPSON. And your association paid for them?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMmPsoN. Did you have any trouble at that time in getting the sherift
to employ these special men?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; none at all.

Mr. THOMPSON. Did your association make any demand on the chief of police
or the mayor for protection?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think so.

Mr. TroMprsoxn. Was that protection granted?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. It is always granted; yes, sir.

Mr. TroMPsoN. Well, what was the reason then for employing special men
and paying them out of the funds of your association?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR. Because the rights of the individuals were interfered
with ; pickets standing in front, not only preventing the workmen free egress
from the shops, but even insulting the public who went to the shops to transact
their business.

Mr. TroMmPsoN., Well, did you call the attention of the chief of police to that
condition?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Most decidedly.

Mr. THOMPSsON. And did he give you the protection then?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. THOMPsON. Well, then, why did you employ these special men?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Because when you have a policeman in uniform, the
pickets are generally very careful not to make any overt act, and when you
have deputy sheriffs in citizens’ clothes, they don’t know that they are peace
officers.

Mr. THOMPsoN., Well, there is a detective department of the city, is there
not? 7

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes; but that is limited.

Mr. THOMPSON. And they are plain-clothes men?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. THoMPsON. And they could do the same work identically?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. But they can’t be spared. They are limited in number.

Mr. THoMPsON. What other help did you give the merchant tailors at that
time? B . W gt -
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They sent one of their members to the East to get tailors
to take the places of the strikers, and we paid that expense.

Mr. THompsoN. The expense of sending those people East and bringing the
people West?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Mr. TroMPsoN. How many people did you bring into the city at that time?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. I am not sure. I eould not tell you; probably 40 or 50.

Myr. THOMPSON. Do you know whether the men that were brought to the
city at that time were notified that they were going to take the places of
strikers?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Mr. THOMPSON. They were?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Yes, Sir.

Mr. THoapsoN. What was the next labor matter that your assoclatmn took
an interest in—a part in?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. I think the brewery strike.

Mr. TuomrsoN. Was that prior to the metal trades strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Sir?

Mr. TrnompsoN. Was that prior to the metal trades strike?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR. I think it was. I think that started on the 18th of May,
1910. Yes.

Mr. THoMPsoN. Well, what was the brewery strike, who went out on strike
in the breweries, all of the men?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think practically all of the men; yes.

Mr. TromprsoN, And what did your association do at that time?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. On the same lines as I have outlined in previous

Mr. TaHompsoN, Well, then, tell us about the metal trades strike.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, now, the details of that strike can be related muech
better by Mr. Fred I.. Baker, president of the Baker Iron Works, because he is
more familiar with the details of that than I am.

Mr. THoMPsoN. Did your association at that time give the same assistance
and in the same way as you have mentioned in regard to the other strikes?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Not by furnishing money to bring men here, And I
do not think—JI am satisfied we have not been asked to give any financial
assistance to any of the individuals.

Mr. TuoMpPsoN. What other labor matter has your association taken part in
since 19107

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think we only had one more strike. Well, we had the
printers’ strike, and we had the building trades strike. That was the last
we had, I believe, two years ago, and that was declared off in 10 days.

Mr. TuompsoN. Has your association taken the same part in that strike as
it has taken in the others?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No. We had practically very little to do in the building
trades strike. I do not think we took any part in it at all.

Mr. THOMPSON., How are the members of your assoclation brought in; what
methods are used in order to get merchants and manufacturers here to become
members of your association?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Simply ask them to join.

Mr. THoMPsoN., And if they do not join?

Mr. ZErHANDELAAR. That is their personal privilege,

Mr. THoMPsoN. No other action taken?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Absolutely not.

Mr. THoMPSON. There is no pressure brought of any kind?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. None whatever. If a man does not want to become a
member of the association, he does not have to.

Mr. THoMPSON. Are banks members of your association?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, Sir.

Mr. THoMPSON., Has pressure ever been used through banks to cause mer-
chants or manufacturers to join your association?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. None whatever. We depend on our membership for
the benefit that we do them, in a general way, In the interest of this com-
munity. We are not, in the sense that this commission has been made to under-
stand, an employers’ association. As I testified, our association was in active
operation long before the industrial question was forced upon us. We are,
broadly speaking—our association is—endeavoring to promote the welfare and
development of the commergial and industrial interests and of the city in gen-
eral. We undertake a great many things that have absolutely no connection
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with labor matters, At the present time, for instance, we are engaged in a
campaign in this county against the prohibition menace. We have inaugurated
a fiesta. We have made them famous throughout this country. We have been
champions for home industry; have held expositions in connection with it, and
those general lines for the promotion of the city have been our main work. This
industrial proposition is simply a side issue, and we only take hold of it when
occasion demands.

Mr. THOMPSON. How large a force does your association employ in its office?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. A stenographer, besides myself.

Mr. THoMPSON. Are there any other employers’ associations in the eity?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think so; yes, sir.

Mr. THoyprsoN. Could you name them?

Mr. ZEEBHANDELAAR. Yes; the founders employers’ association, the mill owners’
association, and, I think, the builders’ exchange. I think those three are the
only ones that come to my mind now.

Mr. THoMPSON, Are those associations in any way affiliated with your body?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No.

Mr. THOMPSON., Do they work in harmony with you on these labor matters?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Mr. THoMPsoN. Do they work in harmony with you? Does your assoelation
keep any list of employees of any kind?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, Sir.

Mr. TroMPsoN., Do you have any names of men who can be hired either as
deputy sheriffs or as men to put in factories and places to work in cases of
strike?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir. I have no list of any employees in my office and
rever have had. .

Mr, THOMPSON. Do you know whether any of these other associations—are
you connected with them, you yourself, personally?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, No; they act independently.

Mr, THOMPSON. Do you know of your own knowledge whether they have any
such lists or not?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; not of my own knowledge.

Mr. THOMPSON. When your association wants men in case of a strike to take
the places of deputy sheriffs where do you employ them and how do you get
them?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Employment offices.

Mr. THoMPsSON, Take any man that comes along and hire him as a special
officer?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No; I don’t hire them. I thought that I made that plain.

Mr. THOMPSON. NO.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I don’t hire a single man. If the teamster wants work,
if they have a strike, and he goes to the Pioneer Truck Co.

Mr. THOMPSON. I wasn’t asking that question. I was asking this question:
You have stated that during the strikes which have occurred here——

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Mr. THOMPSON (continuing). You have employed and paid for special deputy
sheriffs?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Mr. THOMPSON. Who have assisted the police?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Mr. THOMPSON, From where do you draw the supply of men to be used as
deputy sheriffs?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. FFrom the sheriff’s office.

Mr. TaoymrsoN. The sheriff indicates the men?

My, ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Mr. THoMPSON. You have nothing to do with that?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; except that he sends them up and swears them
in as deputy sheriffs, and we pay him.

Mr. TaomrsoN. You pay him?

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes. *

Mr. THoMPSON. Does your association or does any association here, so far
as you know, give any supervision to the selection of such deputy sheriffs,
special deputy sheriffs?

Mr. ZEEEANDELAAR. No; I have troubles of my own enough to keep me from
interfering with the wokavs _of any other mmunzation, Mr. Thompson. I
stick to my last,
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Mr. THoMPSON. In one of your reports this language oceurs, speaking of your
ussociation: “An organization thus composed of merchants, manufacturers,
and business men will most fully represent the interests of the community at
large.”

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Mr.; Trnoypesox. Upon what basis do you make that statement?

‘Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Do you mean to imply in that question that we omit the
working classes?

Mr. THoMPSON. I simply want to understand it, because it is apparent that
the working classes are omitted, specifically as such, and I am simply asking
you to give your statement of that.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I want to say this, that the open shop in Ios Angeles is
neither an experiment nor a theory. Our faith in the open shop in this com-
munity is so strong that we absolutely are sure that our prosperity, our develop-
ment for the last 10 or 15 years is based upon that one factor. So that what-
ever is of benefit to the employer classes must be a direct benefit to the em-
ployees or the working classes.

And if you will permit me, I am prepared to substantiate that statement by
figures.

Mr. THoMPsoN. I would like to have you make your &tatement on that point.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes. If you desire, I will do it now.

Mr. THoMPSON. Go right ahead.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, I want to submit to the commission first a book of views
of different sections of the city, showing the homes owned by the working
classes. I believe we are unique in this city and that a majority of the wage
earners, or at least a vast proportion, own their own homes; and that is a
comhtlon typical to L.os Angeles. I do not want to say that ‘1“ are owned by
the wage earners, but the majority. On behalf of our association I would
strongly urge the commission to take a ride in the auto we will furnish, or as
many as you want, to look for yourself at the character of the homes that are
occupied at the present time, and have been for years past, by the wage *
earners who own their homnes. Shall I pass it up?

Chairman WaLsH. Hand it to the stenographer.

(The views are not printed.)

Mr. ZeEHANDELAAR. In addition I want to submit, to further substantiate the
fact of our prosperity, the savings banks’ statement showing that from July
1, 1914, the total amount of deposits were $1035,229,867.41 deposited in the sav-
ings banks. That the number of depositors was 257,769. Eighty per cent of
those depositors belong to the wage earners, making an average amount of
deposits of $108, and inasmuch as our population—men, women, and children—
is estimated at the present time at 500,000, we make the remarkable showing
of over one-half of the population as depositors in our savings banks, and that
each depositor has an average of $408, in addition to the home that they own.
Our bank clearings—I give you & comparative statement from 1904 to 1913.
In 1904 the amount of clearings of banks sho\\ ed that year $345,343,956. In
1913, $1,211,168,989.

Our building permits: In 1904 there were issued 7,064 permits to the value
of $13,409,062. In 1913, 16,442 permits, aggregating $31,641,921.

Our post office receipts: In 1904 they were $600,444. In 1913, $2,114,049.

Lastly, our population in 1904, was 175,000 in the city, and 275,000 in the
county. Now it is 550,000 in the city, and 780,000 in the county.

That in a general way, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, shows the conditions
existing at the present time in Los Angeles. The enormous growth in wealth
and in population you will see.

Now, we maintain that a showing as we have made here, and that can be
verified as far as figures are concerned, can not be made at the expense of or
to the exclusion of one class. That if the growth and development of Los
Angeles has been as it is, then all classes must participate in it. That has been
brought about, as we contend and we show you, through open-shop conditions.

Mr. TaHoarpsoN. Referring again to that statement, Mr. Zeehandelaar.

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes.

Mr. THoMPsoN. It would appear from that and from your statements that
the interests of the working class as such must and can be well represented
and properly represented by just the merchants, manufacturers, and business
men. { s

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Yes, ‘sir.

Mr. TioyMpsoN, And the exhibit shows it?
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Mr. THoamPsoN. You have said that the open shop, in your opinion, is the
leading cause of the growth and development of this community ?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes. ”

Mr. THoaPrsoN. I would like to ask you to what extent you place the climatic
conditions, what has been the effect in your opinion of the climati¢ conditions
with reference to the growth and development of this community? .

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR. Well, that, of course, is a factor, but tlfey are almost
identical. For example, the man who can not work in the KEast on account
of the extreme climatic conditions comes to Los Angeles and to southern
California, where e has more even temperature, where he knows that he can
work the year around; he is not laid off during the extreme cold weather
that we haven’t here, and neither is he laid off during the extreme hot weather.
When you have the frost and snow in the East, why, he works along year
after year, day after day, month after month without any interference, ex'cept
probably during our rainy season two or three days at a time, and then he
works right straight along with those few interruptions. So that has ad-
vantages—that he as a wage earner is able to double his work more than he
can probably do in any other section of the United States.

Mr. TuoamrsoN. But more specifically what I wanted to get from you is
what effect has the weather of California, the climate of California, and of
this city, not only from the standpoint of the,K workingmen, but from all the
people that come here? What effect has that on the growth of California?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The effect of it is this: That we get here during the
winter months some of the wealthier classes from the IEast, who escape the
extreme climhtic conditions of the Iast, and come here and spend the winter
months. Some of them come every year. After they come once they become
charmed with our climate, with our surroundings, with the advantages that
our city and surroundings bring them, and ultimately they become permanent
residents, but that proportion is extremely small

Mr. Trompson. Do any of the firms that are members of your association
have closed-shop agreements with their men; do you know?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Mr. TumomrsoN. Is there anything in your organization that prevents an
employer from having closed-shop agreements?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., When a man becomes a member of our association he
is never asked whether he has closed or open shop.

Mr. TrHoMmPsoN. And so far as your constitution and by-laws are concerned,
so far as your policies are concerned, any man can have an agreement with
his employees?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Sure.

Mr. TaoMpsoN. Of any kind or character that suits him?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Mr. TraomprsoN. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Wawrsi. Mr. Weinstock wants to ask you some questions.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Can you tell us, Mr. Zeehandelaar, what was
the ‘volume of the citrus shipments in 1904 from this

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, Mr. Weinstock; I can not give yvou that, because
that is not in my department at all. That belongs to the chamber of commerce.

Cowmmissioner WEINsTocK. Could you glve an approximate estimate?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I haven’t the remotest idea.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you know what the citrus shipments were
for 19137

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No. As far as the products of the soil are concerned,
1 have no information whatever, That belongs to the chamber of commerce.

Commissioner WeINsTocK. I see. Could you get that information?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Sure; certainly.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Showing the growth of the citrus shipments?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, Sir.

(The information requested was later furnished, and appears as * Zee-
handelaar Exhibit No. 2.””)

Commissioner WEINsTocK. I take it that in a general way the citrus ship-
ments have very largely increased, have they not, in the last eight or nine
years?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WrInNsTock. How do the wages here, Mr. Zeehandelaar, com-
pare with the wages in industrial;lines in, other: parts of the State and in
other parts of the country? SRS
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Mr. ZEETANDELAAR. With the exception of San Fraucisco I believe they com-
pare very favorably. In some cases I believe they are higher, and, in this con-
nection, I am very thankful that you bring up this question, because I have
nad some affidavits prepared by an employee or two of our largest retail-
concerns here that show a wage of the female employees alone.

Exclusive of the benefits that the employees derive in the way of humane
treatiment and other things, the wages run from $25 per month for ecash
girls to $35 per month for stock girls, and they range from $40 to $200 per
month, In addition they receive a week's vacation during the summer with
full pay; they receive at Christmas the full wage as a present; they re-
ceive 1 per cent every month on the total amount of their sales; they are
never—the wages are never deducted when they have to go out on personal
business; when they becomne sick they are taken care of in a department where
there are cots and nurses, and when it becomes necessary to send them home
they are sent home in an automobile with proper attendants. I have two of
these affidavits to show you that the employer is not the heartless tyrant that
he is sometimes pictured to be; that he has a heart, and that he gives humane
treatment to his employees. I have two aflidavits from employees—one lady
who has been employed for 19 years, and the other for 18 years—where they
have expressed their appreciation and satisfaction with the treatment that they
Lave received at all times at the hands of their employers.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. Do these advantages that you speak of, Mr. Zee-
handelaar, in the department stores, apply to some particular department
store, or is that the common condition?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; I think that is a general conditlon that pre-
vails in all lines. We believe, and I have not been asked the question, but,
if you will pardon me, I will just give you an outline of our idea of the open
shop. We believe that the open shop—the closed shop, rather—is an injustice
to the worker, the wage earner, and an injury to the employers, for this -
reason: That the establishment has a uniform standard of wages without
establishing a standard of efliciency. Therefore, you compel the employer
to pay incompetent workmen the same wages that he does the competent work-
men. You take away from the incompetent man the incentive to perfect him-
self in the different lines, and thereby become a better workman capable of
earning a better wage than even the union prescribes.

Now, take that as a fundamental principle, our employers are paying a
Ligher wage In some cases than the scale preseribed by the unions. You take
the retail clerks’ union as it exists in San I'rancisco to-day, and you take
the unions of the drug clerks or any other union, and you don’t find that here.
Because the man who has the energy and the efficiency to demand a wage,
gets that without the necessity of belonging to any organized movement, His
employers realize that. The employer is not going to discharge a man who
is earning—who is able to earn and is of the value of $33 a week to him—$25
and wants more. He is willing to pay him according to his energy. That in-
centive is taken away by the unions as they are conducted at the present time.

Commissioner WeInNsTock. Digressing for a moment, Mr. Zeehandelaar

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WeINsTocK. You point out that the population of Los Angeles
County has increased from 275,000 in 1904 to 780,000.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. In 1913,

Mr. ZEEBANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commiissioner WEINsTOCK. That is an increase of very nearly 200 per cent.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir. i

Commissioner WeixNsTock. Isn't it?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WeINsTOCK. Now, what proportion, so far as you can estimate
it, of that increase of nearly—of over 500,000 people are employed industrially
and what proportion, do you think, are employed agriculturally or horticul-
turally ?

Mr. ZeErHANDELAAR. When you say industrially, do you mean that commer-
cially or purely industrially ?

Commissioner WeINsTocK. Primarily industrially—in shops and factories.

Mr. ZeEHANDELAAR. There, unfortunately, Mr. Weinstock, we have been
unable to obtain actual data regarding the growth of our industries since 1910,
since the Federal census. But I can say in a general way that the growth of
the industries has kept page with the growth of the city and the county. Now,
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to what extent the number of employees have increased industrially T am
unable to state. I have got some statement that is based on general condi-
tions, but I have omitted to introduce that because it is not in the form of an
“affidavit, and is mainly results obtained from hearsay.

Commissioner WEINSTocK. Yes. Perhaps this would get us a line, a rough
line, on that point. Your city has increased from 175,000 to 550,000.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. During that intervening period?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. Which would indicate a growth of 375,0007

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; that is, in the 10 years.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes. Then your county has increased 503,000?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. That would indicate an increase outside of the
county of about 130,000?

My, ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. I mean outside of the city.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Outside of the city; ves, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. About 130,0007?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WeINsTock. Now, of this 375,000 increase in the city, roughly
speaking, about what proportion do you think are engaged in industrial work?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Of the increase?

Commissioner WEIRsTock. Yes; of the 375,000.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, I should thmk between 50 and 65 per cent.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Between 50 and 65 per cent?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. Between 50 and 65 per cent.

Commissioner WEegINsTocK. Well, in round figures, that would bhe about
240,000 or 250,000°?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. Engaged industrially ?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. Out of a gross increase of over 500,000. Well,
now, I wish you would explain for the information of the commission, Mur.
Zeehandelaar, how the open or closed shop in any way affects the nonindustrial
workers, how it affects the agricultural worker, how it affects the horticultural
worker, and how it affects any man that is not employed in a shop or in a
factory.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Of course, our association does not deal directly with
those industries that you mention, but I believe that the same conditions pre-
vail in those branches that prevail in the commercial and industrial branches.
In other words, that the man who does not belong to a union can get just as
much work at just as good wages and at just as good working conditions as
the union man. In fact, I believe that there is no such union, or no organized
movement in regard to either the horticultural or the agricultural labor.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes; that is true; the horticultural and agricul-
tural workers, as a rule, arc not organized.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They are not organized.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. Therefore, how could they be affected one way or
the other by the problem of the open or the closed shop?

Mr. ZEEMANDELAAR. I don’t think they are.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Well, then, the growth along horticultural and
agricultural lines has no relation whatever to the question of the open and
the closed shop, has it?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; only the knowledge that when a man comes from
the East and seeks work here he knows that he is absolutely free from inter-
ference by organized labor. That is the fundamental thought. EHe can come
here and work. He can prosper. He can be happy. He can raise his family,
and has all the advantages.

Commissioner WEINsToCcK. In the city of Los Angeles, is it known, has any
effort been made to tabulate the number of so-called open shops and the num-
ber of so-called closed shops?

Mr. ZEEHANDELA AR, No, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Are there any industries in Los Angeles that are
closed shops, that are known as closed shops, where only union men will be
employed ?

Mr. ZEEHANDELA AR, Yes; sir. ;..

Commisgsioner WiINsTOCK. Can you mme them?
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Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. I think the overall and garment factories.

Commissioner WEeINsToCcK., They are closed?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They are closed. Shirt factories.

Commissioner WrINsTocK. How about the building trades; are they open or
closed?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They are all open. What I mean to say by open, of
course, I believe that according to the best of my information, you take the
bricklayers, they are prefty near a hundred per cent organized. But the
happy condition prevails here that a union man works side by side with a
nonunion man,

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. How about the metal trades?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I prefer to have that part taken up through Mr. Baker,
who is more thoroughly familiar.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. I see you are not familiar with those conditions.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir. -

Commissioner WEINSTocK. Now, you have handled this problem here for
many years, have you not, Mr. Zeehandlelaar.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Commissioner WeixsTock., Will you give this commission the benefit of your
judgment as to whether unionism is a good or bad thing for the worker and
for the State?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I believe that I have answered that partly when I
stated that it does not provide for a standard of efficiency and therefore does
not create a desire on the part of the laboring man—of the union man, to
perfect himself in his particular line, because there is one scale of wages.
That does an injustice to the competent man because his wage is absolutely
the same as the incompetent.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you mean that unionism as you know union-
ism makes for the dead level on the part of the worker?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I mean that when you have conditions as they have
existed in this city where the union man works harmoniously alongside of
the nonunion man, where he is not interfered with by the walking delegate,
when he has no dues and assessments to pay, when the tends strictly to his
own business, raises his family, puts his savings in the savings bank, and
puts his little money in his own home, that then he becomes more directly
associated with the welfare of the community, with the progress and develop-
ment of the commnunity than if he were subject to a call that may throw him
out of employment for a sympathetic strike in which he is not involved or
interested.

Commissioner WeiNsTock. Well, you think, then, Mr. Zeehandelaar, that
the worker and the State would be better or worse off if unionism was wiped
out?

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR, No, sir; T won't go that far., We are in an age of or-
ganization and federation. I believe that the union has a right to exist just
the same as the merchants and manufacturers’ association, provided it is
on the right lines for the uplift of its members, one such as they have in the
railroads, the brotherhood of railroad engineers and conductors, where they
have a standard of efliciency. The way they are conducted at the present time,
before a man must go to work, he must have—if you have got the closed shop
in force, he must have a card that he belongs to such and such a union whether
lie has the qualifications to belong to that union and able to earn the wage
set by that union.

Now, if you desire to eliminate the unrest, the strike, the boycott, and do
absolute justice between the employer and employee, between labor organiza-
tions and the public, then the only solution that I have been ever able to
think of would be a compulsory arbitration, giving the commission absolute
power to enforce its findings. We have tried to get a bill through the State
legislature three years ago, but it was defeated through the efforts of organ-
ized labor,

Commissioner WEeiINsTocK. Well, T take it, Mr. Zeehandelaar, that you
are pretty well familiar with all of the weaknesses and all the failings and all
the shortcomings of what is known as unionism. Now, taking unionism as we
find it to-day, in your judgment would the worker and the State be better
or worse off if that was wiped out?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I would not go that far; no, Mr. Weinstock.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You would uot wipe it out?
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Mr. ZFEHANDELAAR. No; I would not go that far to wipe out the unions,
cither. They are here to stay. We might as well make up our minds; they
have a right to stay if they are conducted on proper lines. If they, instead of
creating dissatisfaction, if instead of referring to the employer as ‘ big busi-
ness ” in every case, if an educational campaign could be started whereby it
wis shown that the employer was not a cold-blooded tyrant who is after them
like slaves, to get out of them all he wants to, and the last drop of blood, but
that their interests are mutual; if they are shown that the employer is just
as much interested in the financial, moral. and physical welfare of his men
that would be to my mind a step in the right direction to bring the employees
and employers closer together. There must be a bond there that cements them,
and that bond instead of existing—there is a part of the press that seems to be
engaged in making the breach wider and wider and creating unrest all the
time.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Well, I take it, then, from your answer, Mr.
Zeehandelaar, that you would regard it as bad if the unions were wiped out?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; to a certain extent I believe it would. I don’t
believe it could be done if it was tried, and I think it would be very foolish
to try it because they are here to stay. ¢

Commissioner WEixsTock. I take it also, Mr. Zeehandelaar, that you regard
the closed shop as an evil?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, now, if you believed that the open shop
would wipe out unionism, would be fatal to unionism, and you had to choose
between these two alleged evils—of wiping out all the unions on the one hand,
which you would regard as an evil, and the open shop on the other hand—
which would you regard as the lesser evil?

Mr. ZExHANDELAAR. I don’t regard the open shop as an evil

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. No, no no; I mean the closed shop.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I regard that as a blessing.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. I mean the closed shop.

Mr, Zeruaxperaar. The closed shop?

Commissioner Weinstock. If you had to choose between having unionism
wiped out and having the closed shop on the other hand, both of which you
regard as evils, which of those two would you regard as the lesser evil?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, one is in consequence of the other. You can’t de-
mand closed shop unless you have got unionism.

Cominissioner WriNsTock. Exactly.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. So one is the consequence of the other. I can’t conceive
of conditions whereby we have to choose between the one and the other. The
choice must lay between the closed shop and the open shop. Now, we have

Commissioner WeIxNsTock. Suppose it was demonstrated—or supposing you
were satisfied that the open shop meant the death knell of unionism; that the
open shop and unionisin could not coexist with one another; that one or the
other would have to prevail, which of the two would you regard as the lesser
injury to the worker and to the State?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Well, I am opposed to killing anybody or anything. I
weuld say simply in answer to that, Mr. Weinstock, I would say this, that
we have on one side the closed shop with the unions, on the other side the open
shop. . Now, we have proven to you by our development, by our general condi-
tions here that the closed shop—the union shop and the union both ean exist
satisfactorily to the workingman, to the wage earner himself, and to the coum-
munity at large, that both ean prosper under those conditions.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. In other words, your point is that the open shop
can coexist with unionism?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Absolutely; the open shop, absolutely.

Jommissioner WEINSTOCK. (Can coexist with unionism?

Mr. ZEFHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; we have given you

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, now, would that mean that the employers
should recognize and deal with unions, or should refuse to recognize and deal
with unions?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; they should take and they do take a broader view
of the entire situation. I know from personal knowledge that if a man applies
for a certain position, either in the wholesale, retail, or manufacturing con-
cerns, the first question is not “ Do you belong to a union?” or * Den't you
bhelong to a union?” The first question is one of efficiency, “ Where have you
worked? Can you do the/werk?2? H¢ Yes<SAlb right.  Iow much do you
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want?” If he is able to earn that amount of money he is engaged irrespective
of his affiliation or nenaffiliation with organized laboxr.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. I evidently have not made iy question clear, Mr.
Zeehandelaar, That was not the point. My point was, do you think that it is
in the interests of the employers and the workers and the State for the em-
ployers to recognize unions, to deal with them aside from establishing the
closed shop?

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEeiNsTock. Which means collective bargaining; or do you
believe it is in the interest of the worker and the employer and the State that
there should be no collective bargaining, despite the existence of the union, and
that all bargaining shall be individual?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; I don’t believe collective bargaining is in the
interest of either the employee qr the ewmployer.

Commissioner WeInstock. Will you point out the weak spot in collective
bargaining? Its point of failure, as you see it.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The weak spot is—again I have to go back to my original
and oft-repeated statement—that when you have collective bargaining, you de
not take into consideration the personal efforts, the personal efficiency, of every
man in the bargaining. In other words, you treat for a large number of wage
earners without any knowledge as to their ability and efliciency, or their capacity
to give a fair day’s work for a fair day's wage. Now, collective bargaining
ignores absolutely these points.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you understand unionism forces a minimum
wage for the worker, or a maximum wage for the worker?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. They force a uniform wage.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Isn't that what is known as a minimum wage?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Naturally it is a minimum wage.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Is there anything to prevent the employer under
such arrangement from paying the worker more than the minimum, if he is
worth it?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. None whatever, but if the employer should pay a member
of organized labor in any manufacturing industry a higher wage than the men
who are side by side and under the same conditions and under the same agree-
ment, naturally the man who don’t get so much has a grievance and you start
trouble. The moment the grievance is brought to the attention of the union, that
Mr. Jones pays Mr. Brown a higher wage, and is able to pay that man a higher
wage, then as a natural result they reach the conclusion that if Brown can get
50 cents a day more, the others are entitled to the same consideration.

Commissioner WeiNsTock. You mean if the employer does differentiate be-
tween workers and pays some more, that higher price becomes the minimum?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes, Sir; it creates dissatisfaction among the other
employees.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK, That is allL

Chairman WarsH. Commissioner Garretson would like to ask a few questions.

Commissioner GARRETsON. Was the dead level in general.really created by the
union or by the employer in the first instance?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, I don’t know what you mean by the dead level.

Commissioner GARRETsON. That is the phrase you used, I think,

Commissioner WEINsToCK, I used it.

Commissioner GArrersoN. That the union established the dead level for all
classes of men., I took—I undertook to copy your own phrase in the question.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I believe that the employers’ and employees’ interests are
identical. I can not conceive of a condition whereby the employer is prosperous
through the efforts of his employees, that when the opportunity comes and he
sees that the efforts of his employees were such as to bring him better financial
results and put him in a better financial position, that he would turn a deaf
ear for an increase of wages if it was just and fair and equitable.

Commissioner GARRETSON. But the question is, before the existence of unionism
as a power, didn’t the employer do exactly the same thing you now hold the
union has donme. In other words, didn’t the union take its card out of the
employer’s book, if it has done this thing. Bear in mind, I am speaking from
the standpoint of a man who was an employee in one of the largest employing
lines on the continent, and with 40 years of experience in it.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. You refer to the railroads?

Commissioner Garrersow, How is that?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. You refer to the raﬂroads?



5508 REPORT OF COMMISSION ON INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS.

Commissioner GArRrersox. Yes, sir,

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I can’t answer that question better than to say that dur-
ing the last controversy with the railroads, that the employees had with the
eastern roads, a representative of yours called on me, and asked what assistance
I could give them, that I sent to the railroads the initial telegram asking for a
square deal and to prevent if possible a strike that would be disastrous.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You mean the western railroads?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GARRETSON. I understood you eastern.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; western. 1 did say eastern.

Commissioner GARRETSON. The engineers and firemen here recently ?

Mr. ZEEWANDELAAR, Yes, sir. Our association was the first to send that tele-
gram to Chicago, asking for a square deal, and in every possible way tried to
prevent a strike that would be disastrous to the employees and the railroads and
the country at large.

Commissioner GArrerson, Take those same rfulroqu, as many of them as
then existed prior to 1885. 1 am throwing it back of where the union had in-
fluence on the railroads. Are you aware of the fact that every man employed,
we will say, as a freight conductor, or freight brnkeman, or engineer, or fire-
man got exactly the saine money per month on every given division?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; but now let me answer that. I don’t consider
that your brotherhood of railroad conductors or railway engineers or railway
trainmen comes in the same category with the labor unions, for this reason, if
I understand right, that the labor union demands a card before a man is put
to work, and in your organization he must show efficiency before he can get
a card, and that is one of the factors in your organization.

Commissioner Garrerson. That is true.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. So that therefore you have not the same conditions.

Commissioner GarreTsoN. Well, I know some people that call us a labor
union, and some people that (lont

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, you are not a labor umon as the term is used at
the present time.

Commissioner GArRrersoN. But this faet remains, that before we exercised
any influence, the pay for the same class of men, no matter how many there
was, was at a dead level, was it not?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GArRreTso~. Therefore, if we now insist that if a man can per-
form the services he shall be paid at least the standard wage, we have only
applied then exactly what our employers employed before our existence as a
power. Would that not be true?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Always taking into eonsideration that when you make a
demand, you make a demand of employees who have a standard of efficiency,
therefore they can make a just demand. That is not the case in labor unions—
in controversies of labor unions, You take a strike for hours, for a change in
working conditions, where an inecrease in wages is demanded, that increase
must apply to the competent and incompetent. In your organization you haven't
got that factor.

Commissioner GArrersoN. I believe I would have to insist on the right to
define for myself and my own organization whether or not it is a labor union,
just as you define for your association what it is.

Mr. ZreHANDELAAR. Well, if you want me to look at it as a labor union, all
right, T will do so.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Sure,

Mr. ZEEBANDELAAR. Go ahead.

Commissioner GARrRETsoN. In the last analysis, that is what it is.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. All right.

Commissioner GARRETsON. Because it puts forth its efforts to get that which
it believes best for its members?

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. Now, in regard to this condition that has grown
up in Los Angeles, which you described—the increase of population and the
proportional number thereof which are wage earners—that is one point I
would like more information on. Now, do you assume that the manufacturers,
we will say, of San I‘rancmuo—aesocmtlon men like yourself—are as fully
aware of conditions that surround their business as your association is of con-
ditions that surround yvours here?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes/ 8iri?/7e
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Commissioner GARReETsoN. As intelligent men, and as competent to interpret.
Now, the unfailing testimony that was given before this commission by rep-
resentatives was largely to the effect

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Was what?

Commissioner GARRETsoN. Largely to the effect that in disputed territory or
in certain-named territory, I.os Angeles could invariably undersell San Fran-
cisco, and it was largely stated that the cause thereof was the lower wage
condition prevailing. Assume for a moment that that is true, and that you
have been able to take disputed territory from them—you bear in mind that
testimony came in many lines, as, for instance, the lumber trade. There men
who were conducting a lumber business on an open-shop basis testified that
they could sell no goods in the San Francisco territory, but they had a good
market south of the Tehachapl. That they could sell their goods, finished in
their own mills, cheaper than the same goods could be sold if finished in the
San Francisco union 1nills.

Now, if Los Angeles can sell cheaper in competitive markets and there is a
large surplus of unemployed men on the ecoast, would that furnish any solu-
tion of the addition to your population by the increase of your trade on account
of lower prices and unemployed men drifting here and accepting a wage, that
increases your working population?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., You are putting a hypothetical question there, that I
will have to answer in my own way.

Commissioner GARRETsoxN. Good.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The question is much a matter of supply and demand.
Now, in San Francisco, that applies to labor as well as to merchandise. San
Francisco has bheen, as you know, dominated in every respect by organized
labor. A man who desired to work there as a free American citizen could not
find employment unless he would first procure a card in the union. Therefore,
the labor unions there used their power to force upon the employers a scale
of wages irrespective of whether the employer could do business at a profit
under those conditions.

Now, what do we find here? Just the reverse, We are not underpaying our
labor, but we control the market to that degree that the price of our production
is lower under those conditions, and I come back again to the fundamental
principle, the efliciency. That the man who is able to earn only $4 a day gets
$4 a day with the incentive of perfecting himself in his respective trade, so
that later on he may get $4.50 or $5. The good man gets $4.50 and $35, but
in San Francisco you have a uniform wage that must be paid whether the man
can give an honest day’s labor or not. That is where you have the solution
between the costs of production.

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. Then your theory holds good as long as there is
a surplus of labor?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Not necessarily so.

Commissioner GARRETSON. What would happen when there are more johs
than men? Then wouldn't he go where the highest pay obtained?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, when there are more jobs than there are men, then
some employers would get their full quota and all the men would get employ-
ment; and where an employer is unable to get his full quota he would have
to go without it.

Commissioner GarrersoN. And naturally the man who pays the higher wage
will get what men there are?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; but no employer is fool enough when he has
a good man who can earn $5 to allow him to go because he can get 25 cents
or 50 cents a day more somewhere else,

Commissioner GArrersoN. Then one of two things would happen in every
instance where you were not dominated by union establishments; you would
be confronted with one of two things—Ilet the man go or raise the price to
what the other is paying?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. He comes to his employer as man to man, and he would
say: “Mr. Brown, I have an offer with Mr. Smith at 50 cents a day more.”
Brown would say: “All right, Jones; if you can get it, and you are worth that
to me, I will meet it.”

Commissioner GArRrersox. If a committee representing a hody of those men
came to you then, it would be man to man, and would the men be in better
position, or would they not?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Not necessarily.

Commissioner Garrersox, Why is your association in existence?
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Our association is not in existence to urge anything in
the line of labor, as I have stated to you, and as I have pointed out to you.
We are not in the same category as the merchants and manufacturers you
spoke of in San Francisco.

Commissioner GARRETSoN. Leaving that out altogether. Just to accomplish
4 purpose, isn’t it?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR., We are on broader principles. We are in existence to
promote the general welfare of the community.

Commissioner GARRETSON. And you believe the general welfare can better
be accomplished by a combination of men than by a single man or a combination
of firms than by a single firm or corporation?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. In a general way for the development of the city itself,
we do.

Commissioner GARBeTsoN. Is the development of your section and city a
more general question, as applied to your membership, than the development of
their individual good, as they see it, is to a number of workingmen?

Mr. ZerHANDELAAR. I believe that the general feeling, the general attitude
of the employing classes are as high, of as high a standard, probably higher,
than any other community in the United States. That our merchants and our
manufacturers and our employers stand together, first, for the upbuilding of
this community, and have stood for that, and their concerted action has shown
the results that I have testified to to-day in regard to our material welfare
and moral welfare.

Commissioner GARrReTSON. But take the interpretation of the other associa-
tion, not anybody else’s interpretation, but the other manufacturers’ associa-
tion. Don’t they differ from your conclusion as to the reasons of the up-
building?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. They may, of course, I am not familiar with that.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You would recognize their right to so differ?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, I don’t know. I have no expression as to any
other organization. They are organized on different lines than ours. I ecan
only speak for Los Angeles. We have here, Mr. Garretson, a community in which
everybody takes a pride. We have a feeling here of uniform interest. We
are mutually interested. It does not make any difference whether you go
among the working classes, the wage earners, or whether you go among the
employers, or whether you go among the capitalists, this idea always prevails
in Los Angeles, first, the welfare of the community. There is a sentiment here
that has been established through years, and probably on close investigation
you won’t find that anywhere else.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Yes; but assume an organization of this kind;
for instance, you talke the railroad men of the ecountry. As a rule, they are
proud of the railroad, both employers and employees, but they will get together
and fight like thunder over the division of the spoils.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., But you have shown your division of the spoils in general.
I have shown you out of 257,000 depositors in the savings banks we have
200,000 wage earners with average deposits of $408 each, so that we all have
an interest in the spoils.

Commissioner GarrersoN. Could not that condition equally apply to union-
labor conditions generally, where those closed-shop conditions do obtain?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, But ¥ don’t believe that the city of San Francisco has
been able to give you a picture as we show you here.

Commissioner GARReTsON. I don’t know that they follewed that line. If the
union was abolished—bear in mind I am bearing in mind your statement that
it could not be abolished.

Mr. ZEEBHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GAarrersoN. That is, that in the ordinary course of events that
it was here to stay.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, Sir.

Commissioner GARRETSON. But does the existence of a large hody of unionism
population both in your midst and around you have any effect on your wage
conditions, or does it?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. That depends on whether they make a demand.

Commissioner GArRRETSoN. How is that?

Mr. ZeEHANDELAAR. That depends on whether they make a concerted demand
upon the employing classes,

C(;mmissioner GaRrreTsoN. If they maintained union conditions all around
you? g 7
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Connnissioner GARRETSON. Does not that refleet in your own wage conditions
necessarily ?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. It must to a certain extent; yes, sir.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Only one more question. Since the establishment
of the open-shop idea in Los Angeles has there been a general increase in any
wage of any eraft in the city?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Certainly.

Commissioner GArrersoN. What one?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. That I can not say, positively. I can not testify to that,
but we have provided for witnesses in the different lines of trade and industry,
and those witnesses will be able to testify in the respective lines that there has
been a definite increase from time to time in the prineipal erafts.

Commissioner GARReTsoN. There has been a definite increase in the whole
craft?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Most decidedly. We have realized the cost of living has
advanced, and therefore the wages have advanced.

Commissioner Garrersox. That is all.

Chairman WALsH. Any other questions? Mr. O’Connell would like to ask
a few further questions.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Does your association declare in its constitution
for the open-shop policy? .

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; we have not. In our constitution and by-laws
the word organized labor, union, or nonunion—those are not mentioned, for the
reason, as I explained at the outset of my testimony, that this class of work
was forced upon us by existing condittons in 1900 or prior to that—I don’t know
exactly the year. The fundamental principle upon which our organization was
established did not contemplate the taking up of this class of work.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Does the constitution or by-laws mention the closed
shop or open shop in any way?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. The reason I asked you the guestion is because \ou
hold, if it is a fact, that the success of Los Angeles has been based on the open-
shop idea. I take it you are speaking for the assoeciation and not personally?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I go beyond that, Professor.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. I beg your pardon on the * professor.”

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. Well, Mr. Commissioner, then.

Commissioner CoMioNs. Agitator.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. I have been called everything but that.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Al right; I will apologize. I want to say this: I will
go further, and I believe—you take the population of this city and if you
propound that gquestion to anyone outside of probably a few organizers—even
with the rank and file of organized labor—you will find opinions, the sentiment
that Los Angeles owes its present prosperous condition, and has for the last
year, to the open-shop condition. I believe you will find a great many in the
rank and file of organized labor holduw tlmt position, just as well as manu-
facturers and merchants.

Commissioner O’CoxNgLL. What I want to get at is whether the position you
occupy is the position of your association.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, It is somewhat; yes, sir.

Commissioner O'ConNELL. Have they taken formal action?

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. In what way? Passing a resolution that the open shop
is a success?

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Yes, sir.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I can’t exactly remember that, but all our operations are
based on that score, and the facts show it.

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Then your assoclation is, in fact, for the so-called
open-shop policy?

Mr. ZrEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; with this proviso, that when a firm becomes a
member of our association, he is not asked this question: “ Do you believe in
the open or closed shop?” But, knowing the policy, knowing the sentiment of
the community, he becomes a member under the constitution and by-laws, which
do not provide for either an open or a closed shop.

Commissioner O’Coxnerrn. He isn't informed that the policy of the associa-
tion is in the direction of the open shop?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir. /I'said he I not informed.
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Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Then, if he is in favor of the closed-shop idea, he
would be going into the association under a misapprehension of the purposes,
would he not?

Mr. ZeEpANDELAAR. He actually knows the matter of his own initiative. He is
unot bound in any way by the policy that might be adopted or by a prineciple.
He acts in that condition absolutely on his own initiative and own pleasure.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Would he not be occupying an anomalous position
on joining an association that stood for the open shop when he was operating a
closed shop?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, He may disagree on that point always, but he realizes
and appreclates the good that the association does in so many other lines that
benefits the community that he might be able to disregard some other point.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Are you an employer or manufacturer?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; I am only a plain secretary of the merchants
and manufacturers’ association.

Commissioner O'CoNxNELL. You are not in business in any way in the eity?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir, ¥

Comimissioner O’CoxNELL. You have been some 14 years or more acting as
secretary of this association?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; 17 years.

Commissioner O’CoNNeLL. What were you doing before that?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I was in newspaper work.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. In newspaper work in what way—reporter?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Cnimissioner O’CoNNELL. In Los Angeles?

Mr ZEEHANDELAAR. San Francisco for 10 years with the Examiner. I was
legislative correspondent in the early days.

Commission O’CoNNELL. And what before that?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Let me see. That is so long ago I almost forget it. I
found employment in different lines. I had at one time a cigar store in San
I'rancisco. 1 was connected for a number of years with the Fiesta here before 1
became financial secretary. Two or three years in publicity work.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. In this statement you presented from the secretary
of J. B. Robinson Co. 4

Mr. ZEEHANDELAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. You stated the salaries paid by that company
were from $25 a month to $200 a month, 5

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. I suppose you noted a vast difference between the
number getting $25 and the number getting $200?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., Naturally. 1 explained to you, and it is explained there,
that the cash girls get $25 a month. You can’t expect a firm to pay cash girls
$200 a month.

Commissioner O’CoxxeLL. No. Just for the record. There is one person in
this firm gets $200 a month?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. And 25 get $25 a month?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Certainly.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. And 4 get $150 a month?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir. -~

Commissioner O’ConNELL. And 52 get $45 a month?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. And 1 gets $130 a month, and 34 get $50 a month?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir. It just proves, Mr. Commissioner, what effi-
ciency will do.

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Yes; that is just one reason I was figuring on.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, Sir.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. That the efficiency, or the possibility of one out
of a very great number reaching the high mark or anywhere near the high
mark—there is only one all the way down getting the $200 a month—that the
possibility, taking the efficiency, of working up would be extremely limited?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. If you understand the inner workings of a large dry-
zoods store, as the Boston Store is, you will realize that a girl who is 14 or
15 years old and simply has had a common-school education, is unacquainted
with business methods or anything else, a wage of $25 a month as a cash girl,
with the opportunities of perfecting herself—of becoming a saleslad_y and ul_ti-
mately a departmental manager--has a future before her and is given an in-
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centive to perfect herself. You can not expect a cash girl 14 years old or
15 years old, who has no responsibility, knows nothing of the business, 1o be
as well paid as the saleslady.

Commissioner O’'CoNNELL. You do not need to argue that with me,

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; but you make the point.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. I amn making the point that there is only one at
the top, just one out of several hundred, and that there is only another one at
the 8§25 and that all the way through there are only a small number out of
the many. &

Mr. ZEERANDELAAR. And there is only one president of a railroad company
or railroad corporation, there are not a dozen.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. That is true, but there are thousands of other
positions.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir,

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Does your association take any part in State or
municipal legislation?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

(Commissioner O'CoxxeLr. What part?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Simply urging our representatives in Congress, in the
State legislature, or in the city council, to advise them as to the effects that
certain legislation will have on the general prospecity of the city or of the
State.

Commissioner O’CoxxeLL. Has your association in its history supported any
measures organized labor was interested in, in the State legislature?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR, Well, I do not know that I can testify as to its entire
history. There is a pretty long ways before I become connected with it.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. As, for instance, child legislation and the hours of
labor, and compensation.

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes; they have had the subjeet of child legislation, they
have given it their support most decidedly.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Do you maintain a committee or lobby at the State-
house during the sessions?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, No, sir; never have,

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Make appropriations for legislative purposes in
any way?

Mr. ZEEIHANDELAAR, None whatever.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Any dinners or celebrations of any kind to which
representatives of the State are Invited?

Mr. ZeEHANDELAAR, Not that I know of; no. But I suppose if we had a
dinner we would not hesitate to invite the governor or the lieutenant—-—

Commissioner O’'CoN~NELL. I don’t mean that; I mean functions at which rep-
resentatives of the senate and house are taking part as such?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, No, sir; to influence legislation ; no, sir, at no time,

Commissioner O’'ConxxeLL. I didn’t say to influence legislation. But when
legislation comes up that may appear objectionable to your organization, what
method is adopted by you to prevent its passage?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Lawful legitimate methods,

Commissioner O’Cox~eLn. What are they?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Well, for example the workmen’s compensation act,. we
thought that was too drastic, and on several occasions I have met with a mem-
ber of your commission, Mr., Weinstock, who represented the retall dry goods
assoclation, and tried to formulate amendments that would give the com-
mission less power and would make the measure less objectionable and less
drastic in Its general application.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL., And then what?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Then we appeal, by letter or telegram, to the individual
legislators, either in the assembly or in the senate,

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Simply setting forth you believe it is for the best
interests of legislation?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir: and give the reasons why.

Commissioner O’Coxxerr. I understand your position as representing your
assoclation, the position of the association, that the best interests of this com-
munity—and in that you include the working people—is served by the complete
Inauguration of the so-called open shop or private employment,

Mr. ZEEIANDELAAR. We believe that the open shop has been and is an asset
to this community and has been; probably,oune of the greatest factors in our
development and in our prosperity. ALBP
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Commissioner O'CoxNELn. Therefore you are not in favor of collective bhar-
gaining, because collective bargaining ean not take place where men are not
organized.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No; and therefore, because as I explained to another
commissioner, that direct bargaining takes away from the individual the power
to assert his efficiericy, his ability to earn more wages than he would get
through collective bargaining.

Commissioner O’ConxnerL. Will you explain to this commission—you have
thought that matter out, and have shown a great deal of interest—how it
would be possible for the workman in Los Angeles, the individual, without some
method of collective bargaining or dealing with their employers as such to
bring about a reduction in the hours of labor? Supposing it is conceded that
eight hours was a day, or seven hours was a legitimate day’s work, how would
the individual employee in Los Angeles proceed to bring about a reduction of
the hours of labor?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR., Well, I do not think that the proposition, as you state,
the individual going there, would bring about a result. I admit that. But if
the same employees would appoint a committee of three and go to the employer
and point out to him whereby the conditions, that the interests of the employer
and employee are mutual to the interests of both sides, a reduction in hours
would be beneficial to both, without risking the interests of the manufacturing
industry, I think that something could be accomplished without calling a strike.

Chairman WarLsH. Just a minute. At this point the commission will stand
adjourned until 2 o’clock. Mr. Zeehandelaar, will you resume the stand at
that time? :

(Whereupon, at 12.30 o’clock p. m., an adjournment was " taken until 2
o’clock p. m. of the same day, Tuesday, September 8, 1914.)

AFTERNOON SESSION—2 P. M.

Met pursuant to adjournment. Present as before.
Chairman WarsH. Please let us have complete order, ladies and gentlemen.

TESTIi\(ONY OF MR. F. J. ZEEHANDELAAR—Continued.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Mr. Zeehandelaar, you were explaining when we
took a recess the method the individual employer would pursue to secure a
reduction in the hours of labor. And you explain that by selecting two or
three men to wait upon the employer, and that was brought about by that
method.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoxnNeELL. That appealed to me as rather a method of col-
lective bargaining, while it might appear small in number, yet it didn’t strike
me that it was the individual dealing for himself.

Mr. ZeeHANDELAAR. What I mean by that is this, if you in that case—no
matter what the number may be, the employer treats directly with his em-
ployees, Instead of through the organizers or the representatives of organized
lzbor, who sometimes don’t belong to the eraft affected. In other words, if a
man, if a committee of his own employees were to come to a man, to an em-
ployer, and state their grievances, their objections, or what they want to
accomplish, the mutuality of interests again appears upon the surface.
Whereas if a dispute arises, for instance, among the carpenters, you may
find on that committee that the employer is called upon by, you may find an
organizer of the bricklayers or the hod carriers, or a craft that is not directly
or indirectly affected by the desires of the employees.

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Then, I understand from you that there is no
objection on the part of the employer to dealing collectively with his em-
ployees?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I should say, as a rule, no. Of course there are in-
dividual cases I can not answer.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Does your association require or has it required
any member, or an individual association, or an organization affiliated with
you, to put up a bond at any time for any purpose?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Never; emphatically not.

Commissioner O’ConnNELL. For the purpose of fulfilling any required obliga-
tion as to

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Nay sirg€mphatically mottat any time.
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Commissioner O'CoNNELL. That is all, Mr. Chairman,

Chairman WarsH. Did you want to ask some questions, Mr. Weinstoek?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes.

Chairman WaLsH. Commissioner \Vemstocl\ wauts to ask some questions.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. In the matter of efficiency, Mr. Zeehandelaar,

My, ZEEHANDELAAR., Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Is the statement that you made concerning the
difference in efliciency between union and ronunion workers a matter of opinion,
pure and simple, or are there records that accurately determine the difference
between the efliciency of the union and nonunion worker?

NMr. ZEEHANDELAAR., That can Dbe determined in a very short time, the matter
of efficiency, everything being equal; under open-shop ceonditions where an
employer does not inquire as to the affiliation or nonafliliation of an employee,
the matter of efliciency is determined within perhaps 24 hours. That is, a man
who claims that he is efficient and is able to earn from his employer the maxi-
num wage, he can demonstrate that in a very short time.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. Perhaps 1 didn’t understand your statement cor-
rectly this morning, Mr. Zeehandelaar. I got the notion fromn the explanation
that you made that substantially, if you take a union shop on one hand and a
nonunion shop on the other hand, working on the same production under the
same working conditions, that the output of the nonunion shop would be greater
per man than the output in the union shop per man.

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; I didn’t discuss the nonunion shop at all. My
testimmony is all directed to the open shop where we don’t discriminate between
union and nonunion.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. Possibly I misunderstood you, but I understood
you to claim that the output of the nonunion was higher than that of the union,
because the eflficiency is higher.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir; I recognize the fact that in the ranks of organized
labor there are just as efficlent men as there are in the nonunion, absolutely.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK, Say, there are two men of equal efliciency, one a
union man working in a union shop and the other man a nonunion man working
in a nonunion shop of equal capacity, will the output be the same?

Mr. ZeEnANDELAAR. If the eflicieney is the saine, naturally it would be.

Commissioner WeiNtTock., You think it would be?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir: provided, however

Commissioner WELNsTOCK. There are those, Mr. Zeehandelaar, that maintain
that organized labor stands for diminished output. I want to find out if that
was your judgment as well.

Mr. ZeenmaNpeLaaR. That is a matter I can not testify to, because we have
no agreements. If you compare this condition here as it exists in San Fran-
cisco where an employer is required to sign an agreement, my understanding
1s that the output of the individual is limited by the rule of the union. We
have no condition of that kind here. We are absolutely free from agreements ;
that is, to a general extent.

Commissioner WEeINsToex. Then, with the explanation you now make 1 am
left in this frame of mind—and let's see If I get your ldea correctly. What
you had in mind when you spoke of efliciency was this: Under the unionized
system a man is getting a certain wage whether he is worth it or not; under
the nonunion condition a man gets all he is worth, whatever he nay be worth?

Mr. ZEEHHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WeINstock. That is afl,

Chairman Warsi. Any other questions? Mr. Zeehandelaar, you imentioned
an antipicketing ordinance.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. What was the approximate date of the passage of that
ordinance?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. 1910.

Chairman WarsH. Briefly state what are the general terms of it? What
does it forbid?

Mr. ZrenanperAagr. It forbids the picketing, as the term is generally under-
stood. Any interference with the worker who desires to work. We agree and
we grant any worker, whether organized or unorganized, the right to work
or refuse to work as his conscience dictates,

Chairman WALsH. W u.s your ﬂ\\OCI‘lh()n instrumental in having the ordi-
nance passed? A S

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR. les, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. In what did their actlvlty consist?
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Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. Their activity consisted in molesting the actions of the
free worker, or the men who took their places.

Chairman WaLsu, No; I meant what did the activities of your association
consist?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Oh,

Chairman WaLs#H. In endeavoring to have the ordinance passed?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Oh, I thought you wanted to know the reasons why we
wanted it passed.

Chairman WarsH, No.

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR., Simply to have the ordinance prepared and asked the
council to pass it,

Chairman WArLsH. Did you appear before a council committee by a committee
of your own? - s

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR, Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH, Was there personal solicitation on the part of individual:
members of your association with members of the city council?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR, Well, the members of the city council were approached
on the subject.

Chairman Wawrsm., They were approached individually?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir; or collectxvely

Chairman Wausm., Was there an issue raised in any political campaign in
respect to it?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Not from our side.

Chairman WaLsH, Well, was it from the other side?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I think it was.

Chairman Warse. And with the re@ult that it made no differene in the
opposition; were the men elected anyway?

Mr. ZEeHANDELAAR, Well, that was not immediately prior to any polltlcal
campaign, and I can not testify as to the effect.

Chairman WaLsa., Was it a direct issue in any campaign?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. No, no; not a direct issue. And while on that subject,
I want to explain the political activity of the organizations here. Now, we had
a primary election last month at which one of the high judicial officers was
running for the appellate bench. Certain organizations, labor organizations,
issued an appeal to the individual members to vote and work against that
man, because that man while in the discharge of his legal duties as a judge
of a court had sustained a permanent injunetion in a labor case. In other
words, the effect would have been to intimidate our judiciary to decide against
law and against facts and law in favor of one part of the community, instead
of enforcing the law.

Chairman WarLsH. After the antipicketing ordinance was passed was there
a protest made against it by any of the labor bodies?

Mr. ZEeEHANDELAAR. I think it was; I think that the legality of the act was
tested in court and a decision rendered sustaining if.

Chairman WALsH., Sustaining it?

Mr., ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Chairman WarLsa. Was there a referendum applied for?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR., No, sir. And if you will pardon me, Mr. Chairman, T
would like to explain just how and why that picketing ordinance was called
into existence,

Chairman WarsHa. Very good, proceed.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Mr, Baker, who will be a witness here, will probably
deseribe to you the annoyance and the violence that followed the metal trades
strike. We are a peaceful community. We believe in law and order. We
will protect the lives and the property of anyone involved, just as much organ-
ized labor a&s nonorganized in every instance. The men who were working
were harassed, abused, villified, maligned in every way possible, and something
had to be done to prevent violence, and the only way to do it was to call into
existence an antipicketing ordinance, because any act that interferes with the
rights and liberties of the citizens at large is unlawful per se:

Chairman WarsH, Is that all the statement that you wish to make in that
respect?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes,

Chairman WaLsH. Well, now, in what court was the ordinance tested; did it
2o to the court of last resort? ;

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No,.sir,. No; I .am not sure of that. I don’t know but
what an appeal. was takento the .supreme court,
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Chairman WaLsH. Was it tested in the trial of an alleged violator of the
ordinance?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Chairman WarsH. Just glance at that, will you please, Mr. Zeehandelaar,
and see if that is the ordinance. Some one has handed it up here, and it
seems to be copied into something else [handing paper to the witness].

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I suppose generally speaking that is correct. I have not
compared it, therefore——

Chairman WarsH. I see. But I suppose that can be assumed to be the one?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

(The ordinance referred to was submitted in printed form.)

Chairman WaLsH. You mentioned something about a dispute about the brew-
ers and their employees.

‘Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsa. What was approximately the date of that?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I testified to that

Chairman WaLrsi, I didn’t hear it.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. About May 18, 1910.

Chairman WarsH. 1910?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. In that dispute, did your association take part?

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

Chairman WaLsH. In what respect?

Mr. ZeegaxpeELAAR. We had conferences with the national organizers who
were here at that time to conduct the boycott at our office time and time again.

Chairman WarLsH. And what was the general nature of the demands made
by the union that caused the boycott?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. First, organization; second, a change in working condi-
tlons, scales of wages, and so on,

Chairman WarLsH. Wages and hours?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir. I do not know about hours, but wages.

Chairman WarsH. Generally, what was the result of the controversy?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. The result of the controversy was that the boycott con-
tinued for pretty nearly a year, and through the influence that was brought to
bear upon the San Francisco brewers—and they have a State organization,
and I might say the losses sustained by the brewers here—resulted in a sur-
render to the demand.

Chairman WaLsH, They entered into contracts with them?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes ,sir, They are in effect now.

Chairman WarsH. That is all. Thank you.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAB. Mr. Chairman, before I leave the stand I testified this
morning as to the intemperate and violent publications that lead to unrest and
dissatisfaction. And I desire to submit to the commission photographic copies
of a publication that was issued here from room 203, Labor Temple, called * The
Armed Citizen,” in which the people were told that the ballot without the bullet
is ineffective, that what can not be accomplished by the ballot must be accom-
rlished by the bullet.

But I want to say, in justice to the labor unions in this city, that after four
issues of this were published, thls man Murray, who appeared on the scene here
as a labor leader, was told to get out and leave. Ie did leave for Colorado.
But, at the same time, I think it will be of interest to the commission to read
these pamphlets and see what harm can be done by intemperate language
distributed.

Chairman WaLsa. Who did Mr., Murray represent?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. I believe he was an organizer of the machinists’ union.
He was here for some time, a so-called labor leader. And the tenor of all the
rublications was in that line, to create violence. He, for instance, wanted elubs
orgamzed to buy a certain style of Winchester that could be taken apart and

carried in a suit case, and organize clubs where he says that while the consti-
tution and by-laws allow 2 man to arm himself the intent of the constitution wag
misleading to create an impression in the minds of the reading public that it was
more for the protection and to induce violence than anything else.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Mr. Zeehandelaar, would you hold—bear in mind
I haven’t read the document and never heard of Murray before.

Mr, ZEEHANDELAAR. No, sir..

Comimissioner GARRETSON. But for 1 Iaboring man—I will use your own
phrase—so-called labor leader. Y
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Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes.

tommissioner GARrRersoN. If he preached this doctrine of the bullet, if the
ballot did not get there.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Yes, sir.

Commiissioner Garrerson. How would you look at it if a so-called leader of
employers preached exactly the same doctrine? Would it be equally iniquitous?

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Absolutely.

Comiissioner GARRETSON. Good.

Mr. ZEEHANDELAAR. Absolutely; yes; there is equality in that respect. Vieo-
lation of law is not justified on one side any more than on the other.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. That is good doctrine.

My, ZEEHANDELAAR. We preach it and praetice it.

Chairman WaLsua, Now, is there any other subject that has not been elicited
by the questions that have been asked you by counsel or commission that yon
would like to volunteer testimony upon? If so, you may.

Mr. ZEEMANDELAAR. I would like to reserve the right, if the commission will
permit, later on if something comes to my mind, if ¥ might put it in doeu-
mentary form or oral testimony.

Chairman WavrsH. Very good. We will be glad, if you have any documentary
testimony. We try to hear the witnesses on important subjeets in rebuttal. So
that will be all for the present. You may stand aside.

(Mr. Zeehandelaar later submitted a map of the city of Los Angeles and a
pamphlet entitled “Annual Repdrt of Officers and Membership List of the Mer-
chants and Manufaecturers’ Association of Los Angeles, Cal., 1908-1909.” The
foregoing were in printed form. He also submitted various affidavits and other
data which appear among the exhibits at the end of this subject.)

Gen. Otis, if you will resume the stand, please,

TESTIMONY OF GEN. HARRISON GRAY OTIS—Recalled.

Chairman WaLsH. If you are prepared with your statement, General, you
may proeeed with it.

Gen, Oris. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the commission, here are cer-
tain statements that I have prepared on invitation of the committee, made on
behalf of the publishers of the Leos Angeles Times, relative to conditions in
the local industries and traversing the system of unionism and nonunionism,
respectively, in their bearing upon the question of industrial unrest; also the
material conditions of Los Angeles workmen and the general prosperity of
the city.

OFFICE oF THE TiMEs, NEw TiMmES BuiLpiNe,
Los Angeles, September 8, 191}.
To the United States Commission on Industrial Relations.

GENTLEMEN : The prineipal statistics and other data embraced in the state-
ments here presented for your official consideration have been drawn almost
exelusively from the details and annual reports of the Times Mirror Co., eov-
ering the period involved. The Times Mirror Co. is the official name of the
corporation publishing the Times.

Proprietors and business managers are generally and naturally reluctant to
diselose inside information concerning the details of their business operations,
and I myself share in that reluctance. Nevertheless, in this instance T am
taking the opposite course to a large extent for the sake of illuminating the
industrial situation, which neither I nor my coowners and coworkers should
keep you in ignorance of.

OPERATING FACTS.

Payments to labor.—During the year ended September 30, 1913, the close of
our last fiscal year, the Times paid for labor in the form of wages and salaries
the aggregate sum of $639,152, being an Inerease of $27,342.15 over the pre-
ceding year. For the 11 months ended August 31, 1914, the aggregate pay-
ments to labor in the composing room alone were $117,196.90, being an average
of $2,510.50 for each of the 47 pay days embraced within the period covered,
which will be divided into three classes, to wit: First, skilled mechanieal
labor ; second, other skilled laber; and third, unskilled labor, the latter bearing
only a trifling proportion in numbers, and the rest belongs to the other classes
named. This is illustrated by the following -aetual figures applicable to a
previous year, In 1912 the payment as to the first class named was $185,847.86;
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in the second class, $402,761.52; and to the third class only $23,200.47. The
relative payments since 1912 have been substantially on the same ratio.

During the 23 years preceding the end of our last fiscal year our payments
for wages and salaries aggregated $3,S07,934.50.

Individual earnings of skilled umkmcn —The individual earnings of lino-
type operators who work on piecework, which is the rule in the Times office,
run from $5.50 to $7.50 per day of seven hours’ work at the established piece
rate of 113 and 13 cents per thousand enis, respectively.

Workmen by the day are guaranteed eight hours’ employment. The rates are
given further on. The workday for the piece men varies necessarily somewhat
from time to time owing to the necessities of the office. Their working hours
go up as high as 9 to 11 on the later days and nights of the week owing to
the exigencies of the demand of the large Sunday issue. These earnings by
the piece are substantially higher than the average earnings paid by the day
or week for similar work in union newspaper offices throughout the country.
It has been demonstrated by years of experience in my office that the piece
system for compositors on the daily newspaper is far the best for all con-
cerned., It is better for the workmen, because they earn higher wages in the
same number of hours than do union employers working on an hour, day, or
week basis, which is the cast-iron rule in newspaper offices dominated by the
typographical, union. It is better also because it stimulates the number he
could operate by a special effort and permits him to rush, which practice is
forbidden him in union offices; and is also better for the employer, because
the piece system produces more satisfactory results in less time by reason of
greater speed, celerity, and efficiency achieved.

The piece system is the thing for a rush job like the production of a daily
newspaper on time every morning in the year. Any member of a nonunion
daily newspaper thus properly directed and manned by free, independent, loyal
and zealous workmen, is able to demonstrate beyond question these important
truths, to wit, that higher wages pald to fewer workmen and coupled with
greater efficiency and economy in the long run are practicable and possible.
Besides there is the distinet advantage in the case of nonunion establishments
that the employer and the maker of the pay roll and the man responsible for
the wage payments is left free, as he ought to be, to conduct his own office and
its affairs within his clear legal rights, withln his own proper control, which
can not be successfully disputed, and also with that self-respect and confidence
which should be the owner’s own undisputed possessions. He has a free man's
right to stand up to his full height in his stalwart manhood, face the world
and his workmen, making no apology for his presence upon earth as an em-
ployer.

Different rates paid o skilled labor.—In the composing room of the Times we
established many years ago three different wage scales, created to compensate
time work with the special object of paying hand compositors and other skilled
workmen according to efficiency and merit. These different scales were origi-
nally agreed upon in the year 1896, after mutual negotiations between the office
and the men concerned, and the several rates here first named were willingly
accepted by the different classes working under them. This first arrangement
was in operation without friction for several years before undergoing changes.

The rates paid for the particular classes of skilled labor here indicated were
originally fixed as follows: Lowest rate 42 cents per hour, equivalent to $3.78
per day of 9 hours. . Next higeher rate 45 cents per hour, equivalent to $4.00
per day. Next higher rate 47 cents per hour, equivalent to $4.23 per day of
9 hours. Subsequently there was a reduction in hours and considerable in-
creases in the hour rates from time to time until they were finally brought up
tc the present figures, to wit: For daywork, 53 cents per hour, or $4.25 for 8
hours. For night workmen, 56, 62, and 75 cents per hour, respectively, accord-
ing to classification, thus raising the night rates to $4.50, $5, and $6, respec-
tively, per day of 8 hours.

In establishing these different scales for hour, day, and week work, the aim
was, as I have already said, to pay according to merit and efficiency. It hap-
pens that the Times had in its employ for a long time several very faithful
skilled workmen who were advanced in years, and while altogether competent
for their respective tasks, they were necessarily less efficient than younger men.
The office was averse to dismissing these vetermn workmen because of lack of
full speed caused by age, and.therefore offered to-retain them at wages which
they themselves willingly accepted, wages patd on one or the other of the three



5520 REPORT OF COMMISSION ON INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS,

different bases first given herein. These veterans, however, then constituted
only a small proportion of the entire force employed in the composing room of
the Times. They were engaged on daywork mostly.

Other pertinent facts—Collateral statements have been prepared, and it is
proper that I should make here a series of collateral statements relating ex-
clusively to the business and conduct of the establishment during nearly a
quarter of a century past. These several statements are therefore made to
intentionally cover a wide range with the object of showing the operations of
the different departments of our publishing business, and especially including
rayments for labor, which, as I understand, is one of the subjects that the com-
mission is investigating,

Other figures are given for the purpose of showing pertinent and important
collateral facts bearing upon the situation, and necessarily to be included in
the work of supplying full information as a basis for making up a just judg-
ment upon present conditions, as well as upon those which earlier prevailed in
this office, with some necessary exceptions, but always under the nonunion
system,

Substantially among the pertinent facts and circumstances may be included
the strike of 1890. This was a strike against the Times by its then union em-
ployees on the 5th of August, 1890. Only a very brief recital of the facts, how-
ever, and the circumstances leading up to the present status is required at
this late date.

The strike was suddenly precipitated by our union workmen acting in con-
Jjunction with the other members of the local typographical union not in our
employ, The strike was ostensibly undertaken because of the refusal of the
owners and managers of the Times to yield to a demand of the local union
that its members, or those of them in our employ, should be given the right
to practically displace the management in their composing room. They were
required in the ultimatum issued by the union to submit to arbitrary, unwar-
ranted, unjust, and humiliating 1rules and keep all nonunion men out of the
establishment and advance forthwith to a fixed rate of wages and a guaranty
of continued control of the union in the composing room, with a chapel at-
tached. The strike came after a single day’s warning and on the very eve
before a publication day, with the hope and expectation that the managers
would yield rather than miss an issue, The other daily newspapers in the
city—three—yielded to the strikers—two at the end of a day, the other at
the end of a month. The Times alone refused to yield. It stood gast and defied
and defeated the strikers. It has been a nonunion office ever since, or, more
strictly speaking, a Printers’ Protective Fraternity office.

This is a body of organized labor of the better sort, which has no afliliation
with either the international or the local typographici#l union. Members of
this reasonable and dependable organization have been chiefly employed by us,
together with other nonunion workmen during the entire period since the
unwise and unjustifiable strike of that long-ago period—a strike that was con-
fessedly regretted by the strikers themselves.

A serious boycott promptly followed the strike, causing loss and annoyance
to the office and some disturbance to general business. Merchants and other
advertisers were systematically and viciously pursued and proscribed for
patronizing the Times. Some of them suffered themselves to become temporarily
Irightened. Others yielded to the industrial terrorists. This condition went
on for a considerable time, but gradually the merchants recovered their nerve,
and one by one took their stand against organized labor and industrial des-
potism, the increase of which was then seriously undertaken in Los Angeles.

Fear of an enraged and proscripted unionism largely passed away. Trade
resumed its normal frame, and for years past Los Angeles has been free from
the domination of lawless unionism, the only sort of unionism that has been
assailed by us. The employer, like us of the Times, never resents or assails
law-abiding and falr-acting unionism, and very many unfortunate union men,
deserving men who have been displaced, losing good positions, who might now
be at work, possibly earning good wages had the folly of 1880, the indefensible
strike, never been committed.

Earnings and operating erpenses—During the 23 years for which exact sta-
tistics are available the gross earnings aggregated $18,445,519.41, and operat-
ing expenses during the same period, the same years, were, all told, thirteen
million

Chairman Warsm. What were those years?



OPEN AND CLOSED SHOP CONTROVERSY IN LOS ANGELES. 5521

Gen, O11s. The 23 years last past, up to September 30, 1913. The operating
expenses were—in which last set of figures are, of course, included payments
of wages and salary asnounting to the gross aggregate sum of $5,807,034.50, as
already stated.

During our last preceding fiscal year the gross earnings amounted to
$1,937,353.62 and operating expenses $1,671,900.60.

Advertising—In the nine years preceding September 30, 1913, the Times
printed 496,613 columns of paid advertising matter, with a gross income of
$10,030,359.75 from that source. These figures are given for the purpose of
showing whether the business men of Los Angles have been backward in sup-
porting a pronounced, bold-speaking, nonunion newspaper, and shows whether
they have been afraid to patronize the Times because of its upstanding posi-
tion on the labor question. Coming down to the present, these figures are
given: During the 10 months ending July 31, 1914, the advertising earnings
aggregated $1,068,757.51. E

Circulation—Aggregate number of copies circulated in the year ending
September 30, 1913, 23,314,624 ; daily net average, 53,700 ; net Sunday average,
86,770. Income from circulation during the same period, $420,654.29; cost,
$323,152.38. Daily circulation (August, 1914), 56,682; Sunday ecirculation,
91,038 ; average daily decrease over the same month in the preceding year, 220
copies; average Sunday decrease, 6,411 copies.

As in the case of the advertising earnings referred to, these facts concerning
circulation are cited to prove the claim that the Times is fairly popular in the
community and fairly acceptable to a population, a vast majority of whom are
men and women who work with their heads or hands, or with both. The
circulation of the Times is substantially net and paid for, the *“free copy
habit ” not being encouraged.

White paper.—Quantity consumed in the last preceding fiscal year, 18,507,604
pounds; cost, $492,084.24.

Dividends.—In the 25 years ending September 30, 1913, the dividend paid by
the Times to its stockholders aggregated $1,599,970.50. This piece of inside
information is not given boastfully or with any desire to parade the comfortable
fact, but is disclosed “merely as an evidence of good faith,” and for the pur-
pose of showing that the establishment has been moderately successful in
repelling the ravenous vulpine from the threshhold. During all these years the
Times has received nothing in the way of gifts, subsidies or * windfalls,” but
has legitimately earned all the moneys shown in this statement, out of which
it has paid its way in every particular—and * then some.”

Destruction of the Times Building.—This tragic disaster, which occurred on
the morning of October 1, 1910, resulted in a total money loss, as nearly as could
be calculated and estimated after the disaster, of a little less than $509,000,
offset by insurance (all promptly paid) ageregating $264,069. There was
salvage in the way of presses, etc., rescued, to the amount of $49,000. The
total cost of the restoration of the equipment destroyed in the mechanical
department was $1S2,148.82, aside from the building, This is a sensitive sub-
jeet, and I made it very brief.

The new Times Building.—Besides paying a modest dividend each year, as
already shown, and paying the highest wages to skilled labor, we had managed
to save up something for a rainy day, and these savings were put away under
the head of “reserve fund.” The rainy day, or more properly the fiery day,
came, as already related, when the first Times Building was destroyed through
the combined and wicked agencies of union labor conspiracy, dynamite and
fire, with an aggregate gross loss of more than half a million dollars, and,
saddest of all, the wiping out of 20 precious human lives—the lives of loyal
and brave nonunion workmen who manfully stood fast at their posts during the
perilous hours of death and destruction.

More inside facts—The matter of efficiency and economy.—As bearing upon
this very important matter, I offer the following pertinent statements:

1. The Times sets from 15 to 20 per cent more display and classified adver-
tising, news, and other reading matter every month in the year than does any
other Los Angeles paper.

2. It employs a less number of workmen by 10 to 15 per cent, therehy prov-
ing greater efficiency on the part of its nonunion workmen.

3. It uses 32 linotype machines /in /its  composing room, and our linotype
operators, working on piece basis at the rate of 114 and 13 cents per thousand
ems, respectively, earned an average last year of from $5.50 to $7.50 per night
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of 7 hours, while the union scale for the same class of work in Los Angeles,
fixed on a time basis, is $5.50 per night of 8 hours. Thus it will be seen that
the nonunion man earns more money in shorter hours of employment, and that
the employer gets more work done with less equipment and a less number of
workmen than does the union concern; which facts prove that conditions are
better for the employee and better for the employer in the Times shop than in
the closed shop.

4. The Times pays nothing for work not done; that is to say, nothing for com-
position covering space occupied by picture cuts, maps, matrices of advertise-
ment set elsewhere, etc. The rule expressed in the following words has heen
in operation for years: ‘“ No payments to any class of workmen for time not
worked or serviee not rendered.”

5. The average pay received by our operators would be considerably greater
than it is were it not for the fact that we are retaining many old men who
are not capable of turning out anything near the result that they formerly pro-
duced.

6. Our nonunion system 11.1s been so attractive to outside printers that we
receive very many applications from expert hand compositors and linotype
operators from far and near, who, being exceptionally efficient, seek to secure
employment where efficiency and loyalty are rewarded ; they preferring to have
employment on a piece basis rather than be held down to a flat hour or day
wage in closed-shop offices, where they must banish all hope of higher compensa-
tion, no matter how strenuously they may apply themselves. To illustrate:

7. Not a few union printers employed in wunion or closed-shop offices in
Los Angeles have from time to time applied to the Times for employment during
the last 20 years. Recently two young linotype operators employed by another
local newspaper applied to the Times for employment, stating that they wanted
to surrender their union cards and become permanent employees of the Times
linotype operating room. When asked for their reasons for wanting to make
a change, the spokesman for the two young men replied that he was a fast
operator, declaring that at the Times piece scale he could average from $7.50 to
$8 per night of seven hours; that he had been located in the union office where
he had been working between two slow operators, who, even on the Times piece
scale, would not be able to make over $3 per night of seven hours, and that
he was tired of bringing up their average (indirectly) and earning their money
for the “ slow ones.” In other words, he declared, that he and his companion
were ambitious young mien, and that it was rather repulsive for them to be
held down to the level of inferior working, with no hope of anything better in
the future, or any opportunity to receive compensation in proportlon to the
amount of work that they were able to turn off.,

8. The Times workmen are prosperous and contented—cheerful, loyal, hope-
ful, and dependable. Many of them live in their own houses, and our rela-
tion with them are good ; theirs with their employvers likewise.

“ Organized ” labor—The * closed shop.””—Do I dispute the right of labor to
organize? No; I do not, and never have I disputed it, all allegations to the
contrary notwithstanding., In all these years of dispute, contention, ignorance,
delusion, and bad blood on the part of its antagonists, since the year 1890 the
Times has never editorially attacked organized labor as such, or because it
was or is organized. It has steadily opposed and attacked the lawlessness and
despotism of organized labor when it has shown itself to be guilty of these
grave offenses, which, unfortunately, has been all too frequently, as the entire
country knows. It is the offenses, the erimes, the despotism, and the monstrous
and inherent spirit of monopoly which possesses and obsesses unruly organized
labor so largely that I have assailed day in and day out. It is the systematic
proscription by the unions—by many branches of organized labor generally—the
firce antagonism to free, independent, nonunion labor that constitutes the wide-
spread and dangerous menace to personal rights and industrial freedom, and
to the principal industries of the United States, that have alarmed thinking
and patriotic citizens. Herein lie the great offenses to liberty and law. and to
the true welfare of the country, committed with the amazing effrontery by
“organized ” labor so called. So, when asked whether I dispute the right of
labor or of workmen of any class to organize, I say “No; provided the
organization be on strictly legitimate lines—that is to say, within the limita-
tions of law; and, provided furthermore, that the policies and practices of or-
ganized labor be consistently conducted within those necessary legal lines.”

But when asked my ¢opinion-of /the wisdom, the e‘:pedlencv and the actual
benefits of “organization” in the long run I answer in the negative not
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believing in these affirmations. I think that free labor—that is to say, inde-
pendent, unshackled, nonunion labor—is the true condition, and that it results
to more good to the workman and his family, to his employer, to the trades
and industries, and to the country itself than does union labor, even when law-
fully conducted. TUnion labor demands a monopoly in each and all of the
trades wherein it may secure a foothold; and this demand is neither fair,
lawful, practieable, expedient, nor beneficial when we take into consideration
the true interests of all the people, including the workmen themselves, the
employers, the capitalists, and the industrial operators upon whom labor must
depend for steady employment at fair wages; for it is steadiness of employ-
ment—work the year around—that the workman * needs in his business.”

Strikes and boycotts.—The evil of frequent strikes confronts all too fre-
quently the employer, the workman, the manager, and the capitalist. It is a
great evil. It retards progress; it disturbs the industries; it interferes with the
carrying out of contracts; it fetters and restricts production; it results in for-
feitures and loss of money by contractors and employers; it begets needless
idleness; but, worse than all, it harmfully affects the workman himself by
throwing him out of employment, frequently against his will, annihilating his
pay envelope, and driving him and his family in too many cases to undeserving
poverty and distress.

All of these evils are avoidable, and it should never be within the power of
“organized labor ” to bring such evils upon other workmen as well as upon
themselves through the baleful device of the strike.

Any individual workman has the individual right to strike peacefully if he
does not like his employment or his employer. I have never disputed that right
whenever the striker feels moved to “ move on.”” But when the strike is under-
taken by masses of workmen acting in conspiracy and accompanied by violence,
coercion, picketing, assaults, and the beycott, it becoines organized crime. The
boycott itself is absolutely indefensible, and both in its primmary and secondary
forms, has been declared illegal by the United States Supreme Court as well as
by minor Federal and State courts. There is not, and can not be, any such
thing as a * peaceful boycott.,” In the very nature of the case, & boyeott is and
must be lawless and unjust denial of the legal and personal rights of the person
or thing boycotted—one or both.

Question. “ But is labor net justified in organizing for its own protection?”
If the organization be lawful and not monopelistic, despotic, or proscriptive, I
answer “Yes.” But it is so often devoid of these saving qualities that little
or no real or permanent good comes out of present-day organization in the long
run. The eonflicts, the strikes, the bad blood, the assaults, the violence and
sure idleness and nonearning results which are the bad achievements of the
strike, make the wisdom, the expediency and practical good flowing from the
present-day organization of labor, when coupled with the * closed shop” ex-
tremely doubtful, if viewed courageously, broadly, and judiciously. The losses
in a general and protracted strike I undertake to declare will when fairly
footed up more than offset the gains through any advance in wages, or any re-
duction in hours, even when these results are achieved, which by no means
follow every labor battle. So that the striker is a sure loser in the endl.

The evil of labor monopoly.—1 beldly challenge the narrow and selfish labor-
union pelicy of undertaking to monopolize the industries and gather them into
the hands of the organized few as against the unorganized many. This policy,
besides being unlawful and unfair, is a demonstrated detriment to the whole
body of American industries. It is not limited industry and restricted produc-
tion that labor as a whole needs; but it is expanded, enlarged industries, and
unfettered activities, coupled with increased production in all legitimate lines,
that the whole country and all its people, workmen of all shades included, are
most in need of. The solidarity of the industries and the best interests of the
country go hand in hand, they demand the same peolicy, producing the same
results; that is to say, the utmost possible production, yielding the utmost
possible wealth. Can industrial produetion be foreibly restricted without a
corresponding restrietion in wealth production and the comforts of good living
which all worthy workers alike are entitied to? The broad poliey of sound
industrial economy demands freedom of action, unfettered aectivities, and un-
restricted production in all industrial lines,

The better way—Industrial freedom.—As T eontend and have successfully
maintained, free, indepemdent; nonunion, unfettered labor is the true condition
for the free-born, unenslaved American workman te live under. He has the
right to be free under the Constitution and the laws of his country—free te
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work where and when he will, in his own trade and pursuit, when engaged to
any employer of his choice, and at such wages as the two, standing face to
face, may mutually agree upon. Such a contract has the full force of law
whether written or unwritten. * Collective bargaining” is not legally neces-
sary, though practically convenient at times. The independent workman
acknowledges allegiance to no union or labor combine whatever, and bows down
to no walking delegate who may “ walk ” up to him in an auto and undertake to
give him orders. He is not a *“ joiner,” and pays no dues unwillingly, and
stands no dread of being brought up with a jerk by the walking delegate or
the union for exercising his indefensible right under the laws of his country
to pursue any honest avocation of his choice in a lawful way, fearing only
God and the laws of his country. When protected by that authority, as he is
entitled to be, he is able to secure abundant employment at fair wages, to sat-
isfy his employer, to avert idleness, want, and distress, to win his pay check
when the day and the month are done, and to support his family and himself in
comfort and self-respect. And thus he has no fear for his future, and no need
of the so-called * protection of the union ”—an eclusive thing, which is more or
less of a delusion. He is a free workman, a free citizen, and & worthy son of
the Republic.

The wunion card.—If any narrow-browed and hidebound unionist sends
hurtling back at me this chronic question: “ How can the workman be sure
of employment unless he carries a union card?” I answer that he has the guar-
anteed right, personal, legal, and natural, to seek employment as a free man,
card or no card; and if the despotism, proscription, and monopolistic practices
of so many of the unions were prohibited by law, as they should be, then the
nonunion workman would have not only an equal chance with the union work-
man, but he would have a better chance and more favorable opportunities, be-
cause employers have become immeasurably tired of being dictated to, opposed,
and controlled in the lawful mfanagement of their business and their estab-
lishments, and therefore they welcome the coming of dependable nonunion
workmen to take the places of unreliable, dictatorial, shirking, and striking
union laborers.

Once let the law-abiding employer be assured of the protection of the law
against the violent strike and the indefensible boycott, which protection should
be his always, and may be counted upon to become a steady champion of the
open shop, even if he goes no further in that direction.

But more important than the strike, the boycott, or the rate of wages and
their effects upon the employer is the sure result of freedom in the industries
to the workmen themselves, The independent, nonunion workman does not
strike, he does not boycott, and he does not denounce, proscribe, and fetter
his own employer by recalcitrant conduct. Having no strikes to contend with,
no boycotts to carry on, and no-idle days to confront because of these evils,
he goes on as a busy employee instead of 2in idle one; he loses no time unwill-
ingly or because of having been ¢ ordered out.” He gets in more days of work
in 2 month or in a year, on the average, than does the uncertain, belligerent,
mobilizing, and striking union workman; and at the end of a year he finds he
has earned a greater volume of money during the preceding 12 months than
does the man who takes orders from the union’s walking delegate and strikes,
loses time and his job, and disobeys the commands of the law even if he
escapes its custody. Moreover, he has saved money in other particulars. IIe
has paid out nothing for dues, fines, assessments, contributions, or *‘ bitter
beer.” He has a home of his own, either paid for or in the process of liquida-
tion; he has contributed nothing to the pocket of the leeching walking dele-
gate. In brief, he is better off because of his robust, steadfast, stalwart, non-
unionism, and is vastly more self-respecting.

The folly of industrial fetters—I also openly challenge the wisdom, the ex-
pediency, the legality, and the rightfulness of organized labor when coupled
with its demand for the closed shop. No citizen seeking to earn his liv-
ing by his labor can lawfully be deprived of that right by the edict or the
action of any private labor combination—by any authority less than the law
itself. When such an attempt has been submitted {o the test of the courts it
has gone down in defeat and dismay. Union men nvay strike to their hearts’
content, if the striking be peacefully done, but they can not deprive nonunion
or independent workmen of the right to seek, receive, and carry on any legiti-
mate employment under agreement with the employer. Can a union work-
man secure wages, malke money,. or dispel idleness, through the preposterous
process of voluntarily stopping work and getting his name off the pay roll?
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The strike inevitably ends:-in enforced and needless idleness, dimminished pro-
duction, wealth destruction, and the deliberate throwing away by the work-
man of wages not earned, but which he might have received had he only held
onto his job. What folly this is.

It is industrial warfare that directly produces these deplorable and unjust
conditions. And I declare unhesitatingly that they are almost without ex-
ception needless. The employer must be free and his workmen must be free.
The employer must thrive if his workmen are to thrive, all working hand in
hand in the creation of industrial activity and production.

Industrial unrest—what is the chief producing cause of it? Not those peace-
ful, rational conditions in the industries which I have here depicted, but the
very opposite, the conditions so largely growing out of militant trade-unionism,
which, if it were able, would m'ake the closed shop universal throughout the
land, thus monopolizing, or attempting to monopolize, American industries in
the hands of a few workers—Iless than 15 per cent of the whole body of labor—
a thing impossible, 4

But these flagrant wrongs and undeniable evils are not all. The closed shop,
the strike, the boycott, and the bludgeon, when summoned to the aid of des-
perate and militant unionism, as has been done in countless cases, are notori-
ously lawless devices, inevitably producing that industrial unrest which is now
the subject of official inquiry. s=w<es= .

It could not be otherwise. It is the law-defying minority undertaking to
dominate, coerce, proscribe, and persecuting the law-observing majority, which
restrains itself because of its respect for liberty and law. These practices here
condemned could do nothing less than produce industrial unrest. Moreover,
such conditions result in no good to the disturbing unionists themselves. They
put an end to employment during long periods of time, paralyze the pay roll,
create needless idlenesss, disturb and disorganize the industries, vastly dimin-
ishing production and profits, also so essential to the property of employer and
workman alike, to the business and to the country.

The true remedy.—The obvious remedy is industrial freedom—that free, law-
protected right of all laborers and other workmen, without distinction, to law-
fully seek and secure, without tax or toll, any employment of their choice upon
even terms, and without restriction or interference by any private labor com-
bine, or by any power whatever lower than the laws of the country or the
authority of its judicial and executive oflicers.

Anything short of this is a species of industrial despotism, repugnant to the
Constitution and the law, to the Declaration and to the natural rights of man.
These great bulwarks of individual guarantee and defense must be maintained
by our free working citizens—by all citizens in fact—in the face of private and
irresponsible labor leagues, orders and organizations, acting contrawise, unless
we are actually prepared to suffer still more steps in the direction of industrial
anarchy, misrule, and unrest to be taken in these United States.

Abolish union-labor monopoly, discrimination, and wviolence, the denials of
employment to all nonunion workers, and other flagrant evils of the dictatorial
closed shop, and there will result work for all at fair wages; accelerated pro-
duction and increased personal comfort will speedily follow, succeeded by the
disappearance of the public soup kitchen and the elimination of industrial un-
rest. The objection may possibly be advanced that.there are not enough non-
union workmen in the entire country to carry on its industries. No fears need
be harbored on this score. When nonunion workmen are given the protection
to which they are clearly entitled under the rule of law and justice, there will
come a mighty accession to their ranks from the closed-shop camps, which are
literally honeycombed with members who will break away when they once
find that they can better their condition under the sound system of freedom
in the industries.

There will be work for all workers. The great industries, the mighty fields
of production and supply, the measureless channels of trade, the busy hives of
manufacturing and commerce and trade—all will need to be manned by willing,
eager, free, and unfettered American workmen, because the United States of
America has work to do. Her workmen, tradesmen, producers, and people are
surely destined to receive a loud call to work for the world henceforth. Shall
we not prepare to answer the coming call?

Conclusion.—These matured convictions of mine, based upon close observa-
tion and long experience, make me-doubt- the recessityy the efliciency and prac-
tical benefits of trade-unionism as it exists in this country to-day when coupled
with its demand for the closed shop. TUntil both shall have been radically
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reformed they will continue to be a menace more or less serious, to the great
industries and to the country. As a broad proposition, neither can be defended
on national, just, and true economic grounds by either workmen or employers.
Organized labor is not essential to the industries and could not make headway
against free unorganized labor were it not bolstered up by monopoly, force,
and proscription, frequently accompanied by violence and outright lawlessness.
Though anything like a sudden change of the two systems might be accompanied
by some embarrassment to the large industries at the outset, the business sys-
tem and industrial population would speedily adjust themselves to the new
order of things, because it would surely prove to be a better order and a better
system.

I am submitting these statements in writing by permission and upon invita-
tion of the commission, through one of its proper officials, and I have aimed to
make them as practical, direct, authoritative, and compact as is compatible
with the nature and importance of the subjects traversed.

HARRISON GRAY OTIS,
President and General Mawnager The Times-Mirror Co.,
and Editor Los Angeles Times.

Chairman Warsa. Mr. Garretson would like to ask sonie questions.

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. I<want to preface my two or three questions, Gen-
eral, with the statement that my organization is an organization composed of
pieceworkers wholly. That there is not an instance on record where that
organization has ever requested an employer to discriminate against a nonunion
man. Therefore, it is from that standpoint

Gen. Ot1s. That organization is exceptional, and I am glad to know it.

Commissioner GARRETSON. It may be exceptional in that direction, but those
are the facts and they are easily proved. You speak of.the respect to which an
employer is entitled asa free and independent man.

Gen. OTtrs. He is.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Is he entitled to any respect as an employer unless
he measures up to the standard of what an employer should be—if unjust em-
ployer, is he entitled to any respect?

Gen. Oris. Certainly not. No unjust man is entitied to respect. I am as-
suming employers with good motives and good actions, and they are entitled to
respect and are not slaves in the presence of their workmen, They are not
compelled to yleld everything that is demanded of them.

Commissioner GarretsoN. Then, in reality, they are entitled to respect be-
cause of the fair treatment they accord and not simply because they are em-
ployers?

Gen. Orrs. Well, they are entitled to respect as employers because they
occupy an important place in industry and because they perform an important
work and perform an important service to the men under them.

Commissioner GARRETSON. And it is in proportion to how well they measure
up in that iimportant respect, that you hold they are entitled to the respect not
only of their own class but every other?

Gen. OT1s. Yes, sir; no dispute about that. I have not disputed it.

Commissioner GARRETSON. What has been the history of pieceworking in the
past as between employee and employer? 3

Gen. Ot1s. Well, the piece system is not applicable to a great number of em-
ployments. In faet, it is applicable only, I think, to a minor number of employ-
ments,

Commissioner GARRETSON. Isn’t piecework—hasn’'nt the attempt been made to
partially establish piecework almost exclusively in the metal trades, for
instance?

Gen. Ot1s. I am not acquainted with that.

Commissioner GArrersox. But where it has been established, what has been
its history in regard to establishing the amount of efficiency that could be se-
cured from the faster man and then making that the standard or minimum for
all, in fixing the price?

Gen. Ot1s. I have endeavored to show that that isn’t fair. A man should be
paid according to his earnings: 1

Commissioner GArrETsoN. Hasn't that been the history of piecework in the
various crafts where it has been established?

Gen. Ot11s. I am not prepared to answer that.

Commissioner GARRETSON,-Now,; to Sshow-you the tendency in that direection:
You heard the witness who preceded you on the stand refer to a little threatened
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trouble between the engineers and firemen of the whole western territory in
dealing with their management, in which the employers’ association here, or
manufacturers’ and merchants’ association, was applied to exercise its friendly
offices by the sending of a telegram. Do you know what was the impelling
cause of trouble in that disagreement, bearing in mind the disagreement is
passed by now, we have signed an agreement to arbitrate.

Gen. Ot11s. 1 didn’t get that question.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You know there was trouble threatened in the rail-
roads in the western part of the country three or four weeks ago?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GABRETsoN. Do you know what was the basic cause of the
trouble?

Gen. Oris. Well, I know it was the usual disagreement that occurs between
employer and employee, the employee making demands that the employers were
not willing to concede.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Are you asware of the fact that there was an at-
tempt to substitute the day system for the piecework system that has operated
on the railroads of this continent for 20 years; that this was the real stumbling
block?
~ Gen, Ot1s. I did not know that.

Commissioner GARBETSON. Are you aware that the whole trainmen, the engi-
neering force, of the continent, is paid on what is known as the time-bonus
system?

Gen. OT11s. Yes, sir; I know in a general way.”

Commissioner GARrersoN. And it was the effort to abolish that time-bonus
system that brought about the disagreement between those crafts. Could you
interpret that any other way than just along the line I have named? Twenty
years of efficiency under the bonus system is now to be used to establish a
day wage which would bring the men less earnings.

Gen. Or1s. Possibly the hours are reduced.

Commissioner GARrReTrsoN. How is that?

Gen. OTt1s. Possibly the hours are reduced in the proposed new system, and
that would affect the question directly.

Commissioner GArRReTson. Is what?

Gen. Or1s. Possibly the hours were to be reduced under the new system.

Commissioner GarrersoN. Under the time-bonus system hours necessarily
enter into it. He is given a bonus of time if he performs a certain stunt in
less than the ordinary time that will be required, and it was the effort on the
part of the company to abolish that that brought about this deadlock that
was referred to.

Now, are not the railroads—possibly the largest single employer on the
continent, the railways—and if that is the case, would not the attitude of that,
the largest employing body, dealing collectively, be a general example of the
consensus of opinion of the average employer?

Gen. Or1rs. It would hardly apply to other employments, because the con-
ditions are different in other employments and the views of the managers are
different and their processes and methods are different; necessarily so.

Commissioner GArreTsonN. I judge you are an absolute believer in the
supremacy of the law?

Gen. Otis. Yes, sir; I am.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Providing the laboring men, organized or unor-
ganized, cause or enact laws, because in the enactment of laws they have usually
acted as a unit, whether they have in industrial matters or not—if following
up the policy of the ballot and not of the bullet, should enact laws that brought
about the domination of those things that the laboring men think is good for
them, at least, what would your attitude be foward those laws?

Gen. Oris. Pardon me. Will you state that once more? I am sorry to ask
you to do it.

Commissioner GarreTsoN. If using the ballot the men who labor——

Gen., OTrs. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GArreTsoN. It don’t matter whether union or nonunion brought
about the very condition which you ecriticize as having been brought about by
union labor, or tried to be brought about by union labor, do secure the enact-,
ment of laws which made all these things you complain of, legal, what would
be your attitude toward that. law? ; .

Gen. Ot1s. I would suffer along Svith ‘t"l'lé'i'lesf untfl the law was repealed.
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Commissioner GARRETSON. And if it was repealed, your subjection to it
would be final?

Gen. OT11s. I would continue to suffer. !

Commissioner GARRETSON. Now, this is a question of opinion. You take the
laws of the world that were enacted covering the relations between master and
servant, the laws of the world—we will draw the line 50 years ago——

Gen, Otis. Isn’t that rather remote?

Commissioner GarrersoN. How is that?

Gen, OT1rs. Don’t you think your questions are rather remote? We are deal-
ing with the present.

Commissioner Garrerson. I have heard we are dealing with both the present
and the future, and I have seen it inscribed by some men other than in the
labor union, that say you judge the future by the past. That is what makes
me base the question there. The laws of the world governing the relation of
master and servant have been in the past enacted by the influence of the em-
ployers, have they not?

Gen, Oris. I think so. We are advancing as rapidly as we can from the
darkness of the past. We are working at it.

Commissioner GARRETSON. I am going to get where we have advanced in a
minute. What I want to get you to do is this: Isn’t it possible that the thinking
laboring man now feels toward existing laws, just as you have expressed your-
self you would feel toward the law that you would suffer under, that he isg
suffering under it until he could amend it?

Gen. Ot1s. That is the duty of every law-abiding man.

Commissioner GARRETSON. It is their right. >

Gen. Oris. It is his duty to stand fast and stand under a law until it is
repealed ; and there is no special virtue in a workingman doing that, or no
special virtue in a capitalist doing that.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Not any special virtue, but it is his undoubted and
inherent right to do it if he can, isn’t it?

Gen. Ot1s. His inherent right to do what?

Commissioner GARRETSON. To secure legislation along the line he desires?

Gen, Otis. No question about that. You don’t need to question ine on that.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. The present social legislation, so called, or union-
ism legislation, that has been passed by the various States or the Nation
within the past 15 or 20 years, has it been secured by the united action of the
laboring man largely or by the united action of the employers largely?

Gen. Ot1s. Neither. 3
E Commissioner GARRETSON. Neither.

Gen. Otis. It has been secured by the average good motives and good prin-
ciples of the community at large, Fair men throughout the country embracing
men of both classes.

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. Who is to blame for the enactment—I am going
to take the most glaring instance—who is to blame for the enactment of what
is described very often by its opponents as the class legislation of the Clayton
Act? Who has either the condemnation of having secured it or the glory of
having secured it, according to the viewpoint of the criticizer? Isn’t it labor?

Gen. Ot1s. I believe so.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. Isn’'t that fairly representative of many of the
so-called enactments" The compensation law, for instance, like the one in your
own State,

Gen. Ot1s. I will say generally on that point, so as to save you from asking
me too many questions

Commissioner GARRETSON. Yes, sir.

Gen. Ot1s. I will say generally any law procured by any class which is in
itself unjust and discriminatory and unjust to another class is not to be
justified. ¥

Commissioner GARRETSON. But if it is in existence is it to be bowed to?

E Gen. Ort1s. Is it to be what?

Commissioner GARRETSON. Bowed to and lived up to by all?
Gen. Oris. Yes, sir. 1 believe in the sentiment of Gen. Grant who said if a
law is odious let it stand until it is repealed, and repeal it as soon as possible.
~ Commissioner GarrersoN. But conform until you do repeal it?
. Gen, OT11s. Yes, sir; no doubt about that.
; Commissioner GARRETSON. Just one other question, that is in regard to what
labor has done in the matter of the bétterment=~what labor organizations have

'done for wages. I am going to ask you in your own craft. In the past 25
| SlaCogr £
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years or so the composing-room men and those allied therewith have been
organized generally, have they not? What is known as the allied printing
trades. What have they done in the betterment of wages in 25 years for their
men? Increase of the sum paid and shortening of hours?

Gen., OT11s. I ean’t answer for the allied printing trades or the union side of
the question. I can answer for ourselves.

Commissioner GARRETsON. Then for yourselves.

Gen. Ot1s. I have already answered. -

Commissioner GArrersoN. What Is the per cent of increase to the individual
man in any one of those trades? The compositor, what is the comparison be-
tween what he was earning 25 years ago, or what he was paid 25 years ago,
and what he is paid to-day?

Gen, Ot1s. Twenty-five per cent,

Commissioner GarrersoN. Twenty-five per cent?

Gen. Or1s. Somewhere in that vieinity. I can figure it out for you.

Cominissioner GARRETSON. Now, in regard to another craft where there has
bheen no organization, also connected with a paper. ITow much increase in the
same period has there been in the pay of newspaper reporters, who are nhot
in this country, I think, organized? I only know one or two places where they
are, or a few places,

Gen. Oris. My answer to that would be very general, and I am not—I could
not pretend to——

Commissioner Garrersox. Well, what is the general going pay for them then
and now?

Gen. OTis. I should say 15 to 25 per cent in the 25 years of my experience.

Commissioner GagrreTsoN., You think they have advanced as fast as the
organized trades?

Gen. Otis. I should say very nearly.

Commissioner GArrersoN. From your experience is that true of organized
and unorganized labor in general?

Gen, Otis. Well, as I have stated generally and repeat, high wages on a non-
union bhasis are entirely possible. They are paid to efficient workmen under
conditions where the proprietor and his men come together with a good mutual
understanding, and where there is no restriction on the proprietor paying—no
restriction on the eflicient workman demanding extra pay, and no restriction on
the proprietor paying it. In other words, the classifications are more dis-
tinct and more pronounced in nonunion labor than they can be under union
labor.

Commissioner GageersoN. Well, are those classifications as a rule downward
or upward?

Gen., Ot1s. Well, I think they are upward. I can answer for ourselves that
they are upward.

Commissioner Garrersox. There I would ask as to the generality of it, not
for your own establishment.

Gen. O11s. In the nature of the case, sir, I could not answer that.

Commissioner GArrersoN. Well, wouldn’t any other plan be a little like an
answer a gentleman gave in Frisco the other day, a very large employer and a
strong—well, I will call him an open-shop man. That will describe him to you.
I asked him the question, in regard to another matter, if organized employers
had ever done a certain thing, and he said it was not human nature that they
should, Now, isn't it human nature that if the limitations are not on the
employer, that are placed there in greater or less degree by organized labor,
that he would—the average man, because the workman and the employer is
usually made of the same clay—isn’t it human nature that he would take the
opposite view of the man himself and naturally classify downward instead of
upward?

Gen. O11s. Well, the best answer to that, sir, is that the great law of supply
and demand governs and should govern.

Commissioner GARrRersoN. Don’t supply and demand always fail to govern
when there is an oversupply of one of the factors? The testimony shows that
there is a hundred thousand men here——

Gen. Ot1s. Well, if there Is an oversupply, wages go down, No use to dis-
pute that.

Commissioner GARreTsoN. What?

Gen. Ot1s. If there is an oversapply, wages ‘go down. If there is an under-
supply, wages go up.

2QQ10°—< Doae 415 C4-1—val f— 90
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Commissioner Garrersox. There you have it. And there has been a great
many instances where the influences of labor have kept it from going down
beyond a certain mark when there happened to be an oversupply of labor, have
there not?

Gen. Oris. I think so.

Jomimissioner GARRETSON. That is really the very object of one form of labor,
is it not—organized labor?

Gen. Otis. What you want to get at Mr. Garretson, I can see, is a question
which I have already answered candidly. I said I didn’t oppose the organiza-
tion of labor. 1 oppose its violence, 1 oppose the closed shop. They can
organize as much as they please, but if they use violent methods, restrictive
methods, proscriptive methods, and keep the other man from working, then it
is wrong, grossly wrong.

Commissioner GARRETSON. It resolves itself into this

Gen. Or1s. For instance, I have an equal right with you

Commissioner GARrersoN, How is that?

Gen. Otis. I have an equal right with you to go into the railroad business,

Commissioner GARRETSON. Sure,

Gen. O11s. And try to get a job.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Yes.

Gen, Otis. If I got the job, I would lose it and you would keep yours.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Why?

Gen. Ot1s. Because I would not be competent for it. You would keep your
job because you have been at it so long.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You would probably be even higher up if you had
started when I did.

Gen. Otis. How?

Commissioner GARRETSON. You would probably be even higher up if you had
started when I did.

Gen. OTis. I could make the attempt now. I would not get the job. And if
I did get the job, I would lose it.

Commissioner GArReTsoN. But while you did, let me tell you this, you would
work for just as much money as I ﬂld under the railway system

Gen. OT118. Well

Commissioner GARreTsoN.. If you could do it at all.

Gen. Otis. That might be the best system. I think the railroad company
would be a great fool for paying me as much as they paid you.

Commissioner GARRETSON. As a pieceworker, if you could do it at all, you
would get the same money 1 did.

Gen. Oris. These questions are very useless. They don’t lead anywhere.

Commissioner GARrersoN. Well, this one may get somewhere. [Laughter.]

Chairman WaLsH. Let us have order.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Isn’t organization, or hasn’t organization been the
law of man since they first found out that two men could roll a stone that one
could not?

Gen. O1is. Why, I think so; yes.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Good. That is all.

Chairman WaALsH. Commissionr Weinstock wants to ask a qnestion.

Commissioner WeEINsTocK. 1 wanted to make sure, General, that I understood
your attitude in the matter of labor. What I gathered from the reading of
your statement was this: That you believe that labor has the right—the moral
and the legal righf—to organize.

Gen. Otis. I said so.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. That you—

Gen. Oris. After it is organized it should stay legal.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. Yes.

Gen. OTis. Stay law-abiding.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes.

Gen. Otis. Continue law-abiding in its practices.

Commission WEINsTOCK. Exactly.

Gen. Otis. And unless it does then it is objectionable.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Your opposition is not to unionism, but to unlaw-
ful unionism?

Gen. Oris. Certainly. Yes, sir. Has been always.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. And yet I further gathered from your statement,
General, that you think laboer is unwise in ovganizing; that organization has
not uccomphshed any thing for if.




OPEN AND CLOSED SHOP CONTROVERSY IN LOS ANGELES. 5531

Gen. Otris. It is unwise when the organization is coupled with restrictions
and with the closed shop, because the great thing is to have everybody at work.
Everybody that wants to work in this country should have a chance to work
under fair conditions and under equal conditions in order that all may thrive,
in order that production should be very great, maybe immense, and wealth be
produced on a large scale.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. And is it, then, as the result of your experience
and observation, General, that the organization that is a successful organiza-
tion can go hand in hand with the open shop?

Gen. Ot1s. I doubt it.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. You think not?

Gen. Ot1is. No. For the reason that if organization is not accompanied by
the closed shop and by violence and proscription, it goes to pieces—sure to go
to pieces. If all men work on the same basis and receive the same wages, thou-
sands of union men would not stay in the union, . They would give up their
cards, and they would stop paying dues, and they would stop paying assess-
ments, and they would stand up in their manhood and say: “I am an inde-
pendent American citizen, and I have a right to work, and I will take a chance
with my employer.”

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Then, it is your opinion that the union cun only
exist where the closed shop exists?

Gen. Oris. That is substantially my opinion.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes,

Gen. Otis. I think that

Commissioner WEeINsTock. Of course, by the closed shop——

Gen. Oris. 1 think thls, however. In order to make myself understood, I
think that {f the union had none of these evils attached to it that it would
have a chance to exist, because necessarily there are some employers that
would say: ‘*“ Well, we will stick to the union. We will stick to the old union,
especially as it has reformed.” And In that way, there being no proscription of
the union, either by empoyers or by the nonunion men, the union would have
its chance, its opportunity, and, if it could demonstrate it could do better work
at the same wages, many union men would be employed, and many nonunion
men would me employed.

Commissioner WeINsTOCK. I want to make sure, General, that you and I
define the words “ closed shop ” in the same way. By a closed shop I under-
stand a shop where only union men are employed.

Gen. Otis. That 1s it; exactly.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Where a nonunion man is not retained?

Gen, Oris. No. He is kept out; denied hils rights to that extent.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, now, would you call the railroads—that is,
the employment where they employ conductors and engineers and firemen and
brakemen—are they operated under the closed shop or the open shop? In other
words, so far as you know, do the railroad managers resedve to themselves the
right to employ any man that applies, union or nonunion, or must they employ
only union men?

Gen. Otis. Well, both practices prevail. Right here in this city there is a
railway line——

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. I am speaking of steam railways now.

Gen. Oris. Well, I am speaking of the local, which won’t bave a union an
on account of trouble that they had heretofore, and they seem to get along
beautifully.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. I may be misinformed, but I have been under the
impression that in the railway—in the steam railways all over the country the
managers reserve the right and are practically given the right by the unions
to employ whomsoever they plese, union or nonunion.

Gen. OT1is. Then it is open shop.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. And yet Mr. Garretson has told us, and we all
know, of course, that the railway unions are very powerful, that their organi-
zations are pronounced successful.

Gen. OT1s. If that is true, wouldn’t it, then?

Commissioner WEINsToCcK. That the open shop and unionism can prevail, can
go hand in hand?

Gen., Otis. I want to answer this way: They are practicable; their existence
together is practicable, provided. there jis no preseription on the part of the
union. If any man wauts to belong to a union, remain 31 a union, permit them
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to remain there; they get employment from such employers as are willing to
employ both classes.

Commissioner WeINsrock. That is, where the employer has not reserved the
option to employ either union or nonunion men?

Gen, OT118. Yes.

Commissioner Weinstock. And where he does not attempt to employ non-
union men just simply for the purpose of displacing union men, you believe it is
Possible, then, for the union and the open shop to coexist?

Gen. Ot18, Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You say you are opposed to unlawful unions?
How would you regard the unionist that insists for organization in Los Angeles
to-day to say-—that is, lawful unionists—that is unlawful unionism ?

Gen. Oris. It is generally lawful, because their strikes are rarely—the men
have struck unsuccessfully, as a rule, for many years past.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Have there been any recent acts of violence com-
mitted by unionism?

Gen. OT1s. Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. There has been?

Gen. OTt1s. Yes.

Jommissioner WEINSTOCK. How recently?

Gen. Ot1s. I would say three or four years. Do you want flagrant instances?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. That is your own case?

Gen, Ot11s. Yes; the destruction of the Times Building by an “organized ”
bomb thrower. He was “ organized,” all right. He was not unorganized.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. What frame of mind are we to be left in by that
opinion? Would you say organized labor—say, for the past quarter of a cen-
tury—has done anything toward bettering the condition of the workers or not?
In other words, would they have been better off to-day, in your judgment, if
there had been no organization of labor in this country?

xen. Or1is. That is a matter of doubt, because the good done has heen offset
so largely by injurious strikes, by losses of wages, by violence and suffering—
that is, to themselves and their families. That is a tremendous offset to the
good done,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You believe if it was possible to strike a balance,
put the gain on one side of the ledger and the losses on the other side of the
ledger, that they would substantially offset each other?

Gen. Ot1is. No; I would think that the union man would be under.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. He would be worse off?

Gen, Ot1s. I think it would be a showing against him. I do not think that
the ledger would balance.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That the red-letter figures would be on the debit
side? 5

Gen, OT1s. Yes; sure,

Jommissioner WeINSTOCK, Among the things that we are investigating:

Gen. OTt1s. If you will allow me. I do not want to answer any questions that
are not asked, but let me suggest, if you deliberately count up the tremendous
loss that has taken place in 1, 3, 5, or 10 years through strikes, through boy-
cotts, through idleness, prolonged idleness, months, even years of idleness, that
it would make an immense volume of money loss. I would avoid all that. I
would avoid all that, so I would not have the union man suffering. If he still
wants to stay in the union, let him stay. But the condition ought to be such
that he would be relieved from tremendous losses there. Now, then, take the
man, who, when the walking delegate comes around and tells him he must
strike, he strikes against his will. That is what the man pays.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK., Among the things that this commission is inquir-
ing into is the matter of the workmen’s compensation act. What is your judg-
ment of the workmen’s compensation act, General? Do you think is it a good
thing or a bad thing?

Gen. Or1s. Well, it is very difficult to regulate wages by law.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Not wages; workmen’s compensation.

Gen, Ot11s. Oh, the compensation aet?

Commissioner WeINsTocK. That is, to cover the injuries by accident in in-
dustry.

‘:er{ OTt1s. If the act is right and fair in its operation, I would favor it.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. How has the California workmen’s compensation
act worked out, so far as your-ewi information is-concerned, during the time of




OPEN AND CLOSED SHOP CONTROVERSY IN LOS ANGELES. 5533

its operation, the last six or seven months? TIlas it been a success or a failure,
4s you see it? . .

Gen. Orrs. It has worked out very radically for the benefit of the injured
workman ; there is no doubt about that.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, has it been a serious burden on the in-
dustry?

ren, Oris. Well, necessarily, if it is carried too far. If it is unjust in the
enforcement, the employer suffers.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. Of course, I am speaking of the law as it is to-
day. .

Gen. Or1s. Yes. -~

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. In your own experience have you found It a seri-
ous burden?

Gen., Oris. Well, no; there are not very many cases occurring. We are re-
sponsible to pay the bill and let it go at that.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Have you taken the trouble or have you sufficient
interest in that to compare the cost for accidents in your industry, say, this
year, and the corresponding period last year?

Gen. Oris. No; T have not.

Commissioner WEINSToCcK. You, then, don’t know whether it has cost more
or less?

Gen., Ort1s. No.

Commissioner WeINstock. Do you carry accldent insurance, or do you carry
your own insurance?

yen. OT1s. Well, we carry insurance, you know.

Commissioner WeINstock. Carry insurance with some insurance carrier, I
presume?

Gen. Oris. We know that workmen injured in our service are entitled to
claim damages. We recognize the fact, and we pay them money when it is
assessed.

Commissioner WEINsTock. Well, under the compensation act, General, they
are not entitled to claim damages by law; that Is, they can not bring suit
against you unless you personally had been grossly negligent; but they are
entitled to a certain compensation equal to, I think, 65 per cent of their earn-
ing power if you carry your own insurance, which you say you don’t; of course,
vou would pay that. If you carry insurance in an insurance carrier they are
liable to pay it, and the only burden that would be put upon you would be the
premium you pay to the insurance carrier. If the matter was put to a refer-
endum against the continuing of compensation—workmen's compensation—
would you favor it, or would you be opposed to it?

Gen. Or1s. I would look into it carefully, and If it =vas fair I would favor
it, and if it was an unjust act I would oppose it.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. At this moment you don’t know whether it is
a fair or unfair act?

Gen. Ot1s. I really haven't looked at it very closely. As I say, if anybody
has been injured in our service we have paid the bill and let it go at that.

Commissioner WrINsTocK. That is, you did not before the compensation
act?

Gen. Ort1s. Certainly. Mr. Chairman, you requested from me certain facts
about the wages, skilled labor, in certain departments. Am I correct?

Chairman WaLsH. Sir?

Gen, OTis. You asked me for figures In regard to the payment of skilled labor
in certain departments.

Chairman WaLsH. Yes; in all departments.

Gen. Oris. Well, in all departments.

We have a stereotypers’ room, 7 employees, averaging weekly wage of $22.80.

In the pressroom we have 18 men earning an average weekly wage of $20.70.

In the general mechanical department, over which there is a foreman, we
have 7 men earning an average weekly wage of $22.05.

I will give you in somewhat more detail the composing room. Here it is
in somewhat more detail: In the stereotyping room we have 1 man at $38.45
a week; 1 at $27.50 a week; 1 at $24 a week; 1 at $19.50 a week; 1 at $18 a
week ; 2 at $16 a week ; making an average, as I have before glven, of $22.80.

In the pressroom we have 1 man at $35 a week; 1 at $30 a week; 2 at
$28.50 a week; 1 at $25.50 a'week 1 ut $24 a’week; 1 at $22.50 a week; 1
at $21 a week; 2 at $18 a week; 1 at $16.50 a week; 7 at $15 a week; tfotal
number listed, 18; average, $20.70.
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General mechanicians: Number of men employed at a weekly rate by the
week is 1 at $43.35; 1 at $24 a week; 2 at $21 a week; 3 at $15 a week, and
the total number in that department is 7, averaging $22.05.

Shall I leave this with the commission?

Chairman WarsH. Prof. Commons would like to ask you some questions.

Comiissioner CoMmoxns. These are for eight hours a day; how many days
a week?

Gen. Ot1s. They are for eight hours a day; extra pay for extra time.

Commissioner Commoxns. How many hours a week?

Gen. Otis. Forty-eight. We have a six-day basis.

Commissioner Coymyons. Do they make much overtime?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes; frequently.

Commissioner Commons. Do they work more than six days a week, take
the piecework?

Gen. Otis. Unless there is an emergency.

Commissioner CoMmaoxns. Is there anything to prevent a man working as many
days a week as he wishes?

Gen. Otis. We don’t like to have him work seven days.

Commissioner ComyMons. Do you have any rule on that subject?

Gen, OTt1is. Yes; we issued an order a great many years ago to reduce, except
in cuses of emergency, the days to six. And that reduction was accompanied
with no reduction of pay, so that it was an advance at that time. ;

Commissioner Comymons. What form was the order issued in that no one shall
work more than six days?

Gen. OT1s. As you are particular about it, I will say it was an order I wrote
or telegraphed from Washington the day Maj. McKinley was inaugurated.

Commissioner ComMons. How was it framed—no man shall work more than
six days?

Gen. Otis. Certainly ; the rule to be six days’ work, not more,

Commissioner ComdyoNs. Are there any considerable number that work over
six days now?

Gen. O11s. No. 4

Commissioner Commons. What was the linotype price when you first installed
the linotypes; in 1896, wasn’t it?

Gen. Otis. Eighteen hundred and ninety-three, the time of the first.

Commissioner CoMmdons. What was the piece rate; about?

yen. Otis, I think it was 12, 14, and 15 cents.

Commissioner Comdoxs. When you started it was 12 and 14 cents?

Gen. Ot1s. Yes; and 15 cents for a certain class of type.

Commissioner CoMaons. It is about that now?

Gen Ortis. Less than that.

Commissioner Commoxs. Eleven and a half and

Gen. Otrs. Thirteen.

Commissioner ComaonNs. Do you know how much the men, comparing the
output of the men, how much it has increased? What could they earn at that
early rate or those early rates?

Gen. OT1s. Well, I have answered from five dollars and a half to seven dollars
and a half, seven hours, at the existing rates.

Commissioner Coammons. At the present time?

Gen. OT118. Yes.

Commissioner Commons. Ten years ago, did they earn the same?

Gen. Otis. No. Well, I would have to look at the figures to see, I would
have to go back and see what they earned at the rates then pald. But they
earned higher wages in a nine-hour day.

Commissioner Commons. Give us the figures, say, for 1900, 1901, 1905, and
the present time, what they would earn.

Gen. Ot1s. I can get the figures.

Commissioner Commons. Give us the figures, please.

Gen. Otis. Yes. !

Mr. Chairman, I will demonstrate a little more precisely than I did in my
written statement the measure of efliciency reached by our workmen on the
machines, on the linotype machine, as compared with union offices employing
workmen by the week, and our rule, which is invariably the piece rate, and
some union offices who have been under that rule universally, as I understand it.
I have some means of ascertaining very closely what the difference is in the pro-
duction of our 32 machines,; with.a, less. number of men, and the production of
a union office, so as to discover the truth of the claim that we have greater
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efficiency, more output, with a less number of machines than union offices work-
ing on the other basis. In brief, showing the higher rate for men and greater
economy for the office.

Chairman WaArLsH. Mr. O'Connell says he has some questions he would like
to ask.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Do you employ union men in your plant, members
of the typographical union?

Gen. Oris. No; we do not,

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Do you employ any union men; do you put any
union men there, if you know they are union men as such?

Gen. Ot11is. Sometimes there are union men in our art room and in the press-
room,

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Are they asked the question when seeking employ-
ment whether they are members of the pressmen’s union or the typographical
union, as the case may be?

Gen. Ot11s. Yes; asked the question flatly.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. If they admit that they are?

Gen, Ot1s. We don’t employ them,

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Then, you are not running an open shop; you are
running a nonunion shop?

Gen. Oris. We are runing a nonunion shop.

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. You are a printer by occupation, or were at one
time?

Gen. OTt1s. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Are you a member of the union?

Gen. Ot1s. No; I am not.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Were you at any time? {

Gen. Otis. A long time ago I was. I was a member in Washington City.

Commissioner O’'Cox~NeLL. What purpose led you to join the union at that
time ; under compulsion, or was it of choice?

Gen. OT1s. T guess it was the folly of youth, as near as I can recall.

Commissioner O’CoxNeLL. What is this Printers’ Protective Fraternity that
you employ?

Gen. Ot1s. It is an organization of printers formed perhaps about 20 years
ago—25 years ago, originally in Kansas City, formed with the declared object
of departing from the union. They have never struck and never boycotted.

Commissioner O'CoxNeELL. Did you have an understanding, written or oral,
with this organization as such?

Gen. Otis. We had an understanding when they first entered our service
imnmediately after the strike of 1890.

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Is this organization organized of ex-members, of
suspended and expelled members of the International Typographical Union?

Gen. Ot1s. Although I don’t know, I think they were mostly union printers
ot one time,

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. And their purpose is to not strike when they are
employed, but take the place of strikers who may quit work?

Gen, Ot1s. Their purpose is to be free,

Commissioner O’ConxeLL. With that organization you have an understanding?

Gen. Otis. Yes; we employ them,

Commissioner O’CoNnNELL. But none with the regular?

Gen. Ot11s. No; not the——

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Recognized organization?

Gen. Or18. None whatever,

Commissioner O’ConNELL. That is all.

Chairman WarsH. That is all. Thank you, General, unless there is some
statement you have or some point you have not covered in your statement or
by these questions.

Gen. OTtis. One statement that is not important, but in order to make my
statement about the strike of 1890 complete, there are two or three facts in
regard to that matter I will state, if you desire. After the strike, 18 months
after the strike took place, there were some overtures on the part of the union
to effect a reconcilliation, and the outcome was that we took back, under proha-
tion, so to speak, five men, with the distinct understanding that they brought
with them no unionism, no demand for any observance of union rules, and they
conformed to our rules and accepted our pay, which was equal to the union
rate. That went on for 18 months, and ‘at the end of 18 months these men
were drawn out by the union, and since then there have been no other union
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men in the establishment if we knew it. I make those statements to qualify
niy written statement. Since then the Times office has been a nonunion office,
Chairman Warsu., That is all.
Call your next.
Mr. Maxry. Charles T. Scott.

TESTIMCONY OF MR. CHARLES T, SCOTT.

Chairman WarsH. What i your name, please?

Mr. Scorr. Charles T. Scott.

Chairman WavrsH. Pitch your voice up high. The auditors would like to
hear what the witnesses say. Where do you live?

Mr, Scort. 111 South Fourth Street, Alhambra.

Chairman WarLsH. What is your business address?

Mr. Scorr. 608 Hibernian Building, Los Angeles.

Chairman WarLsH. What is your business?

Mr. Scorr. At the present time representative of the International Typo-
graphical Union,

Chairman WaLsH. Are you an organizer for that union?

Mr. Scorr. Organizer, representative, and various phases of their business I
look after.

Chairman WarLsH. How long have you been a member of that union?

Mr. Scort. I joined the international union in February, 18SS.

Chairman WaLsH. You are a printer?

Mr. Scorr. Printer; yes, sir.

“hairman WarsH. How long have you been in Los Angeles?

Mr. ScorT. One year, permanently.

Chairman WarsH. Where did you live prior to that time?

Mr. ScorT. About four years in Cleveland.

Chairman WALsH. Before that?

Mr. ScorT. About five years in Boston. !

Chairman WavisH. Have you held any official position in your organization
except organizer?

Mr. Scort. I have been an officer of local unions, such as president of Cleve-
land union for several terms.

Chairman WarLsH. Have you held any positions with the international?

Mr. Scort. I worked for the International Typographical Union almost five
vears in New England, between 1904 and 1909.

Chairman WarsH. Now, have you made a study of the typographical union
dispute with the Los Angeles Times?

Mr. Scort. I have, to the extent that I have gone over the cituation from its
inception, as it has been handed to me by members of the union who were here,
and from such information as I could gather. That is a part of my business.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, I wish that you would, as concisely as possible, Mr.
Scott, give us the story of the typographical union’s dispute with the Los
Angeles Times from the beginning down to the present time.

Mr. Scorr. That is, Mr. Chairman, you desire the history of the dispute of the
organization, without discussing these other three questions that were put
to me?

Chairman WarsH, I will ask you those after we see how much comes out by
your recital ; then possibly I will ask you some other questions.

Mr. Scorr. The trouble with the Los Angeles Times occurred in 1890. There
were four papers in the city of Los Angeles at that time, and those four papers
put up a proposition to Los Angeles Typographical Union, No. 174, for a reduc-
tion of wages. The organizatlon passed upon those points that were put up to
them and at the same time heard discussions on the floor of the union from the
employers of the various—or representatives of the various newspapers. The
organization, after the representatives of the various newspapers had retired
from the room, voted that they would not accept a reduction at that time and
served a notice on the employers that the next day, the business day, they were
to renew the present agreement. While this trouble with the Los Angeles
Times has been styled the strike of the Los Angeles Times, it is a matter of
record that it was a lockout on the Los Angeles Times, the Herald, Tribune, and
the Iixpress. When the men went to work the next day there were men who
were not members of the union at work, showing that this had been expected,
anticipated, because it developed, that word had been sent to Kansas City by
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wire asking for the importation of mén who were members of the so-called
“ Printers’ Protective Fraternity.”

To my knowledge since I have been a member of the International Typo-
graphical Union there has been an organization of the Printers’ Protective Fra-
ternity in the city of Cleveland, and later in Kansas City, in Milwaukee, in
Montgomery, and in the city of Los Angeles. At the present time there is no
organization known as the Printers’ Protective Fraternity outside of the city of
Los Angeles. These men came on here and took the places of the men who were
locked out of those respective offices. In a few days the matter was settled on
the Tribune, and in a question of about three weeks the matter was settled on
the Express, and at the expiration of 10 weeks an agreement was reached with
T.os Angeles Typographical Union by the Evening Herald whereby that office
also became a union oftice. That made in the city of Los Angeles three union news-
papers and one nonunion newspaper. The Tribune of that time was not the
Tribune of the present day. The matter went on for some period of time. The
union used its endeavors to induce the Los Angeles Times to agree to some work-
ing basis, as the other papers had. The usual methods were engaged in by the
organization, and I suppose the usual methods were engaged in by the Times to
combat the effort of the organization to unionize their plant.

Eiforts were made by circularizing the public through the local organization
fo make the members of the trades organizations and the citizens of Los
Angeles aware of the fact that there was trouble between the typographical
union and the Los Angeles Times. I think, as near as I can obtain from some
of the older men who came out of the Times and are at present in the city of
Los Angeles, that after about a year the Los Angeles Times and the organiza-
tion concluded that it was about time to settle the difliculty. These men
claimed to me that an arrangement was made whereby the difficulty was to
be settled. The peace feast was held between the officials of the Times and
members of the organization were induced to withdraw the boycott from the
T.os Angeles Times, and that the organization did do it with the understanding
that the office was to become a union institution. That proposition was car-
ried out by the International Typographical Union, but not by the Times. That
takes the matter up to along in the early nineties, when, as I believe was stated
here, there was a business depression at that time, and naturally the organi-
zation as well as other organizations had a hard thne for existence. Now, we
will pass over the few years. And the statement was made on the stand this
morning that Mr. Arthur Hay was imported into the city of Los Angeles
by the Ameriecan IPederution of Labor to conduet a boycott in connection with
the Times.

Mr. Arthur Hay was sent to the city of Los Angeles by the International
Typographical Union. The Los Angeles Typographical Union desired that the
proposition be placed in the hands of the international to see if something could
not be done to make that office a union Institution, bearing in mind all the time
that No. 174—Typographical Union No. 174—desired to settle its contest with
the Times and operate that establishment, if they were so willing, on the same
basis as were the other newspapers of the city of Los Angeles, who seemed
to be satisfied to operate their composing rooms under union conditlons and
under a union agreement made with the typographical union. But as to the
statement that Mr. Hay came here—suflice it to say, Mr. Hay came here, and
the contest against the Times was probably resumed with a little more vigor
and energy on the part of the local organization. There developed during
this contest with the Times, of course, certain bitterness. While on that
point, as was stated from this seat earlier in the day, that in connection with
the labor troubles in Los Angeles certain inflammatory literature had been
published by certain people, and it was asked that that be made a part of
the record. I desire to read a few lines for the record; I desire to read to
the commission a few lines taken from an editorial from the Los Angeles
Times. This editorial was published at a time when labor organizations were
under considerable discussion in the city of L.os Angeles. Certain heads of the
labor movement were being denounced almost daily in the Los Angeles Times,
and it was at that time there was something like 35 feet a week published
condemning labor organizations and those connected with labor organizations.
I believe this will serve to show that all the inflammatory literature was not
published by the trade-unions [reading]:

“ The unselfish purpose of Gompers in including himself in the three or four
who will consent to be hanged for the good of the cause can not be too greatly
commended. If he will allow the Times to designate those who will adorn
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the gallows with him, it will promise them all obsequies where they will have
the time of their lives during the hanging, and it will further promise that
their carrion shall either be converted into ashes for the fertilization of
prison weeds or else buried with chloride of lime or other-disinfectant at such
place as.they may select—anywhere, anywhere out of the way.”

I merely introduce this to show that all of the literature which was published
to lead the public to heated argument was not published by the trades-unionists
alone.

Now, it must be remembered that all this thme that this trouble was going
on the local typographical union was desirous of settling the controversy. For
the past dozen years the International Typographical Union has been signing
up most all the newspaper establishments of this country to union agreements.
Agreements entered into between the employers’ organization and the typo-
graphical union, which agreement does away with strikes, lockouts, and so
forth, and setles everything by arbitration. We have only to point to the
long period of industrial peace in the newspaper field to show that it is a good
agreement. Of course, it is a human document, and is therefore not perfect.
But I desire to say that if the warring nations of Europe had an agreement at
the present time one-half as good as the working agreement of the Interua-
tional Typographical Union and the American Newspaper Publishers’ Associa-
tion the workmen of the Continent to-day would not be clutching at each other’s
throats. I am satisfied that we would have as great industrial peace as we
have had in the newspaper field for the last dozen years or more,

Now, this agreement provides that any member of the American Newspaper
Publishers’ Association who operates a union shop can make agreements with
the local organization under the jurisdiction of the International Typographical
Union. It says that that agreement during the life of it shall be lived up to
in its entirety. Neither side can break that agreement; no matter what is
done by either side, the men stay at work. If one side would openly violate
that agreement there would be no cessation of work in the office, and if there
was, their places would be filled by members of the International Typographical
Union. Even at the expiration of a signed agreement there can be no strike
while another agreement is pending between the two contracting parties. It
is just about as good an agreement as it is possible for a human document
to be at this time.

If there can not be any settlement eached between the local organization and
the newspaper that is vitally interested, then the matter goes to national arbi-
tration. That National Arbitration Board consists of three members of the In-
ternational Typographical Union and three members of the American News-
paper Publishers’ Association. It is a progressive document in this way that
no outsider is called in to reach a final adjustment. The adjustment of the
whole matter must be made by the six, and it must be made within a certain
length of time. There has been only one or two instances in the last 13 years
where agreements were not reached within the regulation time. So much for
the union agreement.

Now, considerable was said here on the stand with regard to the union shop,
the closed shop, and the nonunion shop. I want to submit to the conmunission
that, as far as the newspaper industry in the city of Los Angeles is concerned,
it is conducted on the union-shop basis, and on the union-shop basis only, and
there are no open shops in the newspaper industry in this city of Los Angeles.
There are six daily papers in this city, and five of them are conducted along
the plan of collective bargaining with the loecal typographical union, and the
other shop is conducted on a strictly nonunion basis. The open-shop proposi-
tion—that is, the so-called open-shop proposition—does not enter into it at all.
The Los Angeles Times is strictly a nonunion newspaper, for various reasons.

Members of the typographical union could not worl there without first de-
stroying their union cards. And very few members of the International Typo-
graphical Union are ready to tear up their union cards for the privilege of
working on the T.os Angeles Times, where the wages don’t begin to eompare to
the other five union newspapers in the city of Los Angeles.

The union newspaper scale in the city of Los Angeles calls for a seven and
one-half-hour workday. The wages are $32 a week for morning newspaper
employees—that is a minimum wage; and the minimum wage for evening news-
papers is $29 a week for seven and one-half hours work. So an office that
works eight hours and operates its machine room on a piece basis and pays
its advertising men all;the; way from) 43 cents up to G5 cents can not be com-
pared in any way with a shop operating on the union basis. And for that
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reason the Los Angeles Times has a strictly union composing room. The
other five newspapers in the city of Los Angeles are strictly union composing
roons.

Chairman WarsH. You meant nonunion in the first instance, the Times. You
said that the Times was strictly union. You meant strictly a nonunion institu-
tion? ;

Mr. Scorr. Strictly a nonunion institution, and the other five papers are
strictly union institutions.

A great many people have been led to believe by reading editorials in the
Times from time to time that that paper advocated what is known in Los
Angeles as the so-called open shop. The paper in itself is a strictly nonunion
composing room. And taken from the report of Gen. Otis to the Times-Mirror
Co., written in October, 1905, defending the labor policy of its office, it says:

“So far as we are concerned, the Times stands unalterably upon the strictly
nonunion basis that it assumed years ago. As far back as the year 1890 we
refused in the face of a printers’ strike and a boycott to yield to the industrial
marplots, despots, and labor monopolists, and we still refuse. We raised the
standard of revolt then, and that standard is still fiying, the emblem of indus-
trial freedom and a menace to industrial tyrants.”

And regarding its attitude toward organized labor, in the same pamphlet a
little later on it states to the effect that the Times had taken organized labor
by the throat.

Leading down to the early nineteen hundreds, when the situation regarding
the Times and the typographical union in this city became the most acute, it
probably would be well to have something to say regarding the manner that
the typographical union conducted that contest.

Now, I want to submit at this time that this contest, while one party has
declared the case closed, as far as the International Typqgraphical Union is
concerned, it covers a period of almost a quarter of a century, and is still on.
It has been stated here this morning by Mr. Zeehandelaar, I believe, that to his
knowledge—or by Mr. Otis, T don’t know which—to his knowledge there had
been no acts of violence on the part of the typographical union in its contest
with the Times. I want to state that I know of no instance, I haven’t been
informed of any instance covering a period of a quarter of a century where
any member of the international union has heen brought before the bar of
justice for doing an overt act in connection with the contest against the Times.
Now, remember, I am confining this to the membership of the International
Typographical Union and its particular contest with the Times. So much for
that part of it.

Now, that leads down to where the organizations, the Central Labor Council
of which the typographical union was a part, took up the contest against the
Times and decided to come to the front and make the fight a little more open
than it had been. Various means were used, such as circularizing the public.
Labor meetings were held. Members of labor organizations were informed as
to the attitude of the Times. And on account of the interference on the part
of the merchants and manufacturers’ association, it was decided to try to
induce some of the advertisers in the ILos Angeles Times to withdraw their
patronage from that newspaper. That was done by publicity propositions,
mentioning the fact before labor meetings and eircularizing in different ways.
I am sure there was nothing attempted at that time except in a peaceful way
to bring our case and our position before the public of Los Angeles and vicinity.
There was one store, the Hamburger store, that was considered by the organi-
zation the most vulnerable point of attack. I will say that a boycott was insti-
tuted against that institution whereby it was endeavored to induce that com-
pany to withdraw its patronage from the Times, for the simple reason that
the working people of the city of Los Angeles were of the opinion that through
their past patronage they had made the Hamburger store what it really was,
and that the least the Hamburger store could do was to help them in their
contest with the Times.

Now, regarding the effect of that boycott, I am sure all will agree at the
time that the boycott was withdrawn by the Centrat Labor Council, that the
boycott against the Hamburger store was most effective. The time came when
the trade unionists of this city, members of the International Typographical
Union, went before the Central Trades Council, and the boycott on the Ham-
burger store was withdrawmn., - It.was taken off .with the hope that possibly a
settlement could be reached.” But as developments proved, no such condition
turned out. And just the minute that the labor councii of the city of Los
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Angeles took the boycott off the Hamburger store, then the merchants and
manufacturers’ association, in conjunction with the Times, got exceedingly
busy talking about an open-shop town in Los Angeles and paving the way to
make the fight against other organizations. How they figured out in any way
that the International Typographical Union was anything less than a prosper-
ous organization in the city of Los Angeles certainly can not be figured out by
those who know its history.

The organization to-day has a membership of over 550 and is steadily grow-
ing, and controls all but one newspaper composing room in the city of Los
Angeles. Agreements have been made with those papers and they will shortly
be up for renewal, and I dare say that the publishers of those papers will again
sit down and talk over the questions in dispute with representatives of the
local typographical union, and again renew contracts with the organization,
simply because it has insured industrial peace in the printing industry to the
five union newspapers in this locality. Aund the same thing holds good with
the local typographical union in connection with the Los Angeles Times.
Although the fight has been of a duration of 25 years, all kinds of bitterness
has been brought into the struggle, yet the typographical union stands ready
at any time to sit down and talk over with ‘representatives of the Los Angeles
Times anything that they care to, looking to a settlement of the long-standing
controversy, and doing away with all disputes of like nature in the future. The
typographical union stands ready to do that at any time.

Regarding some of the other questions that were brought up and submitted
to me, in connection with the Los Angeles Times proposition, was the question
of sympathetic strikes. Now, there is no record of any sympathetic strike
in connection with the typographieal union’s contest with the Times. We
made that our fight. We financed it as our fight, and we have kept it up as
our fight ever sinca. We asked, at no time did we ask the other trade organi-
zations doing business either with the Times or working with the Times
establishment to go out on strike to support the contention of the typographical
union. No sympathetic strikes were asked for by the International Typo-
graphical Union.

There was one other question which came up in connection with the
contest against the Times, and I desire the commission to know
why the typographical union kept up this contest for so great a length of
time, and that was that the Los Angeles Times instituted a school for the
teaching of machine operators. And for what purpose? For the purpose of
filling places that would be vacated by union men in various localities in time
of trouble. Not only did the typographical union consider that an unfair
proposition, but it also considered it an unfair proposition from this point,
that the Times used that matter that was set up by these learners on machines
and sold it, according to advertisements in their own newspaper, to printing
plants in the trade at a reduced cost of composition, thereby barring out the
printers in the local field here from getting the local composition work becanse
it was done cheaper in a.learners’ school operated by the Los Angeles Times
and advertised in that paper.

The Chamber of Commerce of the City of El Paso, Tex., found it convenient
and so much cheaper tohave its annual report set up in the Los Angeles Times
composition school that it sent that job here from El Paso to the Times compo-
sition school, where the composition was done, in preference to having it done
in the city of LKl Paso, either in a nonunion shop or in a union establishment.

For a considerable length of time the advertising of this school stated that
rates would be furnished on application at the school for learners on machines.
Machine operators were to be taught during the period of three months, so
the advertisement claimed. ;

Now, there were other features entering into the contest against the lL.os
Angeles Times which were put down on the slip that was sent to me by Mr.
Manly. One of them was, “ What was the attitude of the merchants and manu-
facturers’ association during this contest against the Times?”

Now, to define in one instance all the attitude of the merchants and manu-
facturers’ association, of course, would be hard to do without connecting the
attitude of the Times—or the attitude of the merchants and manufacturers’
association and the policy of the Los Angeles Times. And so that there can be
no differences of opinion regarding the attitude of the merchants and manufac-
turers’ association during this long-standing controversy—and the same atti-
tude applies to other controversies which happened later—I will read this from
the annual report of the merehants and, manufacturers’ association.
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Chairman WarLsH. Say, Mr. Scott, we have adopted a rule that unless the
document to be read is shorter than the explanation would make it, that all
documentary evidence must be submitted without reading.

Mr. Scort. Well, this, I should judge——

Chairman WarLsm. Just deseribe it, and it will be put into the record, and then
the commission will read it.

Mr. Scorr. This was taken from the annual report of the merchants and
manufacturers’ association, and was an exposition of their nine years’ attitude
toward labor conditions in the city of Los Angeles. Shall I turn it over to
the clerk?

Commissioner O’CoxNeLL. How long will it take you to read it?

Mr. Scort. Why, about two minutes.

Chairman Warsu. Go ahead and read it.

Mr. ScorT (reading) :

“The association has for nine years protected the employers from the arro-
gant and unjust demands of the labor unions and labor agitators. It has given
1o the employers its moral and financial support whenever strikes have been
declared, and it has successfully conducted the struggle for freedom and inde-
pendence. It is pledged to the principle of the open shop and will tolerate
no discrimination against honest American workmen who desire to receive
fair wages for an honest day’s work, and it will always demand equal rights
for all. It will tolerate no interference of agitators and strike breakers, and
will protect the employers in their rights to conduct and manage their own
business as they see fit.”

And their open-shop policy has been all through that struggle the closed shop
to union men.

Chairman WAaArsH. We will pause here now, and the commission will stand
adjourned until to-morrow morning at 10 o’clock.

Will you please resume the stand?

Mr. Scorr. Thank you.

(Whereupon, at the hour of 4.30 o'clock p. m., an adjournment was taken
until 10 o’clock a. m. of the following day, Wednesday, September 9, 1914.)

Los ANGELES, CAL.,, Wednesday, September 9, 1914—10 a. m.
Present : Chairman Walsh, Commissioners Weinstock, Garretson, O’Connell,
and Commons. W. O. Thompson, counsel,
Chairman WaLsH. The cominission will be in order.
Is Mr. Scott present?
Mr. ScorT. Yes, sir.

TESTIMONY OF MR. CHARLES T. SCOTT—Continued.

Chairman WarsH. You may resume. I think when you left off you were
telling us about the part played by the M. and M. disputes.

Mr. Scorr. I desire to offer a clipping which states the position that the
merchants and manufacturers’ association played in the labor dispute in this
city.

Chairman WarsH, Is it a short one?

Mr. Scorr. I will turn it over to the stenographer. I would like to say a
word
Chairman WarsH. You had better read it if it is short, otherwise we will
have a description of it. Use your judgment. If it is short, you can save
time by reading it; always do so. Our rule is this, that we are willing to let

you read such things if they are short.

Mr. Scorr. Yes. During the M. and M. dispute here one Los Angeles paper,
the Los Angeles Evening Record, espoused to a considerable extent the cause
of the working people of this ecity; that is, they asked for a suspension of
judgment until such time as matters could be cleared away. For that rea-
son the paper was boycotted. This was the answer of the editor of the
Record :

“ (Gentlemen of the Market Place: You are fighting with the weapons you
have been trained to believe most effective. You have declared that unless
the Record betray the cause of organized labor, you will cancel your adver-
tising contracts and ruin us financially. Some of you have already cut out .
your business; others of you have,cut down, your: space; still others have
declared their intention of cutting out as soon as opportunity offers.
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“ Very well, gentlemen, this may be your idea of ‘ business,” but the Record
is not controlled by business, thank God! and this is our answer to your
threats: We are going to carry the banner of ‘ Human rights’ right up to the
ramparts of ‘Industrial greed,” if need be. We are not going to be intimi-
dated or scared or put out of business.”

And T will state that their advertising patronage to a large extent was
withdrawn from that paper.

Mr. MaNLy. What was the date of that, Mr. Scott?

Mr. Scort. That was—I haven’t got the date right now, Mr. Manly, but I
can get it.

Mr. Manvry. I thought it was on that clipping.

Mr. Scorr. The statement is frequently claimed from time to time that the
wages paid in nonunion shops, or in so-called open shops, are equal to or
superior to those paid in union shops. I desire to bring before the commis-
sion a striking example of this phase of the question. Using the figures
given by Gen. Otis, of the nonunion Times, and taking those paid in the five
union newspapers of Los Angeles, we find this condition: The Times’ schedule
as read by Gen. Otis was on a graduated basis of 53 cents, 60 cents, 62 cents,
and 75 cents an hour. That, of course, would not include machine composition,
which in the Los Angeles Times office is done on the piece basis.

Taking the low rate—the 53-cent rate—working for seven and a half hours,
which is the union scale of Los Angeles—which is the rate paid by the Times
office—the amount would be $3.98. The rate in the unlon daily newspapers
in Los Angeles is $5.33.

Taking the second rate of 60 cents, working on the seven-and-a-half-hour
basis, a man would earn $4.50 in the Times office and $5.33 in a union news-
paper office in Los Angeles.

Taking the third rate, 62 cents, an employee working seven and a half
hours in the Los Angeles Times office would earn $4.65 and in a union news-
paper office he would earn £5.33.

Taking the 75-cent rate, which I deem is the rate paid the foreman of the
institution, the pay would be $5.63 on the seven-and-one-half-hour basis. In
a union composing room in Los Angeles the pay would be $8.33.

The Times schedule for the four different rates of wages, working the same
numebr of hours as the union establishment works, would be as follows: Times
schedule, $3.98, $4.50, $4.65, $5.63. The union schedule paid on the other five
Los Angeles newspapers: $5.33, $5.33, $5.33, $8.33.

Now, something was also stated on the stand here regarding the efficiency of
the employees in the different offices Now, while it is true that in the union
newspaper offices a strictly time scale prevails, that is, linotype operators, hand
compositors, floor men, make-up men, bank imen, all employees of the composing
room work on a time basis; therefore the local organizations, in conjunection
with the employers of these five union newspapers, made an agreement which
stated that the minimum rate of wages should be $5.33.

Remember, I stated minimum, In the union newspaper offices an agreement
was also reached as to what constituted a man’s competency. Now, to say all
men in the newspaper office would be put on a dead level is an absolute impos-
sibility. It is impossible for men working on a newspaper to do the same
amount of work. It is impossible for anyone to say that you could restrict the
output on a newspaper of this man or that man. It can’t be done. There are all
kinds of work to be done. Each man has his work to do, and he goes to it aud
does it and turns it out. The only thing is that the unions and the employers
have agreed that if a man reaches a certain state of competency, then he
shall not be discharged for being an 1ncompetent workman, although he does not
do as great amount of work as some other man in the composimr room. That is
why the minimum scale was established.

Now, while it is a fact that the operators are being pald on the piece basis in
the Times office, the scale was claimed—or rate of wages received would run
from five and a half to seven dollars and a half a night for a seven-liour day.
I want to submit that if all the members of the commission were linotype
operators they would find out how difficult it would be to attain an average of
nine or ten thousand an hour.

Machines at the present time are not keyed up to that amount of output. It
is possible, of course, for & man to reach that by having certain * phats ”” handed
him as special favors and things of that nature. But the union scale is a time
seale, while the linotype scale in the Times office is on a piece basis. I believe
that covers the difference of 'wages paid-in, the'monunion Times and In the five
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union daily newspapers. That is a point that I wanted to make clear to the
commission, as 1 find that it is generally touched upon by alinost all those who
appear, the difference in wages under union conditions and under nonunion
conditions.

in one of the questions that was—or one of the topics that was submitted to
me for a going over was one covering conditions in union institutions and in in-
stitutions conducted as open shops.

As 1 stated earlier in my testimony before the ecommission yesterday after-
npoon, as far as the International Typographical Union is concerned, we do not
recognize in any way the open shop. A shop must either be a union shop or a
nonunion shop, and consequently our dealings are with those publishers—and I
am glad to admit that they constitute almost all the publishers of the United
States—who conduct their business on a union-shop basis. Consequently, I am
only familiar with those conditions that prevail in the union shop and in the
nonunion shop.

1 will state that conditions in the union shops in the city of Los Angeles are
considered very favorable by the employees of those institutions. We get along
harmoniously with the employers. We have collective bargaining, which insures
industrial peace from year to year. And it is very little friction that ever comes
up over the renewal of wage scales or change in working conditions. We sit
down with the employers, talk the matter over, and adjust it among ourselves,
and there can be no strike or lockout in our trade where the arbitration agree-
ment is used by both the American Newspaper Publishers’ Association and by
the typographical union. Those are the conditions that prevail in the union
shop.

Chairman WarsH. I think that was intended to compare a shop such as the
Times with the union shopg, and that you have already done with respect to
wages. Now, anything else, any other conditions that are different that might
make for satisfaction or dissatisfaetion, if you have any in mind, just state
them, please, outside of wages and hours.

Mr. Scortr. I can readily see how the employees in working In a nonunion
shop, provided they did have a grievance, would have a hard matter in present-
ing that grievance without working a hardship on themselves. I have in mind
something that was said before this commission yesterday on the way an agree-
‘ment had been made in the Times office, either verbally or otherwise, with an
organization known as the Printers’ Protective Fraternity. I would like to say
that the only organization of that character in the United States at the present
time is located in Los Angeles, if it can be styled such at this ime, The organi-
zaion is composed of men

Chairman WarsH. I do not want to interrupt you, but I think you have
stated that; that is, that it started in Kansas City, Birmingham, Cleveland, and
other places:

Mr. Scorr. Montgomery.

Chairman WaALsH. Montgomery, I mean; and it now comes down to this time,
and now comes down to Los Angeles. Go ahead, if you have anything

Mr. Scorr. I would like to state, with the permission of the chairman, some-
thing of the personnel of that organization.

Chairman WALsH. Very good. Anything you have not gone over we will be
glad to hear you on.

Mr, Scorr. The members of that organization are members almost exclusively,
except those who have gone into the business since the original lockout on the
L.os Angeles Times, who were members of the typographical union. They were
men who for various reasons were either expelled from the organization, or on
account of other reasons were refused adniission to the organization. They
were men who took a special delight in traveling around the country whenever
an opportunity afforded, especially where there was labor trouble on, and receiv-
ing temporary additional benefits that are paid by most institutions that look
for the aid of the strike breaker in time of trouble.

The organization is composed almost exclusively of that class of people.
Many of them I knew personally in the eastern section of the counttry. In Los
Angeles, I am free to admit, I am not acquainted with many, but I am with
some, and as this trouble here has lasted over such a long period of time, it is
only fair to say that a great many of the men now working in the Times were
not in at the birth of this organization, but have gone to work there since this
trouble started and have become affiliated with it since that time.

I believe that covers what I desire to say on that point of union-shop cen-
ditions and nonunion-shop/ econditiens:,
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While on the stand I am very thankful for the statement that the printers
have not been guilty of violence during our controversy with the Times. The
feeling against the Times on the part of our mewmbership is just the same as
against any other publication that we as an organization deem had dealt with
us unfairly, and to prove this statement we have only to point to the attitude of
the members of the Los Angeles Typographical Union who through their organi-
zation volunteered our services at the time of the destruction of the Times
Building to get out the Times as a newspaper until such time as that paper
could organize its own force and secure proper equipment. 'That offer was
officially recognized by the management of the Times at that time. That was
the attitude of the typographical union toward the lL.os Angeles Times at the
time of its destruction.

As was stated on the stand here by Gen. Otis, his principal objection to labor
organizations was the strike and the boycott. Now, the International Typo-
graphical Union has pointed out a way whereby peace could be settled between
the Times and the local typographical union, through a document which does
away entirely with strikes, and consequently is not followed by a boycott.
Where there is no strike there consequently can not be a boycott. Now, we have
such an agreement, and we are perfectly willing to take up that agreement with
the Times.

As a representative of the International Typographical Union officially I will
state that we are prepared at any time to get together with the Times on a basis
of settlement on the union agreement which does away with the very things that
have been found as objectionable.

It is only fair to say that during our 25 years’ controversy with the Times that
both sides probably have been guilty of things that were not possible according
to proper ethics. We have, both sides, made mistakes; but I believe we have
perfected the organization up to the point whereby we can get together with
any newspaper and settle any differences that we have without resorting to the
cld-time method of strikes or lockouts, and that is the position of the Inter-
national Typographical Union, for just as long as there is printing done there
will be organizations of printers known as typographical union organizations,
and in reaching any kind of an agreement that organization will have to be
veckoned with of necessity. {

I believe, Mr. Chairman, that concludes what I have to say before the com-
mission.

Chairman Warsu. Mr. Weinstock would like to ask you a few questions.

Commissioner WeINsTocK. In looking over your testimony as given before the
comimission yesterday, among other things, Mr, Scott, I notice this statement,
which you emphasize this morning; and you say there was no case of violence
on the part of the typographical union in its contest with the Times: “ I want to
state that I know of no instance—I haven’t been informed of any instance cover-
ing a period of a quarter of a century where any member of the international
union has been brought before the bar of justice for doing an overt act in con-
nection with the contest against the Times.”

So much for that part of it. 'Was that correct?

Mr. ScorT. That is as correct as I can gather.

Commissioner WEinsTocX. I have a note addressed Ly Gen. Otis to Mr.
Walsh reading as follows:

“The bomb that destroyed the Times Building was set by James B. Me-
Namara, a union printer.”

Mr, Scorr. Absolutely not true, Mr. Weinstock, to my knowledge.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. What are the facts, Mr. Scott, as you know them?

Mr. Scorr. I am not familiar with the instance of the destruction of the
Times, but as regards to the membership of the man, only that I know that at
that time it was claimed he was a member of the typographical union, which
was denied by the officials at Indianapolis.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. And your answer to that is Mr. McNamara was
not a union printer?

Mr. Scort. Was not a member of the typographical union; yes, sir.

Commissioner WeINsTock. May we ask, Mr. Scoft, what are the talking
points that you present for a nonunion employer to induce him to unionize his
plant; that is, what inducements can you offer, what advantages can you point
out to the employer, would he be permitted to enjoy that he does not enjoy as
a nonunion employer, if he unionize his organization?

Mr. Scort. I believe that is general, and if there was no particular strong
point in it—I believe that the International Typegraphical Union has demon-
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strated, Mr. Weinstock, that within the ranks of that organization are to be
found the competent printers of this country, and that as a newspaper is re-
quired to be produced every day and is required to have a certain eflicient
force, I believe that I—at least I would endeavor to show to an employer that
he would be better qualified, would be secure against any labor trouble by mak-
ing his office a union office. He would avoid the opportunity of having a strike
in the office, providing he conformed to the arbitration agreement, as well as
would the union, and that from time to timme when grievances arose, he would
be in a position to settle them with a responsible organization; that the typo-
graphical union has demonstrated that even where its membership on a few
oceasions, which is not unnatural, have seemed determined to violate a con-
tract, the organization has stepped in and prevented that taking effect and
seeing that the man was protected in getting out his paper.

Now, there might be several things that would come up that could be talked
about, with an employer, and I should judge a great many of those would be
covered by local conditions.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Now, yYou were present yesterday, Mr. Scott, when
Gen. Otis testified?

Mr. Scorr. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Among other statements swbmitted wuas one that
the union seale of wages was, I think, $5.50?

Mr. Scort. Five dollars and thirty-three cents is the minimum union scale.

Commissioner WEINsTock. And that his men were earning from $5.50 to
$7.50 a day. Have you any reason to dispute that statement?

Mr. Scorr. No, sir; I haven’t any reason to dispute it, and I have no desire
to dispute it. What I do know is this, and I had slightly explained it in my
testimony, that the way they earn $5.50 to $7.50 a day was that they were work-
ing on a piece basis. They were setting a very large amount of type for this
money, which I believe I could easily explain to a linotype operator, who would
know about how high a machine could be speeded up. Now, if working seven
hours a man should earn $7.50 and setting type for 11} cents a thousand ems,
he would consequently have to set between nine and ten thousand ems of type
per hour. Now, I want to say to this commission that that is almost a physical
impossibility. I know there are no set of men doing that anywhere in the
world. I am a linotype operator myself.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. Well, you may also recall Gen. Otis’s statement
that he had in his employ, I don’t remember how many, but a per cent of his
organization had been with him for a great many years.

Mr. Scort. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTock. IFifteen or twenty or twenty-five years.

Mr. Scorr. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WeinNsTtock. Now, if this so-called speeding up prevailed, could
those men last that many years?

Mr. Scorr. In answer to that, Mr. Weinstock, I want to say that I don’t
know the personnel of the composing room of the Los Angeles Times, but I am
satisfied that there are no operators on the Los Angeles Times who have been
working on machines for 15 or 20 years and are setting nine or ten—nearer five
or six thousand ems an hour. Very few, there might be exceptional cases.

Commissioner WeINsTock. Do you know of any instances on the Times where
men were earning less than the minimum of $5.33 a day?

Mr. ScotT. Oh, yes; the men that are receiving 53 cents an hour are receiving
less than the minimum, and the men receiving 62 cents an hour are receiving
less than the minimum. There is only a small proportion of the Times com-
posing room who are linotype operators.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. I presume when Gen. Otis said his men were
earning from $5.50 to $7 a day

Mr. Scort. He meant linotype operators.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. Do you know of any instances where linotype’
operators on the Times earn less than the minimum?

Mr. Scorr. I have no knowledge or means of knowing that, except as I have
been told from time to time by men working for the Times, men who came to
my oflice and have spoken about conditions at the Times office and have inquired
about joining the typographiecal union, and in getting into a discussion with
them, of course they have made all kinds of statements, statements that I don’t
want to be responsible for repeating.

Commissioner WeINsTock. If this commission should ask Gen. Otis to submit
under oath a statement of his actual earnings of his-linotype operators for the
Jast year or two, that of course would be sufficient proof of the exact earnings?

88819°—S. Doc. 415, 64-1—vol 6——30
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Mr. ScorT. I should think so; yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Now, if we are to accept Gen. Otis’s statement as
presented here yesterday, were he to unionize, the following results would
follow : First, the elaim is that his operators are earning on an average 15 per
cent more than the operators in the union shops; second, his claim is that he
is handling his work with from 15 per cent; that is, he has 15 or 20 per cent
more adyertising matter than any other newspaper in the community, and
handles that 15 or 20 per cent more advertising matter with 10 or 15 per cent
less help. Now, for him, for example, to make a change and to accept the
union conditions, would mean the candle burning at both ends, unless his state-
ments are in error. It would mean he would have te cut down the earnings
of his workers 15 per cent, and would have to increase his pay roll 10 or 15
per cent, and have to decrease his output from 10 to 15 per cent.

Mr. »SC()TT I see.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Would you or I as good business men do that?

Mr. Scorr. Well, T will tell you, Mr. Weinstock, that I would have to be
governed entirely by the conditions which surrounded me at the time a propo-
sition of that kind was put up.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. If these were actual facts, would you want te do
that. Would you wang to cut down the earnings of your men 135 per cent, and
would you want to cut down your own profits 15 per cent and decrease your
output 15 or 20 per cent?

Mr. Scort. Well, in the first place I would know that I didn’t cut down the
pay of my men, but by unionizing the establishment I was virtually increasing
the pay of the men in the office. Simply because a few inen in that institution
are enabled through a system in vogue there to earn a little more than a man
delivers in a union office, is not conclusive to me that the wages are anywhere
near equal.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Well, then, it is a direct challenge, Mr. Scott, be-
tween you and Gen. Otis. He says they do earn 15 per cent more, and you
say you doubt it. 2

Mr. Scorrt. I beg your pardon, Mr. Weinstock, I think you misunderstand. I
don’t say that the machine operators don’t earn what Mr. Otis says they earn,
because I don’t know. But I think that the linotype machine operators are only
a small proportion of the force of the Times composing room.

Commissioner O’CoN~ELL. How many linotype machines are there?

Mr. Scort. There are 32 linotypes.

Commissioner O0’CoNNELL. And that is 32 men operating thos:e machines?

Mr. ScorT. Providing they were all running, which they don’t.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. What percentage of the total employees are the 32?

Mr. Scort. I should judge that there are over a hundred employees in the
Times composing room.

Commissioner (’ConNELL. Well, the total.

Chairman WaLsH. Six hundred, he said.

Mr. Scort. Six hundred and two, I believe he said.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Thirty-two out of that 600 are probably earning
the union scale,

Mr. Scort. That is according to the testimony given by Mr. Otis himself.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. At this stage of the game, Mr. Chairman, I would
ask, if it is in order, that the newspaper publishers of I.os Angeles be required
to bring to this commission under oath a statement of their pay rolls for
the past year for purposes of comparison, so that we can get at the facts.

Chairman WarsH. I will say that we have made the rule not to put anybody
under oath, and I don’t know any rcason why we should, if it is left to me.

Cominissioner WEINsTOCK. Well, in any event——

Chairman Warsa. We will call for the statement.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Yes: with the number of their employees.

Commisstoner WEINSTOCK. And their earnings.

Commissioner GArRreTsoN. So that it will give the average.

Commissioner O’'CoxxNeLr. Have it show the division of each, a classified
statement. -

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. A classified statement, yes. Now, in the matter
of industrial peace, Mr. Scott.

Mr. ScorT. Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You pomt out that one of your talking points,
with a prospect, with a view, of having him wunionize his plant, is that under

P75 o' ViicroenFG
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the agreements that prevail between the International Typographical Union
and the publishers he could be insured in industrial peace, There would
be no danger of a strike, no danger of a boycott. You recall that Gen. Otis’s
testimony, as I remember it, was to the effect that since he had that great
strike with the typographical union he has had industrial peace in his plant.

Mr. ScorT. So he stated.

Comniissioner WEINSTOCK. So that would be no inducement in a case of
that sort—in a case such as that—would it?

Mr., Scorr. That is, he made that statement?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes.

Mr. Scorr. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Now, do you know of any industrial disputes
that have arisen in the Times in that intervening period?

Mr. Scorr. Why, yes; I do.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That is, disputes that led to war?

Mr. Scort. Oh!

Commissioner WEINsTOocK. There may have been discussions,

Mr. Scort. No; I don’t know of any disputes that have led to a walkout of
the employees of the Times, with the exception of the original time I men-
tioned.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You see that Gen. Otis has made out a very
strong case for himself. His contention is, first, that he has had industrial
peace; secondly, that his men are earning 15 per cent more, or thereabouts.

Mr. Scorr. Well, Mr. Weinstock:

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Pardon me. Let me finish.

Mr. Scort. Yes.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. Third, that his earning power, that his cost, has
been from 10 to 15 per cent less.

Mr. Scorr. Yes sir; yes, sir. But I want to put it as plainly as possible
to the commission that I don’'t admit that labor cost at all on that 15 per
cent proposition; that I can’t see that at all.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. You dispute that?

Chairman Warsx. Mr. Weinstock, he disputes it. We have already pro-
vided for a uniform schedule prepared by Prof. Cross for each newspaper in
the city of Los Angeles.

Mr. Scort. Mr. Weinstock, I have here——

Chairman WaLsH. Mr. Scott has presented his forcibly and Gen. Otis has
also. Now we will compare it ourselves. Go ahead.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Go right ahead.

Mr. Scorr. I was just going to say that I had presented our scale of wages
here and the scale as introduced In the testimony of Mr. Otis. I took it from
the record this morning.

Commissioner WeiINsTock. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Mr. Scott

Chairman WAaALsH. Mr. Garretson wants to ask you some questions,

Commissioner GARRETsoN. You heard the statement made yesterday that in
a certain period the employees in Gen. Otis's printing house had advanced
25 per cent in wages and that the newspaper reporters had advanced from
15 to 25 per cent. Does your business bring you in rather direct contact with
newspaper reporters?

Mr. Scort. Yes.

Commissioner GarrersonN. Have you information, or have you not, of any
instance where the staff or reporters have been advanced any such degree?

Mr. Scort. No, sir.

Commissioner GarrersoN. Has there or has there not been an advance, or
has there or has there not been a decrease in the pay of reporters in general in
the last 20 years?

Mr. Scorr. Mr. Garretson, might I answer that in my own way?

Commissioner GARRETSON. Sure.

Mr. Scorrt. It would take me a few——

Commissioner GArrReTsoN. If you don’t go afield.

Mr. Scorr. I will try not to. While in the East, acting as an organizer for
the International Typographical Union, I came in contact at various times
with newspaper reporters. I talked with them in various cities, and almost
invariably their argument was that they had no great opportunity for advance-
ment in their field, and that they were continually being crowded out of em-
ployment by newspapers reducing/ the price) they ‘were paying for the repor-
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torial rooms by securing young men who were just out of the high school, and
one thing and another, and breaking them into the business. And repeatedly
they have asked the International Typographical Union to organize them into
organizations to see if they could do something for them. But it has not
been the policy of the International Union to organize newspaper writers of
late years, although there are three or four of those organizations in existence.

Commissioner GARReTsoN. But at widely separated points.

Mr. Scorr. Yes, sir.

Comimissioner Garrersox. That is all.

Chairman WarnsH. Mr. O’connell, any questions?

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. No.

Chairman WaLsH. Prof. Commons, have you anything?

Commissioner CoMiroxs. No.

Chairman WaLsH. Thank you, Mr. Scott.

Mr. Manvy. Mr. Scott, you stated yesterday that about 1900, I believe, there
was a meeting between the representatives of the International Typographical
Union and the representatives of the Times, a love feast, I believe you de-
seribed it. :

Mr. Scort. What year did you say?

Mr. MaxrLy. Wasn’t it about 1900?

Mr. Scorr. No. I stated that I was under the impression, as near as I
could gather from the men who were very familiar with the proposition, and are
in Los Angeles at the time, that this was about a year after the trouble with
the Times. That would make it about 1891.

Mr. Manry. About 1891.

Mr. Scorr. Yes.

Mr, Manvry. Can you furnish this commission either now or later the names
of the representatives of the International Typographical Union who attended
that conference? :

Mr. Scorr. I don’t remember of saying representatives of the International
Typographical Union. I said of the typographical union.

Mr. Manry. Of the typographical union.

Mr. Scorr. Yes. I don’t think there was any representative of the Inter-
national Typographical Union in Los Angeles at that time.

Mr. Ma~nLy. Well, the representatives of the local union, could you get the
names of the men who were present?

Mr. Scorr. If they are alive, and if not I will endeavor to get those who
were here at the time and went through that period and are familiar with that
proposition ; yes, sir.

Mr. MaA~LY. And also the names of the representatives of the Times, if
possible.

Mr. ScorTt. Yes.

Mr. MaxrLy. Thank you.

Chairman WarsH. That is all. Thank you, Mr, Scott.

Mr. Scorr. Thank you.

(The following communication was subsequently received from Mr. Scott:)

Mr. Ma~nLy: I promised you to furnish the name of a man who could throw
some light on statement I made before the Industrial Relations Comimission.
This statemnent covered a tentative agreement arrived at with Times about 1S91.

I give you the name of Mr. W. J. Buckingham, 4051 South Vermont, Los
Angeles, Cal, - Phone number Vermont 637.

Sincerely,
CHas. T, ScorT.

(See Scott exhibit.)

TESTIMONY OF MR. C. F. GROW.

Chairman WaALsH. Your name, please?

Mr. Grow. C. F. Grow.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, if you can copy the methods of the last witness on
the stand with reference to pitching your voice high, it will be exceedingly
satisfactory.

Mr. Grow. All right, sir; I will try to do it.

Chairman WarsH. Your name is C. F. Grow?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. And-what is your business2 -
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Mr. Grow. Why, at the present moment I am representing the International
Association of Machinists as business agent. >

Chairman WaLsH. How long have you been business agent for the Inter-
national Association of Machinists?

Mr. Grow. Since November, 1909.

Chairman WArLsH. And prior to that time what was vour business?

Mr. Grow. I worked in one of the machine shops, or several of the machine
shops of this city.

Chairman WArLsH. As a machinist?

Mr. Grow. As a machinist.

Chairman WarsH. Now, the particular thing, first, that we would like you
to state would be as concisely as possible the story of the dispute in the
metal trades in Los Angeles,

Mr. Grow. I will do so. I arrived in this city in November, 1906. I secured
a position in the Southern Puacific shops and worked for that company until
February 21, 1908, when, because of reduction of force, I with others was
laid off.

From that position I went to Pasadena. I secured a position in Pasadena
with the Reliance Machine Works, working there several months. The differ-
ence, at least it appeared a great difference to me, between the wages paid
in the Southern Pacific Co. shop and that paid in the Reliance shop in Pasa-
dena was startling. There was a difference of 10 cents an hour. The wages
were 43 cents in the Southern Pacific shops. At that time they were working
under a union contract, and the Pasadena shop, working a so-called open or
a nonunion shop, paid 33 cents an hour. I was discharged from the shop in
Pasadena because I had tried to influence men to join the organization of
which I was a member. And from that place I secured a position in an auto-
mobile shop in the basement of the Pacific Electric Building. Mr. Woodell, I
believe, was the manager of that place. They paid from 35 to 40 cents an
hour in that shop, men starting to work received 35 cents per hour, and if
they were satisfactory to the foreman they received 40 cents per hour. And
from that shop I changed and secured a position with another automobile
shop, Mr. Donald O’Hare, on West Washington Street. That was about 1909.
And he paid 35 and 40 cents per hour. The automobile machinists at that
time in the city were receiving all the way from 30 to 40 cents per hour, with
the most of the men receiving 30 and 35 cents per hour.

While working in the shops—at Mr. O'Hare's shop in West Washington
Street—I was requested to accept a position with the International Association
of Machinists by many of the members. There was much dissatisfaction ex-
pressed as to the working conditions in the city of Los Angeles because of the
low scale of wages being paid. In fact, there was no scale in the nonunion
shops ; the foremen paid men whatever he deemed advisable. The men in the
shop had no opportunity to present any request as individuals. As Mr., Zee-
handelaar testified yesterday, and as Mr. Otls testlfied yesterday, collective
bhargaining was impossible, and union men—men to work in the establishment,
if it were known, were also impossible. And these conditions were unsatis-
factory to men who were employed as machinists in this ecity, because at that
time there were union machinists and nonunion machinists, and the union
machinists, many of them, worked in nonunion shops. And the sad part of
it, Mr. Commissioners, is this, that men had to lie to get and maintain a job.
And they are doing that very thing to-day, and have done it for years in this
city. If it is known at this time and had it been known at that time in many
instances, not all, that men were members of the machinists’ union, they were
summarily dismissed or discharged.

They had no redress of grievance. There was no opportunity, bhecause the
foreman of the establishment, he was the one who dominated the conditions in
the shops, and if he was dissatisfied with a man, if he didn’t like him, if he
didn’t think his work was proper, or anything other that appeared to him in
his own mind that the man was unsatisfactory, or he didn’t want him in the
shop, he was discharged. This condition was growing from bad to worse. And
since the inception, or you might say the calling off; of the molders’ strike in
1904, why conditions in the molding foundry were also getting worse. There
was dissatisfaction in all the metal trades unions and among the members of
the unions in the city of Los Angeles for many years, because of the arbitrary
attitude of the employers who did not recognize committees, who did not recog-
nize the individual, who did not recognize any one or thing except their arbi-
trary power to determine and; dominate the industries of the city. And, there-
fore, as a natural result of this oppression, the men who were members of the
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different organizations and men who were not members of labor organizations
tried to better the conditiong through the only method that appealed to them
possible—by becoming members of labor organizations, increasing their power
and strength, and presenting an agreement such as they had presented in every
city almost in this country, and in large manufacturing establishments, that
they might have collective bargaining, that they may agree or confer upon
future proposed conditions of labor, and try to remedy the evils that existed
at that time in IL.os Angeles. And, therefore, I think it was about some time
in April, about April, 1910, there were committees from the different loecal
organizations in the city that met jointly in what is known as the local metal
trades council, which is affiliated witlh the metal trades department of the
American Federation of Labor. That provides that there shall be in the local
, metal trades representatives from every local union in every city where metal
work organizations exist, and that all grievances, all differences, and that any
proposed condition that they desire should be taken up from the several unions
into the local metal trades council, and they formulate plans for economiec
betterment in the community in which they are established.

And these committees met. They formulated an agreement. The first con-
sideration in the formmulation of the proposed agreement was a shorter work
day, because in Los Angeles, for many years, especially during the fall and
winter months, there have been thousands and thousands of men who are
unemployed. We find in our office the men coming here from all over the
United Stgtes and all over the world, many of them unfortunate fellows that
had been lured here by misstatements, by glaring misstatements, through the
press and by the railroad corporations, by the chamber of commerce, by the
merchants and manufacturers’ association and perhaps other civie bodies; at
least they were allied or associated with the merchants and manufacturers’
assoclation. And I have some documents here that will show the kind of litera-

~ture sent out. Going back to the agreement, the agreement: i
' Chairman WaLsH. Literature sent out by what—by your or rr:mlzatlon"

Mr. Grow. No; the chamber of commerce, the Southern Pacific Railroad Co.,
they sent out circulars and postal cards and advertising matter all throughout
the United States, advertising matter appeared in the press of other cities
showing that Los Angeles had an ideal elimate, saying that the working condi-
tions in Los Angeles were splendid, saying that their opportunities for employ-
ment among the different trades, eallings, among the agricultural, horticultural,
mechanical, and other vocations were many. And having glowing statements
made that way, and yet we have had the first time to find committees of any
organization, of any of these organizations that have sent out this glowing
literature appear at the Southern Pacific, Salt Lake, Santa Fe, or any other
railroad station and taking in hand the men that they have lured here and
finding permanent work with good wages and decent conditions.

They were thrown upon their own resources. Tliese men came to the Labor
Temple, thousands of them, in recent years and appealed to us to assist them
in every possible way in securing employment and in securing food, clothing,
and shelter. Even last year in the city of Los Angeles the chief of police of
this city made the statement that 35,000 men and women were unemployed ;
and the city council, on action taken by several ecivic bodies, and when they
requested the several civic bodies of this city who had to deal with conditions
of this kind to appear before the eity council and assist them in taking care
of the great army of the unemployed, we found that the only organizations
almost that were conspicuous by their absence were the merchants and manu-
facturers’ association and the railroad corporations, who had brought these
people to the city. Labor was there, the German Society was there, and the
Women’s Club was there, and the chamber of commerce was there, and many
other organizations came to the city council to advise with the city council,
upon invitation, and done everything we possibly could to advise them as
best how to take care of the great number of unemployed in this city, and
some plans were formuliated by the city council. Men were to be given employ-
ment in the parks, and Mr. Lissner recomimended that they should plant trees.
Mr. Mulholland was there, and he suggested that they build a boulevard,
and many other suggestions were made; but finally, I believe, the city couneil
donated some thousands of dollars to take care of the unemployed as best they
could.

We recommended—we had a mass meeting in this very hall between Christ-
nas and New Years, if I am right; I may be wrong as to the date—and we
requested the city counctl to:earry -on certain- necessary work that was neces-
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sary to this city’s development and improvement; that that work should be
done in this city, and requested that they should make arrangements to secure
$5,000,000 to carry on that necessary improvement. It could not be done.
Why it could not be done I have my own doubts. I believe there were certain
interests in this city that would oppose the spending of $5,000,000 at that time
for certain public improvements, and while I could not prove this, I know cer-
tain moneys were spent, which was not sufficlent, but perhaps it was the best
the city council could do at that time, and I merely mention this fact to show
you the condition of unemployment existing in this city from time to time,

We have had your unemployment problem in 1909; we had your unemploy-
ment problem in 1912; we had your unemployment problem in 1913; and all
the years I have been in this city, Los Angeles certainly has been cursed every
vear with large numbers of unemployed, and it is because of these awful con-
ditions that labor, being conscious of the needs of the workers who are here,
we have tried to establish in this city some method whereby these men could
secure employment ; and the thing that appealed to us most was the reduction
of the working time, giving opportunity to all men to secure employment and
bring industrial peace of the proper kind to this city.

Now, we formulated this agreement, and I will show you a letter. I wish
to submit this to the commission. First, to prove the literature sent out, we
have the photograph, I believe, of West Lake Park, The park is there, with the
palms, the swans, and the idlers. They say : * The balmy, palmy winter days find
hundreds of happy idlers in the public parks of Los Angeles feeding the water
fowl which, unmolested, have taken refuge in the lakes.” Here are the occupa-
tions that are open, and they say, “ What kind?” And below, on the other
side, below the words * Sign return postal card,” and it says: *“ Aren’t you
coming to California this spring? The Golden State was never more beautiful,
prosperous, attractive in every way, than it is this year. BIig agricultural and
industrial opportunities are awaiting the arrival of folks like you. The South-
ern Pacific is offering special low rates from March 1 to April 15, 1912, in
order that you may see our glorious western country. Why put oft the trip
any longer? Come out into the sunshine while the coming 1Is good—and in-
expensive. You'll never regret it, that’s sure. Give us a suggestion of what
you are interested in on the attached card, please.”

{The postal card referred to was submitted in printed form.)

Mr. Ma~Ly. By whom was that sent out?

Mr. Grow. The Southern Pacific Railway Co0.—4,000,000 of them in the
State of California; a strike on at that time.

Chairman WaLsu, Ladies and gentlemen, we must have perfect order; you
must restraln yourselves, otherwise you will have to retire.

Mr. Grow. Now, the circular letter, and I wish to present this documentary
evidence before this commission showing

Chairman WarsH. Please don’t make any open comment. I don’t know who
you are, but you started this. We have to maintain order. Experience has
shown that we must do that, because contrary opinions are expressed, in which
people are deeply interested here.

Mr. Gerow. I will submit this without comment.

Chairman Warsm. Just give the date and by whom signed, and hand it to
the stenographer.

Mr. Grow. Los Angeles, May 18, 1910; signed by Mr. George Gurney,
Mr. Godfrey Dawson, E. H. Misner. Gurney was secretary-treasurer of the
metal trades council of this city. Mr. Misner represented the International
Association of Machinists of this city and county. We have here attached
an agreement, called an agreement, entered into between the Metal Trades
Council of the City of Los Angeles, Cal., composed of the following crafts:
Machinists, molders, pattern makers, blacksmiths, boiler makers, brass work-
ers, and sheet-metal workers. The first clause, section 1, contains the eight-
hour day. The second clause gives the minimum rate of wages for mechanics
and helpers, and leaving a space below for the signing of the metal trades
council and the employers. I will read one paragraph, with your permission.

Chairman WarLsH. Just read that part which contains your request.

Mr. Grow (reading) :

“We, the undersigned committee, representing the Metal Trades Council of
L.os Angeles, Cal.,, are desirous of entering into a working agreement with
your firm, and have herein inclosed a copy of the proposed agreement which
we have submitted to every employer in this city for their consideration.

} r
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“ Our purpose in wishing to enter into this agreement with you is to keep
pace with the constant change in Industrial conditions throughout the country.
As workingmen we desire recognition and protection. We desire to increase
our pay in accordance with the increased cost of living. We desire to give
our employers as much of our time in the shops as justice to our family and
cur health will permit, keeping for ourselves a sufficient amount of time to
travel to and from our work and for recreation and rest.

“We trust that you appreciate the position that we are taking in this mat-
ter, and that you will not feel that we, as workingmen, are antagonistic te
your rights and interests as employers, as it is our earnest desire to agree
and cooperate with you, to give to you the best service that we have, and to .
work to that end that both the employer and employee shall be mutually
benefited.”

The result of that letter, I am sorry to say, that we did not receive one reply.

We also sent a communication to the foundry men's employers’s association,
which is a local organization afliliated with the national organization; and
also to the merchants and manufacturers’ association; the official mouthpiece
of the employers, as we understood, at least we were supposed to under-
stand, the Los Angeles Times, stated that our request had been relegated to
the wastebasket.

Now, we had not heard anything, no reply to our letters to all the firms that
we had written to. I believe it was May 29, or the 28th, I am not positive
as to the date, at night, at Willard & Wilson shop, at Iifteenth and Sante Fe
Avenue, where about 34 of our men were employed, they were locked out that
night. They came to the Labor Temple and told me that they had been dis-
charged because they were union men, that Mr. Willard, who was there at the
time, stated that he did not want to have any trouble and that he had been
authorized by the organization of which he was a member to discharge these
men. I went to Mr. Godfrey Dawson, who I think is here, and told him that
we wanted to interview the firm. I was asked to do everything within my
power to avoid a strike, because we knew that industrial strife is not the
best method in our city, or in the State, or in the Nation, when men who are
intelligent, when men who claim that they have that intelligence to operate
business, to men who are employed, who have the common intelligence to know
that if we can get better conditions through conferences that is the best way,
und that strife is the last resort.

So I went to Mr. Wilson and requested him to put the men back to work., He
refused. He said he could not do it, even though he would like to do so; he
said it was impossible for him to do so. He said if these men were union
men, he don’t want any trouble, we better let it go at that and perhaps it
would blow over after a while. I stayed there about onc hour and a half with
Mr. Godfrey Dawson. We used every persuasive argument within our power.
We asked him whether the nien were good workmen. He said they were good
workmen, they were splendid workmen, he had nothing against their workman-
ship; they were efficient, they turned out the work, lots of work, and it was
only because they were union men he had been ordered by the association of
which he was a member to discharge these men because they carried a union
card.

The next day the Western Gas Engine Co., on North Main Street, locked out
a number of men., I have the names of the men in the shop. This book that
I present also as evidence to the commission contains the pames of machinists
who came out of the several shiops at the time of the lockout. But it is a
strange coincidence that our opponents who claim that they believe in indus-
trial peace, in industrial justice, in industrial freedom, that they believe in
the protection of a workman, and yet if you go back into their shops, at least
with very few exceptions in the same shop the men that came out who left the
shop and did not return.

An agreement was later entered into in the latter part of February with the
secretary of the foundrymen’s employers’ association. Mr. Hosell—I believe
lie is sitting here—was down in the Labor Temple and requested a conference
=0 that industrial strife in Los Angeles might be stopped and a settlement of
industrial peace endure, and Mr, Little, at that time, I believe, and is still the
owner of the Union Iron Works, and Mr. Hoswell made an arrangement with
a committee who was composed of Mr. (’Leary, Mr. Barnett, Mr. Misner, Mr,
Gunsey, and Mr. Kay, to meet in Mr. Hoswell’s oflice. They had agreed upon
a tentative proposition to call off the strike. And they stated in calling off
the strike that the men who had left.the establishments would be put back to
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work as quickly as possible, and that many men perhaps would be put back
at once; that there should be no further discrimination against men because
of their afiiliation with the labor unions, and that in the future that they
hoped that industrial peace in Los Angeles would endure. We called the
strike off. On Saturday—the last conference was held on Saturday afternoon,
I believe—and on Saturday evening the local union met in the Labor Temple
in good faith and declared that the metal trades’ strike was at an end.

The result of that is this, that Mr, Baker, Mr. Fred Baker—I believe he is
sitting here at this time—repudiated the settlement made, and as published in
ihe press a few days later or the next day, stated that so far as he was con-
cerned that he would operate his own business; that he would determine the
conditions in his own shop regardless of any settlement that might have been
made at that time. And therefore we were up against a bad proposition. Our
strike was declared off, in good faith, the men were willing to return to
work ; they were willing to cooperate with the employers in the machine shop,
the foundries, the blacksmith, and all thie various shops in this eity, but they
were not permitted to do so, and, as I state, this book will prove who are
working in the shops at this tlme in the city.

Now I have contended at all times in the city to do as we do elsewlere, to
negotiate agreements with employers, to cooperate in so doing in the produc-
tion of work, the distribution of product, that these people, the people of this
country who are toiling, who are interested in this country, w ho are producing
and help creating the wealth shall have some say in the distribution of the
wealth and in the wages and hours in the community and in the establishments
in which they work,

Therefore we know that beeause of this condition—we desire and our or-
ganization is based on this condition of collective bargaining and economie
betterment, and it is only because when men in establishments are not free to
run a union shop, where they won’t permit men who are union men to work
in this community if they know it, in many instances, it is because of this
. condition that the real disturbance of industrial peace lies; it is not with the
labor union; and the men who have been so bitter and vitriolic and hostile
against labor are the men that are responsible for industrial disturbances be-
cause we are always willing to enter into agreements with employees, and our
organization is based on that particular thing.

I will show you a book, I will also present this to this commission, an agree-
ment signed. I must have this back, because it is signed by employers and
myself, It shows

Chairman WaLsH, May we keep that book?

Mr. Grow. I would like to have this also, because it is the only record I
have. I made an agreement with the International Association of Machinists,
that is signed with the brewery owners

Chairman WaLsH. One minute. Have you finished now entirely the metal
trades—before you go to the brewery?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. Because we are trying to concentrate,

Mr. Grow. Yes. We keep a standing commlittee.

Chairman WarLsH. You are now up to the state of the trade to-day?

Mr. Grow, The state of the trade to-day.

Chairman WarsH, The state of the industry to-day?

Mr. Grow. The state of the industry to-day. It is very bad in the city of
Los Angeles. I wish to submit something to prove that the conditions are very
bad. 1 will take the automobile shops.

In the Chalmers shop, wages 40 cents per hour; working time, irregular——
from 9 to 16 hours a day. Also have men employed who wait for jobs to come
in without pay. When jobs are in the shop, men are put on the jobs, but if they
accomplish their work and there is no other job in the shop, the men wait until
other jobs come in the shop, semetimes an hour, sometimes two hours, some-
times three hours, sometimes four hours, and sometimes as many as five and
six hours, without pay. 'This does not only exist in the Chalmers, but it also
exists in the Packard and the Cadillae, and, I think, in the Pierce-Arrow, and
many other shops. To prove that these conditions exist—they have a card
system and set time to work—set time on work to be done; must be done in
that time. Occasionally they charge employees for work spoiled. They have
a card system, a name, a number, and the owner of job. If mistake is made
on job, if mistake is made on number, no pay is allowed employee. The Pack-
ard, also, and the Pierce-Arrow have men who-wanit for jobs without pay.
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The Chalmers pay only straight time for overtime work. The average hours,
or the regular hours, we might say, is 9 hours for that work, and for 16 hours
they get 16 hours’ pay. They get no overtime,” no pay for overtime work,
and men who refuse to wori overtime when requested are laid off or discharged.
The party’s name is on there that gave me that information.

Here is something glaring. I have here an exhibit from the Keystone Iron
Works. Mr. F. Livingstone was the president. There is a young man that
secured a position in the Keystone Iron Works., His name was David Jerome.
He wus employed as a machinist, They put him to work as a machinist’s
helper. He worked there several days and he was paid off at the rate of 10
cents an hour—90 cents a day for a machinist. Iere is the letter from Mr,
Livingstone himself:

Mr. Davip JErROME, 902 North Broadway, City.

Dear Sik: As per my promise, 1 am mailing you a check, $7.20, as payment
in full for your services while at the Keystone Iron Works, It is based on 20
cents per hour, which I feel is giving you the better end of it. You hired out
to me personally as a machinist, and in your letter of March 5, you make a
demand on the Keystone Iron Works for wages as machinist’s helper. It looks
as if you misrepresented yourself te¢ me and endeavored to obtain machinist
wages from our firm, when in reality you are only a poor helper.

Trusting this amount will be satisfactory, I am,

Respectfully,
. FRAXK LIVINGSTONE.

In order to get this $7.20, or 20 cents an hour, I had to go before the State
labor commissioner. I told him not to accept 10 cents an hour as a ma-
chinist. I said: “ Great God, have they gone so far? This is certainly not a
test of the so-called open-shop industrial justice.” And I went to the labor
commissioner to interest him in behalf of Mr. Jerome—his only being a green-
horn; he came here from England; the boy was honest and ambitious; he was
a frail sort of a fellow, and to-day is in the hospital; they took advar’ltage of

_that econdition, at least 1 took it so, and paid him 10 cents an hour, 90 cents
o day—the commissioner of labor got him 20 cents, which was the best he
could do, and I advised Jerome to take 20 cents an hour.

I have another one here: “ Wilson & Willard Manufacturing Co., Los Angeles,
Cal., July 9, 1913.”

Thev wrote a letter to the International Assocmtlon of Machinists. I went
down there at the dinner hour. I go around among the men at the dinner
hour, and get men that way—try to get them to join the union.

I went in the shop, passed out the cards that I had, spoke a few words
to the men in the shop who were eating their dinner. Mr. Wilson saw me and
he asked me what I was doing. I told him that I was passing literature
through the shop at dinner time on the men’s own time. He said: “ Let me
see what you have.” I gave him an application blank of the machinists’ union.
He wrote a letter to the international:

“The INTERNATIONAL ASSOCTATION OF MACHINISTS,
“Labor Temple, Los Angeles, Cal.

“ GENTLEMEN : On May 30, 1910, your representative, C. F. Grow, visited our
plant and proceeded to make his presence as disagreeable for us as he could.

“We have always believed that it was well for Mr. Grow’s health that the
latter happened to be out of the city at the time.

“T wish to say that I was there on May 29, 1910, to try and interest him in
not discharging—to take these men back to work.

“ We believe that individual has not favored us with a visit from that time
until to-day. We did not recognize him, and did not know who he was until
some time after he was gone.

“ Of course, his mission was along the same old line, which means trouble
for the employer, the eniployee, and revenue for the labor boss.

“ Will you inform Mr. Grow that the next time he plans to visit our shop,
it might be better for him to visit our office first, tell him it might be better
for him.

“ Yours, very truly,
“ WiLsoN & WILLARD M ANUFACTURING Co.,
‘“ By E. WILLARD, President.”
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We have here a letter, dated September 2, 1913, from the H. . Boynton Co.:

“H. R. Boynton Co., general office and store. Display room 644-G46 South
Spring Street.

“ Los ANGELES, CAL., Scplember 2, 1910,
“To whom it may concern:
“The reason Mr. Harris was discharged was because he failed to come to
work Labor Day and did not have a good reason. ;
“ H. R, Boy~xtox Co.,
3 “ By O. K, Lyox.”

1 have here something that transpired to show that money was paid by the
merchants and manufacturers’ association or the foundrymen employers’ asso-
ciation, either one, during the strike.

As Mr. Zeehandelaar testified yesterday that they did pay sometimes for
deputies and did pay sometimes for men—strike breakers—to be brought into
this city to take the places of men on strike.

This is dated at the Burnett House, Cineinnati, Ohio:

“Avcust 18, 1910.
“Mr. WiLLtam B. HASWELL.
“Drar Sir: This will introduce to you Mr. John O’Brien, machinist.
“Yours, truly,
“P. K. KLEIN.

¢ Instructions : Take Washington Street car in front of depot, go to Hollen-
Leck Hotel, Second and Spring, and immediately ring up Mr. Haswell.

“ Home phone A513S.

“ Sunset phone Broadway 3372.”

Here is the contract: “ This agreement——

Shairman WarsH. Submit that, please.

Mr. Grow. They tried to violate the State law, and it was a violation of
law. I will submit it, as you say, though, without comment.

Chairman WawrsH. I think you had better do that.

Mr. Grow. This, in other words, a man pledges himself to go in the employ
of the founders and employers’ association, that they will not become affiliated
with a labor union; that they will not be identified with nor influenced by any
labor union; that he will preserve his independence, permitting no outside
influence to interfere with or dictate in his affairs with his employers; not be
influenced by any labor union or their agents or walking delegates; that they
will work six months for 35 eents an hour.

I have another aflidavit in regard to the molders, the molders had to sign an
affidavit, or make an affidavit, and give it to the secretary whe at that time,
I think, was named Anthony. This affidavit stated that as long as he was
employed in the shop that he would not become aflilinted with a labor union.

There is a State law in California that makes it a misdemeanor for anyone
to force, coerce, intimidate, or in any manner stop a man from joining a labor
union, and any employer—this is what they have done.

Now, the strike was called off, and since that time we have been doing every-
thing within our power to organize the men, the machinists, the boiler makers,
the blacksmiths, the molders, the pattern makers, the ornamental workers, on
account of the awful conditions existing here.

There has practically been no scale in the city. They pay any scale that they
desire to pay. Some shops pay better than others, but the highest wage that
I know of is about 25 per cent below the union secale.

The boiler makers have no union shop at this time:; the molders have no
union shop at this time; the pattern makers have no union shop at this time;
the machinists have one or two.

The minimum wage paid machinists at this time is 50 cents per hour.

The minimum, according to the agreement we made, called for fifty-six and a
quarter, but that is in the breweries, and the maximum, about the maximum
paid in the shops in this city is about 42 or 45 cents in nonunion shops. But
the average wages paid in this eity—this Is not signed, but we can give you the
date—is about 35 cents an hour on the average.

So that shows a difference between the minimum scale of the union and the
minimum scale of the open shop is about 15 cents per hour, and showing a
maximum difference in wages or hours of one hour in favor of the union
shop, eight hours, and nine hours, the Tours of the nonunion shop.
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Now, the conditions in the shop at this time. Mr, Zechandelaar stated the
truth yesterday when he sald: “ We have no further argument to make
that he opposes collective bargaining, that the foundrymen employers’ asso-
ciation opposes collective bargaining, that they oppose collective bargaining,
hut just so long as the open-shop conditions exist in Los Angeles just so long
will wages in Los Angeles, just so long will hours in Los Angeles for the
worker be less than that of any other city on the Pacific coast or in the
western country, due to the open shop.”

Chairman WarsH, If you are going to the brewery dispute, maybe I had
better ask you a few questions on that. What was the point of the dispute?

Mr. Grow, Submitting a proposed agreement to take the place of the agree-
ment we had that was about to expire.

Chairman WaLsH. Were all the breweries organized at that time?

Mr. Grow, They were,

Chairman WarLsH. In what crafts now, drivers and bottlers?

Mr. Grow. Brewers, drivers, bottlers, engineers, foremen, machinists, coopers.

Chairman WarsH. And how long had they been organized and how long had
they had agreements prior to that time?

Mr. GRow. A good many years.

Chairman WaLsH. A number of years?

Mr, Grow. A number of years.

Chairman WaLsu, They disagreed with the terms of the agreement at that
time?

Mr., Grow. There was a disagreement from the terms in May, 1910.

Chairman WarLsH, What was the result of that?

Mr. Grow. The result of it was that failing to reach an agreement between
the local unions and the—at that time Southern California Brewers’ Associa-
tion—Mr, Cramer was their secretary.

Chairman WarsH. They were fully organized, were they, the employers?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. And the brewers?

Mr. GrRow. About a hundred per cent.

Chairman WaLsH. About a hundred per cent?

Mr. Grow, Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. And the men were fully organized?

Mr. Grow. The men were fully organized.

Chairman WaLsH. And they refused the agreement?

Ar, Grow. They failed to agree.

Chairman WaLsH. They failed to agree?

Mr. Grow. Then the agreement had already expired.

Chairman WaLsH. Yes.

Mr., Grow. They were working without an agreement. p

Chairman WarLsH. Yes. What was the result?

AMr. Grow, They sent Mr, Probstel. Mr. Probstel was the international see-
retary of the brewery workers’ union, and he was on this coast, he was in
Seattle, and had come south, and they requested before any action of any Kind
be taken, that Mr. Probstel should come here and advise with them.

Chairman WaLsH., Did Mr., Probstel come?

Mr. Grow. He did.

Chairman WaLsH. Did it result in anything? -

Mr. Grow. No.

Chairman WaLsy, What was done? Was there a strike or lockcut or what
took place?

Mr. Grow. A disagreement arose over the proposed agreement. They wanted
them to sign the agreement as it had previously existed without any change.

Chairman WaArLsH. Who did, the men?

Mr. Grow. No.

Chairman WarLsg. The employers?

Mr. Grow. The employers.

Chairman WavrsH, What propositions were the men demanding? Were they
demanding an increase of wage? 3

Mr. Grow. Increased wage scale; about all.

Chairman WarsH. Abhout all?

Mr. Grow. That was in the main., And they based it upon the inereased cost
of living.

Chairman WaALsH, Now, then, what resulted? Was there a strike or lock-
out? i v ¢
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Mr. Grow. The men, after doing everything that they possibly could to get
the employers to consider a proposed increase of wages, I believe it was May
19—at dinner time——

Chairman Warsa. What is that year?

Mr. GrRow. The men quit the shop—1910.

Chairman Warsg, 1910?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir,

Chairman WarsH. The men gquit the job. Did that affect every brewer in
Los Angeles?

Mr. Grow. It affected every brewer in the city—yes, every brewery in the
cityy

Chairman WarsH. How long did that strike last?

Mr. Grow. That strike lasted, I think, about 11 months.

Chairman WarsH. About 11 months?

Mr. Grow. Yes.

Chairman WarLsH. Were there persons brought in to take the places of the
strikers?

Mr. Grow. Yes: there were. In fact, I think they might have had more men
in the breweries than previously., I am merely saying so. I think so.

Chairman Warsa. Was a boycott declared by the labor organizations?

Mr. Grow. There was.

Chairman WarsH. What assistance was given the brewers, so far as you
know, by the employers’ association or the M. and M.?

Mr. Grow. If I may be able to produce some evidence from the Times——

Chairman WALsH. Yes, refer us to It.

“Mr. Grow. I think, if I am not mistaken, it was June 1 or 2, 1910, when the
merchants and manufacturers’ association, the brewery owners, and I think
the foundrymen, I am not positive about that—Mr. Palmer was president at
that time, and Henry Huntington was there at the time, and he made a re-
sponse to this effect, he believed the proper thing to do was to maintain indus-
trial freedom at any cost. If a general strike was to come, let it come now,
now is as good a time as any to sustain the open-shop policy in Los Angeles.
And they had a resolution that they passed at that meeting, promising them sup-
port morally, and financidl support if necessary.

Chairman WarsH. Did the men go out on a strike or did they remain largely?

Mr. Grow. Most of them did; perhaps 10 or 15 might have left the city.

Chairman WarLsH. And they lived on strike benefits, I suppose?

Mr. Grow. The International Brewery Workers' organization paid strike
benefits each week.

Chairman Warsg. What assistance, if any, was given by the other labor
organizations?

Mr. Grow. All the moral support we possibly could.

Chairman WarsH. A general boycott declared against all saloons?

Mr. Grow. Members were generally acquainted with the general conditions
existing in the breweries at that time. Therefore, they naturally were requested
to not use any of the products, because of the strike. And there were pickets
on the streets acquainting the public with the condition existing.

Chairman WarsH. Did the pickets remain on the streets for the whole 11
nonths?

Mr. Grow. Yes.

Chairman WaLsz. The strike, then, was in active operation for the whole
11 months? i ,

Mr. Grow. Yes.

Chairman WarsH. The men were paid strike benefits? And they largely
stayed here?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. And what action was taken by the organization?

Mr. Grow. All the general ramifications, that is, all means that were feasi-
ble at #ll times. They held their meetings regularly, and they done every-
thing that they could. They had a standing committee always trying to meet
the brewery owners. Labor in this city always has, to my knowledge, had a
standing committee standing ready at every and all times to negotiate for the
possible solution of its troubles.

Chairman WaALsHH. Describe, please, how that strike was brought to an end.

Mr. Grow. The strike was brought to an end after negotiations between the
men—>\r. Maier, Edward Maier, at that time president of the company, the
Maier Co., and several others: were fair; and. we were told that if it had
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not been—that if it had not been at that time for certain conditions existing
that they might have called the strike off; they had previously promised that
they would stand loyal to their guns and fight the unions and to inaugurate
and to maintain the open shop. And an editorial in the Times di state that
because the brewery owers agreed to the same conditions to negotiate an
agreement with their employees that it was cowardice.

Chairman WaLsH. Describe the formation of the committee—how it was
finally got together and how it was settled.

Mr. Grow. Mr. Muri, who was representing the brewery workers of the State
of California, and myself, and Mr. Mooney.

Chairman WaLsH. Who is Mr. Mooney?

Mr. Grow. Mr. Mooney wus at that time secretary of the Los Angeles build-
ing trades.

Chairman WarsH. Did Mr. Probstel or any member of the organization take
part in the proceedings?

Mr. Grow. Mr. Muri, the international organizer, who had charge of the
State of California and certain western distriets.

Chairman WaLsH. What did you do with reference to the agreement that
vou had departed from and that had come to an end 11 months prior to that
time?

Mr. Grow. We took up the agreement that we had disagreed on, and we
conferred over it.

Chairman WarsH. How long did the conference last? ;

Mr. Grow. The conference, when we got together, lasted, I think, about two
hours.

Chairman WaisH. After you got together, what was the feeling in the con-
ference? 3

Mr. Grow. The feeling was good.

Chairman WaLsH. What was the outcome of that agreement that had ex-
pired 11 months prior to that time?

Mr. Grow. That we had worked under?

Mr. WaLsH. Yes.

Mr. Grow. The new agreement superseded it., They worked under the new
agreement,

Chairman WarsH. What I am trying to get at is, did you agree upon that
agreement that you had disagreed on which caused the strike?

Mr. Grow. We worked under that agreement between the brewery owners
and our committee——

Chairman WarsH. How long did that agreement last? What was the out-
come of it?

Mr. Grow. That agreement lasted from 1910 up to 1913.

Chairman WaLsH. Three-year agreement they make with the employees?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir; has been renewed again. ’

Chairman WarLsa. Was it substantially the same or was there any increase
in the last agreement?

Mr. Grow. An increase in pay.

Chairman WaALsH. Increase in pay?

Mr. Grow. Yes.

Chairman WaLsH. Any other material change in the agreement?

Mr. Grow. No; nothing material, because the working conditions in the
brewery remained the same for many years.

Chairman, WaLsH. I would like you to state as concisely as possible what
your observation was of the conduct of the local government during the dis-
putes.

Mr. Grow. I will say this: I found they got the picket ordinance passed——

Chairman WaLsH. Yes; we have that in evidence. 2

Mr. Grow. Well, the attitude of the local city government was not friendly
to us. The employers, whether the merchants and manufacturers’ associa-
tion or whether it was the foundrymens employers’ association, I don’t know.
But I think that Mr. Baker was interested very much in having the antipicket
ordnance inaugurated to become effective at once under the emergency clause.
This was sometime in July. The strike took place on the 1st of June. And up
to the time that the antipicketing ordinance was passed there had not been any
violence of any nature. Men were advised every day. I advised them and
others to do every. thing within their power to get the men out—to acquaint
the men who were working in the shop with the true status of affairs; to per-
suade them to stand loyally, to. their shop ien who were locked out and do
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everything possible to bring the strike to a certainly harmonious end, which
can only happen in cases of strike through the withholding of labor power.

Chairman WaLsH. After the passage of the picket ordinance, do I understand
you to say that there was violence?

Mr. Grow. No. I will tell you what violence there was, if T possibly can.
I think that the most of the violence was done through the agitation of the em-
ployers, to see how many men they could put in jail. I think there were 467
men arrested. I was arrested myself in front of the Lacy Manufacturing Co.
establishment,

1 wanted to make a test case with Mr. O'Leary of the picket ordinance, and
T brought the case before Judge Rose, and he set my bond at that time at $25.
I never came to trial on that case. They had a test case; they took it up to
the court, and the court held it was legal—the antipicketing ordinance. Organ-
izer labor selected a committee and Mr. Spring was their attorney. We ap-
peared before the city council opposing the passage of this antipicketing ordf-
nance which we considered at that time and do still a crime of the city of Los
Angeles, and it was more sweeping and far-reaching in effect than any Federal
injunction I ever saw. We requested the city council not to pass it, because
it was practically opposed to every fundamental principle of democratic in-
stitutions.

Chairman Warsxa. Was the ordinance tested In the courts?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir; it was.

Chairman WarLsH. Was it appealed to the court of last resort?

Mr. Grow. I am not positive,

Chairman WaLsH. Prior to the passage of the ordinance had the law recog-
nized the right of what is known as peaceful picketing and the use of per-
suasion?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir; nobody was arrested prior to that time for picketing.
At the meeting of the city council Mr. Hewett, city attorney, was there, and
Mr. Eddy, city attorney, was there, and when he was asked the question, “Is
there not a sufficient amount of laws now on the statute books of the city to pro-
tect the business interests of the ecity? Mr. Eddy said, “ Yes; ” there were sufli-
cient laws at that time, and “ the antipicketing ordinance is not necessary.”

Chairman WarsH. Now, have you anything else to say regarding the prac-
tice of violence in labor disputes here? Now, there were 467 men arrested
during what strike?

Mr. Grow. During the metal trades and brewery workers’ strike.

Chairman WaLsH. Do you know how many convictions there were?

Mr. Grow. I don’t think there was more than three convictions under that
antipicketing ordinance.

Chairman WaLsa. What were they charged with principally?

Mr. Grow. Charged with violating the antipicketing ordinance.

Chairman WALsHH. About how many cases would you say out of the 467 that
there were that did not refer te the antlpicketing ordinance?

Mr. Grow. Hardly any.

Chairman Warsu. Hardly any?

Mr. Grow. Very few.

Chairman WaLsu. Can you recall any at all? '

Mr. Grow. There was several arrests made for disturbing of the peace. 1
will cite an instance. At the Mills Iron Works there was a disturbance one
morning, a man working in the Mills Iron Works by the name of McLaughlin,
he had some words with one of the pickets. His name was Mr. Wright. There
was an iron chain that run across the front door. Mr. McLaughlin picked up
an iron wrench in the shop, jumped over the iron chain, and attempted to
strike this picket, Mr. Wright, with an iron wrench. Mr. Wright ran. Mr.
McLaughlin ran after him, Mr. Wright picked up a stone and threw the
stone and kept backing away. I belleve that they got together. I think Mr.
Wright struck him in self-defehse.

Chairman WaLsa. Well, there was an arrest for that violence?

Mr. Grow. There was an arrest. Mr. Wright was arrested, he was a
striker, charged under a felony charge. and the case came up in Judge Rose’s
court, and Judge Rose heard the case—found Mr. McLaughlin guilty of the
offense instead of Mr. Wright, who was arrested on the felony charge. And
I think he was fined either $10 or $25.

T will cite you another instance, I will say-

Chairman WarLsH. One minute. Could you submit to us, have you in your
records any place, the entire record of the number that were arrested?
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Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. And the offenses with which they were charged?

Mr. Grow. Yes; Mr. Harriman

Chairman WarsH. Will you kindly submit that, and will you add to that,
if you please, the title of any person, whether a union official?

Mr. Grow, Yes.

Chairman Warsa. If he was just a member, why you don’t need to add
that, but if he was an an official. Well, the charge would show for itself if
it was outside of picketing.

(The following statement was subsequently submitted by Mr. Grow:)

Cases in Judge Rose’s court dismissed or on bonds.

Groat, G. H. Rose, $50. Machinist. Bondsmen: A. Cox, G. H. Robinson.

Grow, E. F. Rose, $25. Machinist. Bondsmen: J. A, Gray, J. W. Brooks.

Hudson, E. Rose, $25. Structural-iron worker. Bondsmen: J. Oswaldd, Leo
Englander.

Howes, W, A. Rose, $25. Machinist. Bondsmen: Josua D. Millard, S. Montieth,

Lynch, Edward. Rose, $50. Blacksmith. Bondsmen: Mrs. H. D. De Lara,
Mrs. Laura M. Doughdy.

Noan, Ed. Rose, $25. Machinist. Bondsmen: Josua D. Millard, S. Montieth.

O’Leary, P. J. Rose, $25. Boiler maker. Bondsmen: J. A. Gray, J. W. Braoks.

Schoenberg, A. Rose, $50. Machinist. Bondsmen: A. Cox, G. H. Robinson.

Schacht, William. Rose, $50. Structural-iron worker. Bondsmen: J. D.
Hunter, Mary Rubben.

Torrello M. Rose, $50. Molder. Bondsmen: J. A. Gray, A. Cox.

CASHI BOXNDS.

Kolak, T. Rose, $25. November 14.

Kraleick, J. Rose, $25.

Vilanger, A. J. Rose, $25. Own money.

Stopple, H. C. Rose, $25. B. C. Local 212.

Price, J. P. Rose, $25.

Hudson, E. Rose, $100. Own money. November 23.
Preston, H. Rose, $20.

Grow. $375 bonds; $245 cash bonds.

Mctal-trade arrests dismissed in Judge Rose’s court, December 12, 1910.

Armstrong, R. M. Miller, N. W.
Adams. Meridith, John ~
Bass, A. Noldan, Ed.
Boyd, John Price, J. P.
Fieder, C. I, Podegil.
Furhman. Pennie.
Gavahn, A, Preston (2).
Grow, C. I. Peterson.
iroat, G. H. Baznik, John
Grimus, Fred Roberts, C. F.
Hingston, G. H. Ramirez, John
Hudson, E. Rumm.

Hari, George Russell, R. F.
Hunter, C. W. Schoenberg.
Hult, E. Smith, H.
Hughes, W. A, Staffan.

Hunt, E. Stopple, H. C.
Johnson, Ed. Schocht, Wm.
Kolack, T. Swarnberg.
Kroleich, J. Seffick, Wm.
Kritchiner, Thomasg Tobbie, Carl
Karlson. Torrella, Mike
Kruse, ¥. B. Tracy, John
Lynch, E. B. Villinger, A. J.
Lovey, 1. A. Westphalen.

Lamberk, D. - 3 Westguard.
Lynch, Thomas ;
McCarty, Tim.
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(Letter of Ira B. Cross, received January 18, 1915, states as follows: “About
472 men arrested under the antipicketing ordinance.”)

Mr. Grow. I wish to say this in conclusion so that you will understand that
Mr. Harriman, who later became the attorney for our side—-

Chairman WarLsH. Mr. Job Harrimann?

Mr. Grow. Mr. Job Harrimann. He has the cases, and he defended the
cases.,

There is only another one In particular that I would like to get before this
commission, and that is the case of 35 men arrested near the Baker Iron
Works. They were arrested for conspiracy, for conspiring to violate the anti-
picketing ordinance, and the case was tried in court here. It was about the
only charge that they could formulate in their own opinion, I think, at that
time from my viewpoint, that they could cinch these men on. And so they
arrested 35 of them and tried them all together, so that if there were any inno-
cent or guilty, if there happened to be any guilty or any innocent, why, they
would have all been either acquitted or convicted together. But Mr. Harri-
mann, why luckily he won the case, and that was practically the last of the
arrests in the city.

Chairman Warsx. Was it tried in an inferior court, a police court?

Mr. Grow. Tried in police court. .

Chairman WaALsH. Do you have the right of trial by jury in the police court?

Mr. Grow. Oh, yes. What they done was this, when they first arrested our
boys, some they left go on their own recognizances, and others—and if they
were married. Some of the judges, one or two of them was pretty fair, and
one or two of them was pretty hostile. And they had a bond of $25 to $50
established. But when the men demanded jury trials, then the bond—after
men were arrested we would give bonds when we could, and the men got out
again and immediately went out on the line organizing and picketing they
would be arrested again. And so they put the bond up from $50 to $300, and
they kept men in jail from five days to as much as fifty-some days without
trial. One old man here I want to submit to the—

Chairman WaLsi. Were the defendants insisting on trial through their attor-
neys at that time?

Mr. Grow. Oh, yes.

Chairman WaLsx, Was Mr. Harrimann representing them at that time?

Mr. Grow. A part of the time.

Chairman WaLsH. But they had counsel all the time?

Mr. Grow. They had counsel all the time, I will submit here to you a num-
ber of men who were arrested. I will leave this with you as documentary
evidence.

Chairman WarLsi. Will you please take that and hand it to the stenographer?

Mr. GRow. Yes, I also want to say that here was a man spent 54 days in jail.
This was a touching incident. This man, his name is old Tom Lynch, veteran
of the Civil War and Spanish-American War. He was working as a casting
chipper in the Llewellyns Iron Works, and came out on strike. They picked
old Tom up several times and they put him over in the jail on the east side.
They kept him there, I think, between 40 and 50 days. We went over there
to visit him and take him food, and the man was getting pretty old and he
needed attention. We done everything we possibly could for the comfort of
the men in jail, and, by the way, the Los Angeles Times caricatured me because
of that.

0Old Tom, after he got out, was arrested, I think, again. And I told Tom the
best thing for him to do was to leave the city, I thought. I gave him the
money to go to San Francisco. I paid his passageway and gave him a few
dollars to spend. We didn’t have much to spare at that time. And Tom went
and left the city. Now, Tom, since that time I have saw him once. He
came through here on the tramp, and I didn’t think -that anyone in the city
would give old Tom a job. Now, the last I saw of him, Job Harrimann give
him an overcoat and I gave him a dollar or so, and he said, “ Boys,” he said,
“if you will only help ne on my way to Santa Anna,” he says, “I will rough
it from there on.”

I want to leave this photograph here, with a notation at the time, “ Mr.
Thomas Lynch served 60 days in city jails. Veteran Civil War. Worked at
Llewellys (blacklisted). This man has since become a tramp.”

Now, there is one other thing I wish to say, I want to get this point in. I
want to say to this commission, if you are asking about the policing in relation
to the strikes, there were several orders svent out.in this city to clean up the
city, and men were arrested on' the street and vagged.

. 38819°—S. Doe. 415, 64-1—vol 6——31
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One man in particular, lie was a machinist. He was arrested by, I think,
Officer O’Brien. He was taken bhefore Judge Chambers, and he told his story.
He said he came, I think, from Riverside to this c¢ity. He had been out of a
job. He had worked in a butcher shop. He could not get any work. Judge
Chambers, he asked Mr. O'Brien, the oflicer that arrested him, to go out and
ascertain if the story was true. He did, and he came back and corroborated
the statement made by the man that was arrested, but he said, “I know that
the Ornamental Iron Works want a good machinist,” and the judge forced .the
man to serve involuntary servitude in that shop for six months, and I pulled
him out of that shop and sent him to San Francisco.

Another thing, I was told that they had paroled some men from San Quen-
tin, and they were working at the Lacey Manufacturing Co., and also at the
Llewellyn Iron Works. There was a negro and two men working at the
Llewellyn Iron Works, and two men, I think, working at the Lacey Manu-
facturing Co.

Mr. Yancey, he told me he had learned that was a fact. I went with Mr.
Yancey that night to a rooming house down here over some stores, where there
was quite a number of men who worked in the metal trades that roomed there.
I went there and found those men and asked him whether he would make a
statement to me. He says, “ Yes; but I hope you won’t let it be known so that
I will have to be sent back to San Quentin.” I said this, “ Far be it from me
that I shall be the means of sending you to San Quentin.” I says, *“ You are an
unfortunate fellow now, and I shall not make you more miserable, but I want
a statement of the facts in this case, to see just exactly what we might ex-
pect.” He told me there was about seven that had been paroled at San
Quentin and had been brought down and placed in the shops, and he said if
he had known before he was paroled that he was to come to work in a struck
shop, he said, “1I don’t think I would have taken the parole.” Mr. Yancey was
with me, and I can produce Mr. Yancey to testify or affirm before this com-
mission that he went with me and got the statement from the man, and I took
that matter over to the metal trades council and requested the metal trades
council to take the matter up with the union at San Francisco and investigate
as to whether the State of California was going to furnish strike breakers
to break down the condition of men who were striving to build up their con-
dition.

Chairman WaLsH. Anything else?

Mr. Grow. There are so many things, but I have to cover them briefly.

Chairman WaLsH. Yes.

Mr. Grow. There is one instance I want to relate during the Bishop strike.
There were two girls, one of the name of Lillian Higgins, and the other one's
name I have forgotten. I will get it to-day for you. The girl was 16 years of
age, and they were living somewhere over in the north part of the city, at least I
think in that section of the city. I was in jail at the time, but I remember this,
and it was part of our record of the strike. Lillian Higgins, two men approached
her—supposed to be plain-clothes men—entered her room and offered her money.
The girl refused to take the money. Then she was told she would be arrested
and proven worthless. The girl said, “I have done no wrong,” she says, “I
invite arrest. I have only been a poor girl striker, and I have went out with
other girls to try and upbuild conditions.” And they let it go at that. But a
woman came around, supposed to represent some charitable organization. The
woman told the girl she would have to go before a physician for a physical
examination. The girl says, “I will go, I have done no wrong.” "The woman
says, “ You don’t need to go.”” But the girl says, “I will go. When there is a
question of my honor at stake I will go.” And she went, A 16-year-old girl
forced to a condition of that kind in civilized Los Angeles.

Chairman WarLsH. Say, there is just one thing. You made mention of the
fact that you were arrested in order to test the antipicketing ordinance.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. What was the result of the test, briefly ?

Mr. Grow. The result of the test briefly was that the ordinance was declared
to be valid.

Chairman WarsiH. By whom?

Mr. Grow. By the courts.

Commissioner Coyyoxs. Were you convicted?

Mr. Grow. No, sir; they didn’t bring me to trial.

Chairman Wautst. In whose case was it declared valid?

Mr. Grow. Mr. Harrimaun has gl the data._
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Chairman Warsx. He has that data, and we are going to have him later. I
guess that is all.

Commissioner Weinstock would like to ask you some questions,

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. May I ask what was the cause of your arrest?

Mr. Grow. I was arrested the first time—I served a sentence in jail three
months later. The first arrest was in front of the Lacey Manufacturing Co.
with Mr. O'Leary. I spoke to meén employed in that shop. They told me to
move on. I said I was acting within my legal rights on the public streets of Los
Angeles to speak to any man at any time, that that was my privilege, and I
would do so regardless of any antipicketing ordinance that might be passed to
the contrary.

Commissioner WEINSTocK. That case was not brought to trial?

Mr. Grow. No, sir.

Commissioner WeIxNsTock. What case was it that was brought to trial?

Mr. Grow. My case?

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Yes, sir.

Mr. Grow. I was arrested near the Labor Temple on the 28th of September,
1910. I was arrested by Officer Browning. He approached me on the street
while I was out trying to secure bail money for some of the men in jail. He says
to me, “1Is your name Grow?"” I says, “It is.” He says, “ Well, I want you.”
I says, “All right. Have you got a warrant for my arrest?” He says, “ No.”
I says “ Have you got anything to show why I am arrested?” He says, “ No.”
He says, ““ The captain wants to see you.”

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Just tell us the charge.

Mr. Grow. Oh, there was no charge first, except I was arre%ted on suspicion.
I could not ascertain what it was.

Commissioner WeEINsTock. What was the conviction?

Mr. Grow. The conviction?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Your were convicted for what?

Mr. Grow. Just a moment. They arested me, charged me with assault with
a deadly weapon with intent to murder.

Commissioner WEINsTock. Was that In some labor trouble?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK, Assault with intent to murder who?

Mr. Grow. A man by the name of Hoffman, at a station out here—Gatin
Station.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. A nonunion worker ?

Mr. Grow. A nonunion molder.

Commissioner WEINsTock. What was the result?

Mr. Grow. The result was that the jury found me guilty of simple assault,
and I was incarcerated in the Los Angeles County Jail 90 days, and the peculiar
thing and the most educational thing I have ever had in all my life is that I
should be convicted of a crime I had never committed and at a place T had never
been.,

Commissioner WEINsTock. You spoke of—you called the attention of the
commission in the early part of your statement to the large number of the
unemployed in Los Angeles last winter.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEeINsTtock. Do you hold the open shop responsible for that?

Mr. Grow. I do. I do for this reason: Not alt gether. I will say that I have
heard it said—at least rumored through this city—that the best way to break
down the economic conditions or break down the union is to have three men
for every job.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. So that to a degree you hold the open shop re-
sponsible ?

Mr. Grow. In a degree, yes, sir; because of this reason——

Comnissioner WEINsTock. How great a degree?

Mr. Grow. I would say in so far as the industrial situation—I am not much
acquainted with the agricultural because my experience or my work has been
altogether industrial. I should judge taking into consideration the number of
hours worked and the efforts made to bring men here from all over this country,
which appears to be one of the big things that——

Commissioner WEINsTock. That isn’t answering my question, if you will
pardon the interruption. To what degree do you hold the open shop respon-
sible for the unemployment of last winter here? Would you say 20 per cent,
50 per cent, or 75 per cent?

Mr. Grow. In thlb particniar city, o, JFow mean?
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Commissioner WEINsSTocK. Yes. You can only give your opinion, of course.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir. 1 would judge in passing my opinion—I would want just
a little time to make a specific statement, but I will say an approximation, I
would judge it, yes, sir; that it is 20 or 25 per cent.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. How do you explain the fact, then, that the condi-
tion of the unemployed was far more acute in San Francisco than in Los An-
geles, in spite of the fact that San Francisco is looked upon as a closed town?

Mr. Grow. I will say this, that the labor conditions on this coast last year
were general, but the unemployed question in Los Angeles is always with us,
and there is no permanency of employment.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. We heard the same story in San Francisco. As T
understand it, Mr. Grow, union men reserve the moral and legal right, which
of course is guaranteed them, to refuse to work alongside of nonunion men,

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Cominissioner WEINsTOCcK. Well, now, I take it that the unionist does not
demand for himself rights and privileges he is not prepared to accord to the
other fellow.

Mr. Grow. Certainly not.

Cmmissioner WEINsToCK. Is that correct?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Now, if a union man has a moral and legal right,
which is undisputed, to refuse to work alongside of nonunion men, has not the
employer then—the nonunion employer—an equal moral and legal right to de-
cline to have union men work alongside of nonunion men?

Mr. Grow. As far as the moral and legal right is concerned, 1 believe Mr.
Otis answered that question yesterday on the stand when he stated he was
operating a strictly nonunion shop. Now, the moral and legal right of every
individual in this city, according to the dictates of his conscience, is to act in
such a manner as will conserve to the public a better economic condition, and
that is impossible under the open shop. The workers of this country must
cooperate and through that human cooperation they have got to bring about
economic betterment; I believe this commission is formed for the specifie pur-
pose of inquiring into labor disputes and the unequal distribution of wealth,
which makes for nnemployment and every other evil under the system.

Comissioner WEINSTOCK. Your contention is that while the nonunion em-
ployer has the moral and legal right to refuse to employ union men, you think
he ought not to refuse to do it?

My, Grow. I think if he had the business sagacity—if the business men of this
country in the main had sufficient business sagacity, that they realize what the
purchasing power of the great mass of the people was and that when they have
no work their purchasing power falls below a certain level, then we have in-
dustrial depression, but if the working classes and men of the whole popula-
tion of the country were generally employed under decent conditions with
higher wages and shorter hours, then I claim that the industrial conditions in
this State and this country would be far superior to what it is at the present
moment.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Were you present yesterday when Mr. Zeehande-
laar and Gen. Otis testified ?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You heard both of those witnesses make the state-
ment that in their opinion—they first made the claim, as I now recall it, that
Los Angeles was one of the most, if not the most, prosperous city in America,
if not in the world. ;

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEeINsTOoCK. And they claimed that most of this prosperity
was due to the open shop. What is the answer to that?

Mr. Grow. The answer to that is I don’t think there is any foundation to
the statement. :

Commissioner WEINsToCcK. Well, what answer would you make to that spe-
cific statement?

Mr. Grow. I would say that the prosperous condition in this city is not en-
joyed by those who toil, but that we have men in this eity and combinations of
men who are very, very, prosperous; who have tremendous wealth; who domi-
nate all the civie and social life, and industrial life—own everything, running
just like you might say a spider’s legs; that they extend out into all avenues
in every section of this city. They control and dominate all the railroad lines
and every other thing comes under their domination and power, and they are
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very prosperous, and if labor was only half so prosperous as these gentlemen I
think we would be very well satisfied.

Comimissioner WEINSTOCK. Is it your contention, then, that while capital may
prosper in Los Angeles, that labor is not prosperous?

Mr. Grow. Absolutely.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That is your point, is it?

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEINsTOCK., That is all.

Chairman WarLsH. Anything, Professor? That is all.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. I want to ask one question.

Chairman WarsH, Commissioner O’Connell wishes to ask some questions,

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. The secretary of the merchants nnd manufacturers’
association was on the stand yesterday.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commigsioner O'CoxNELL. And put in evidence several books something like
this.

Mr. Grow. I have one here,

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. And mentioned the name of a man named Murray.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir,

Commissioner O’CoxNerLL. And I find in this book his full name Is John
AMurray.

Mr. Grow. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. So that he intimated upon the filing of these here
that they were issued by authority of the Los Angeles Labor Council in somne
way and that Mr. Murray was a machinist. Belng-a machinist myself, I have
some regard for the trade. I want to ask, is Mr. Murray a machinist, do you
know?

Mr. Grow. No, sir; Mr. Murray is not a machinist. Mr. Murray is a news-
paper man,

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. You do not need to volunteer. I will ask the ques-
tions.

Mr. Grow. All right.

Commissioner O'Cox~yeLL. Was he in the employ of the central labor organi-
zation or the metal trades council, or any other organization in San Francisco?

Mr. Grow. To the best of my knowledge Mr. Murray has no oflicial connec-
tion with any labor organization, national, State, county, or local,

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Now, answer me. Was he in the employ—was he
employed by any organization of labor in San IFrancisco to come here and issue
these pamphlets?

Mr. Grow. No, sir.

Commissioner O’CoxNeLL. Was there any money appropriated by any organi-
zation of labor in San Francisco to pay for the Issuance of these booklets?

Mr. Grow. Not that I know of.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Was he under salary in any way of the labor
organizations of Los Angeles during the time he was issuing these bookiets?

Mr. Grow. He was not.

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Since or before that time?

Mr. Grow. Years ago he was assoclated with the labor paper here, hut not in
recent years has he had any connection that he drew a salary or received
money in any manner from labor unions.

Commissioner O’CoN~ELL. Was he brought here by any organization of labor
for the purpose of issuing these books or any other books in regard to strikes
that were going on at that time?

Mr. Grow. No, sir.

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Was he encouraged to stay or encouraged to
leave by organized labor?

Mr. Grow. I do not know whether he was encouraged to stay or encouraged
to leave. In fact, labor is very careful as to whom they encourage and whom
they discourage. There has been too much of that by the M. and M.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Then these booklets, placed on file by the secre-
tary of the merchants and manufacturers’ association as a record being issued
by organized labor were not issued by authority or at the expense or instiga-
tion of organized labor in any way in Los Angeles?

Alr. Grow. Not at all.

Commissioner O’Conx~eLL. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Warsu., That is all. Thank you, Mr. Grow. If you have any
other documents \
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Mr. Grow. I want to ask one question, if I might, before the commission
adjourns, submit to you in written form some documentary evidence, if I have
it or can get it, in my possession relative to bearing on this case.

Chairman WaLsH. We would be very glad, indeed, to have any document,
and if you have anything else that has not been submitted that you would like
to submit, we would be glad to have that.

Mr. Grow. All right; thank you.

(See Grow exhibit.)

Chairman WaLsH. Call Mr. Baker.

Mr. Maxry. Mr. Baker.

Mr. Grow. I would like to make one statement before I leave the stand. I
don’t want to be misunderstood or misconstrued: It has been said about me
in this city many times that I am opposed to peace and peaceful measures. I
deny the allegation, and I say this, that so far as the unions are coneerned, all
the unions that I am cennected with, and myself personally—I as much as any
man or woman in this community desire peace, real industrial peace and jus-
tice, and I will stand ready at all thmes to negotiate agreements that will stand
for peace and justice between employers and employees in this community.

TESTIMONY OF MR. FRED L. BAKER.

Chairman WarsH. What is your name?

Mr. Baker. Fred L. Baker.

Chairman WavLsi. What is your business address?

Mr. Baxer. 942 North Broadway.

Chairman WarLsH., What is your business?

Mr. Bager. Iron works.

Chairman Warsu., What is the name of your eoncern?

Mr. BaAker. Baker Iron Works.

Chairman WaLsH. Is your concern confined to Los Angeles? Have you any
branch any place else?

Mr. Bager. No, sir.

Chairman WawLsH. Your entire business is in Los Angeles?

Mr. BAgeER. We have another plant we own. It is not a branch at all.

Chairman WaLss. Where is that?

Mr. BAkEeRr. San Diego.

Chairman WaLsa. The same corperation?

Mr. Baker. No, sir.

Chairman WaLs#. Why do you say you own it? I don’t understand exaetly.

Mr. BAkeR. Because the Baker Iron Works owns the stock in the company.

Chairman Warss. What is the name of that company?

Mr. Baxer. California Iron Works.

Chairman WaLsH. How long have you lived in Los Angeles?

Mr. Baxker. I eame here in 1874, I believe.

Chairman WarLsH. And your position with the Baker Iron Works, I believe,
is president and general manager?

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. And what pesition do you hold in the California Iron
Works?

Mr. BAKER. President.

Chairman WaLsH. Vice president?

Mr. BAkEgRr. President.

Chairman WarsH. First the commission would like for you to make a state-
ment of general labor conditions in the metal trade, and particularly in your
iron works here in L.os Angeles. Is that specific enough?

Mr. BAKER. I hardly know how to answer that.

Chairman WaLsH. It is rather general. Now, I assume that your eoncern
was largely interested in the metal trades strike that took place.

Mr. BAkgr. There was a strike, and some of our men went out in the strike
of 1910.

Chairman WaLsH. How many of your men went out?

Mr. Baxgr. I haven’t the number ; I should judge all but about 100.

Chairman WarsH. How many have you employed there?

Mr. BAKER. At that time?

Chairman WaAusH. Yes, sir.

Mr. Baxer. Oh, I think there was somewhere over 300 or 350, maybe.
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Chairman WarsH. Normally is that the number you have employed in your
works?

Mr. BAxEgR. About that many.

Chairman WaLsH. How many of them went out on strike?

Mr. Baker. I think there was about 100 left, as I remember.’

Chairman WaLsH. You were here when the last gentleman testified as to
the duration of that contest?

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsi. When the men went out on strike, will you please state
what were the hours first of your employees?

Mr. Baxker. Nine hours.

Chairman WarsH. Nine hours all the way through?

Mr. BAxER. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. Was that true of other concerns engaged in the industry
in Los Angeles?

Mr. Baker. As far as I know. There were some firmms, I believe, though,
at that time working 10 hours. I think one or two shops—I am not certain.

Chairman WarLsH. Were there any working less than nine hours? .

Mr. Baxer. Not to my knowledge.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, as to wages generally: What were the wages of
the machinists? !

Mr. BARER. I would have to refer to my pay roll. I would be glad to submit
that.

Chairman WarsH. Will you be kind enough to submit a copy of your pay
roll covering the employees at the time of the strike and at the close of the
strike and also at the present time?

Mr. Baxer. I will give you a complete copy of the pay roll at any date
you may desire. .

Chairman WarsH. All right. Let it be at the time the strike was inaugu-
rated, at the close of the strike, and at the present time,

Mr. Baxgr. All right.

(See Baker exhibit.)

Chairman Wacrsi. Have there been any changes in the hours since the strike?

Mr. BAkER. No, sir.

Chairman WarsH. Have there been any changes in the wages?

Mr. BAker. I don't know as to that. The pay roll would show that. I don’t
think any perceptible change, except in some Iinstances there may be some
variations,

Chairman WarsH. Has there been any change in your poliey with reference
to the employment of union men since the strike, and if so, what is it?

Mr. Baker. Yes, sir. And in my case as to that I may state I would have to
£o back to 1886——

Chairman WarLsH. One minute. Mr. Baker, I believe I will just let you con-
fine yourself to the conditions in your own shop and not generally.

Mr. Baxer. That is what I was going to do.

Chairman WawrsH. Do it in your own way.

Mr. BAKER. Back in 1886 we had at that time about 175 men working for us,
and we knew little about unions in those days, and we were all pretty well
familiar and acquainted with our men, very close to them and worked with
them, of course. We noticed some difficulty brewing in our foundry when we
put on one or two men, by those men congregating around and suggesting to the
men that they make fewer number of grate bars for a day’s work and all that
class of stuff—cutting down. We were told a demand was going to be made
on us. There was a demand made on us for a 9-hour day instead of the 10-hour
day we were running at that time. As I remember, the molders were getting
about $3.50 for a day of 10 hours. And the committee waited on us and stated
that they had decided that they wanted the same scale of wages for 9 hours
that they were getting for 10, and that they could and would do just the same
amount of work, so that we would be on a fair plane. I told them I didn’t think
that was possible.. At any rate, we met with our ien, several of our employers,
made a sort of a compromise agreement with them. I think we met in the
Fulton Iron Works and agreed to it, and the molders went back. This pertains
particularly to the molders, but the rest of the men were with them. I think
most of them. And it lasted about two or three weeks, and they commenced
breaking their agreement. They didn't seem to have a very good head; one
would want to do this way and another would want to do another way, and so
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forth, until we simply could not get along, because we could not tell what
we could do, and they went out again.

Well, that time when they went out I made a statement to them that from this
date on, and I so put a notice in the shop, any of them wanting to come back in
our employ could do so at the same rate of pay that they went out on, namely,
$3.50 for 10 hours, which would be 35 cents an hour, and we would run the shop
9 hours, and that they—if they could show me that they could do as much work
in 9 hours as they had been doing in 10, I would be very glad indeed to put their
wages back.

All of the men went out on that strike and stayed out with the exception of
about 17 in our entire plant. We run right along and built right up from that
on, and the men didn’t come back, and we continued that way.

That taught me that I could not deal under union conditions as existed at that
time. I am glad to say I think they are better now. They are better regulated
and better handled, and an agreement reached at this time no doubt would
bring better results. At any rate, we made a declaration at that time that from
then on I intended to run my own business in my own way so long as there were
men in the market that I could get that were not members of a trade organi-
zation. I thought that was my right to do that, as the labor unions demanded
that they should run the closed shop and their men should not mix or mingle
with other men. And I think if the conditions in the unions were so good as
they all talk about, why don’t every man join it, and then there would not be
any controversy. Then we would submit, of course, to the inevitable. That is
all there is to it; we would have to employ such men as we could get. But as
long as there is a supply and demand, and I wanted to run my own business,
I made that vow that day that I would do so, and I have been continuing along
that line ever since.

Chairman WALSH. Are you a member of the founders employers’ association?

Mr. BAkER. Yes, sir; I am.

Chairman WALSH. I’ledae state all of the ewmployers’ dbeCldthl’lS with whieh
you are connected, Mr. Baker.

Mr. Baxer. What sort of associations?

Chairman WaLsd. Any industrial associations, any associations that you are
connected with in your trade.

Mr. Baker. Well, I am a member of the foundrymen's association. I am
a member of the—at least our firm is a member of the merchants and manu-
facturers’ association, and I think I belong to the chamber of commerce, and
I guess most of the other organizations in the city.

Chairman WaLsH. Do you hold any official positions in any of these organi-
zations ; if so, what ones?

Mr. Baxgr. No; I think not. I don’t know of any.

Chairman WaLsH. Could you state the attitude of the merchants and manu-
facturers’ association toward labor unions and toward agreements?

Mr. Bakger. The merchants and manufacturers’ association as an association,
in all of the meetings that I have ever attended, have always advocated the
open shop pure and simple.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, now, what do they understand by the open shop?

Mr. Baker. They mean by that that they will not discriminate against any
class of help that apply for work. Now, that is the policy of the merchants
and manufacturers’ association, but

Chairman WaLsH. That is, whether they belong to unions or not.

Mr. BAKER. Whether they belong to unions or not, that has been, and Mr.
Zeehandelaar made that statement, and made it truthfully. It has been denied
by several on the stand here, stating that so and so was the case. They only
assume so, and their assumption is brought about by actions of corporations
like ourselves, for instance, that belong to the merchants and manufacturers’
association and belong to the founders employers’ association. But we do, and
have during our own experience, handled our own business in our own way.
The merchants and manufacturers’ association does not take up those details,
nor do they direct us how we shall or shall not conduct our business. But they
have been working to encourage the open-shop sentiment. But that don’t
necessarily follow that we should follow that course if we don’t want to, and
that is what has given rise to Mr. Grow and Mr. Scott stating that the
M. and M. stood for a closed shop against unions,

Chairman WarLsH. What is the attltude of the founders employers’ asso-
ciation toward unions?

d
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Mr. Barker. The founders employers association, as far as I know their
attitude, is the same as my own in reference to that. They have found from
experience that—it was early, back in 1886, I think it was, that they could
not deal, and as far as I know never had any dealings with a unlon, entered
into any agreements or negotiated in any way, shape, or form with them.

Chairman WarsH. Do you refuse now to employ men that are affiliated
with unions? g

Mr. Baker. I don’t know that we do. I give preference, however, to men
that are nonunion men. I am free to say that I prefer them for this reason:
Just the moment that you try to mix the two agitation starts and friction
arises. And I maintain that I have the same right to employ nonunion men
as the union say they shall not and will not work with nonunion men, and
I must run a closed shop if I deal with them. Therefore I haven’t dealt with
them because I don’t care to under the present methods. I think they will
improve them so that we can. When they get them so that we want them
because they are better and make it an inducement for us to keep peace and
harmony in the community, why, we will be glad to deal with them as far as
the Baker Iron Works is concerned.

Chairman WarsH. Is your concern allied with the Pacific Coast Employers’
Association?

Mr. Baker. How is that?

Chairman WarsH. Is there an association known as the Pacific Coast Em-
ployers’ Association?

Mr. BAkER. I don’t recall it.

Chairman WarsH. I believe it is called the State federation of employers.
I think the president of it was before us In Seattle.

Mr. BAxker. How is that?

Chairman WarsH. I believe It is called the State federation of employers.
I think the president of it was before us in Seattle.

AMr. Baker. There is such an organization of that kind, and I think our
founders employers’ association is associated with them. I think Mr. Lilly
made the arrangement through the executive committee some two or three
years ago at their request, but I don’t know that myself.

Chailrman Warsa. Do you have in mind the aims and objects of that asso-
ciation?

Mr. Baxer. No, sir; I don't.

Chairman WarLsH. And you have had no specific connection with it, or no
business with it, so far as you now recall?

Mr. Baker. Not so far as the Baker Iron Works is concerned, and so far
as my own knowledge, further than I sald I know they are members of it.

Chairman WarsH. I wish now that you would state the comparative results
which you have obtained under conditions such as you have established in
vour shop, as compared with union conditions. TFirst, the quality of the work
done.

Mr. PAKER. Well, the quality of work is no better than the union men can do
or would do.

Chairman Warsi, In what respect?

Mr. Baxer. In any capacity. I see no difference in that.

Chairman WaLsi. You don’t see any difference in it?

Mr. BAKER. No.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, as to the quantity of the work.

Mr. BAxer. Well, the quantity of the work is regulated by us. We hire a
man, if we begin anything that we can manufacture; where we are running
along making the same thing over and over, they very soon get used to about
so much as a day’s work, and we generally get that regularly. But under
union conditions, when they see fit, without our knowledge, notwithstanding
what our costs were, or what our contracts were ahead, if they sce fit to reduce
say from nine to six, why she won’t be but six, and there was no way of chang-
ing it.

Chairman Warsa. So you did find, did you, under union conditions, that
your product was limited?

Mr. Baker. Very limited in anything that was made over and over again.
Of course, where we are doing job work or manufacturing special machinery,
they had nothing to go by to guide them. 5

Chairman WarLsH. What has been your observation with reference to the
cost of work under the two systems?

s
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Mr. BAKER. Why, as far as we are able to compare, it is about the same; if
anything a little bit better.

Chairman WarsH. What do you mean, sir?

Mr. BAKER. A little better, because we can depend upon it. We know what
we can do.

Chairman WarsH. Well, the cost of your production is not so great, you think,
as under union conditions?

Mr. Baxer. I don’t know. I never had very much chance to compare, because
our union conditions, as I say, existed a way back in 1886, and since that time—
and our business was very small at that time,

Chalrman WarLse. And you have had no opportunity for comparing it with
shops in whieh they have union conditions?

Mr. Baxer. Noj; the only chance I have, of course, is to compare with com-
petitive prices we have to go up against from other sections.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, are you a member of the National Erectors’ Asso-
ciation?

Mr. BAKER. No, sir,

Chairman \\'ALSH Now, in the foundem association, do you keep any list of
enmployees, of prospective employees?

Mr. Baxer. How do you mean, a list of them?

Chairman WarsH. Well, I will ask you the direct question; is there any
limitation upon the men changing their positions from one place to the other?

Mr. BaxER. Not that I know of.

Chairman WarsAa. Do you keep a list of the names of employees which you
exchange with other employers, showing that men

Mr. BAaxEr. Well, we have our pay roll.

Chairman WarsH. Sir?

Mr. BaAxeEr., We have our pay roll; that is the only list that we have.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, do you furnish that to any other employers in your
association?

Mr. Baxer. We furnish it to the association, the molders here only.

Chairman WaLsH. Yes; that is, it goes to the officers of the association, but
does that contain a statement as to the resignation and discharge of employees?

Mr. BAxEr. No, sir. I might make that clear to you in this way: The
founders employers’ association maintains through its secretary an employment
bureau, and, for his benefit, he gets from our foreman or timekeeper at our place
a list of the molders in that department.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, is there any other exchange of that kind of any
others except the molders?

Mr. BAkER. Only the molders, as far as I know, And if we are a little bit
slack, as foundries do, they are busy and slack, and we are going to lay off a
man or two, why our foreman would so notify the secretary: “In a couple of
days we are going to lay off Bill Jones.” “All right, here is one of the other
shops have been asking for men. I can place him to-morrow.” He gets in
touch with Bill Jones and says, “ Mr. So-and-so can place you,” and he goes
right down there. Instead of walking around the streets, he knows to-morrow
morning, two days before he is laid off, that he can continue there if he wants
to. If he don’t want to, he don’t have to.

Chairman WarsH. Do you send a list to any others than the ecity of Los
Angeles?

Mr. BAxer. No, sir.

Chairman WasrLsH. That is all confined to Los Angeles?

Mr. BAaxker. So far as I know.

Chairman WarnLsg. When a man is discharged, is the reason gnen to the
association for his discharge?

Mr. BAKER. No, sir; not that I know of.

Chairman WALSH. Just the mere fact that he is laid off or that he is dis-
charged?

Mr. Baker. Why, I don’t know of any complaint of that kind being made
that we got.

Chairman WarLsa. Well, T don’t know that it is a complaint. I just want to
know the character and extent of the information that you give about the em-
ployees. 1Is there anything other than what you have mentioned?

Mr. Baxer. It has been very rare the time that a molder has been dis-
charged. I don’t recall any time. There is work enough here in one shop or
the other to keep them busy all the time.

Chairman WacrsH. Is tliere anything
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Mr. BAKER. I do remember now a case in our place; one of our men was dis-
charged for drunkenness. He didn’t seem to be able to overcome that habit.

Chairman WarsH. Was that information given to the association?

Mr. Baker. Yes, sir; that was given.

Chairman WarsH. Do you recall any other case in whieh the reason for the
discharge was given; for instance, if a man was known to be an advocate of
union labor, would that fact be given so that he might perhaps be discriminated
against by another shop?

Mr. Baxer. Well, I have stated that clearly, that I think all members of our
association try all the means they can to find out whether a man is a union or
a nonunion man. That is very evident as soon as a man goes to work in the
shop, for he starts right in to worimn right into the rest of them there.

Chairman WarsxH. When you find a man is starting to worm into the others,
what do you do with him?

Mr. BAkEr. When we are laying off men, he would be the ﬁl\t man. We
give preference to the other men.

Chairman Warsiz. When you do that, do you notify the association that that
man is an agitator, a man that is trying to worm into the workers and perfect
an organization?

Mr. Baker. Why, the secretary might ask our foreman why he was laid off,
and he probably would tell him that, but not to my knowledge.

Chairman WALsH, JIs it done in writing?

Mr. BAKER. No, sir.

Chairman WALSH Are any of the reasons given in writing?

Mr. BAkER. Not that I know of.

Chairman WaLsH. Do you know it to be a fact that your foreman does
notify the secretary by word of mouth that such is the reason for this man
being laid off?

Mr. BAkEr. I know that our foreman is in constant touch with the secre-
tary of the association.

Chairman WarsH. And keeps him in touch with cases of that kind?

Mr. BAaker. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. About the men that are agitators and likely to become so0?

Mr. Baker. I don’t think they go that far.

Chalrman WarLsH. They don’t go as far as likely to become so?

Mr. BAKER. No; we are avoiding the unlon, we simply want them to let us
alone, They are trying to worm into us all the time.

Chairman WarsH. They are organizing all the time?

Mr. BAkEeR. All the tlme. We have four or five meolders and some pipe
men and some structural men which are In there now that I know they are
union men.

Chairman Warem. Is there anything that has not been specifically asked you
that you would like to mention, that you think would be of value to us? You
understand the scope of our investigation. If so, we would be glad to have you
state it.

Mr. BAKER. No; I can’t think of anything.

Chairman WaLsH. At this point, then, the hearing will stand adjourned
until 2 o’clock.

If you will, kindly come back at 2 o'clock and resuine the stand.

Mr. BAkER. All right.

(Whereupon at 12.30 o’clock p. m. on this, Wednesday, the 9th day of
September, 1914, an adjournment was taken until 2 o’clock p. m. of the same
day.)

AFTER RECESS—2 P. M.

Met pursuant to adjournment. Present, as before.
Chairman WaLsH. Mr. Baker, will you take the stand?

TESTIMONY OF MR. FRED L. BAKER—Continued.

Chairman WarLsH. Mr. Garretson would like to ask you some questions.

Commissioner GArrersoN. Mr. Baker, from the declaration that you made
in regard to the hiring of men, I assume that you do not hold any of this idea
that a good many have testified to, that the boycott is either un-American,
unholy, or eriminal?

Mr. Baker. I did not hear one word.

Commissioner Garrersox. The boycott. .
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* Mr. Baxker. The boycott? Why, I had not given that part very much thought.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Well, that has been a loudly proclaimed article
of faith with a good many men \\ho opposed the union shop. But I assume
from your statement with regard to your own attitude that you do not share in
that.

Mr. Baxer. I do not object to them trying to boycott me if they want to
and can succeed.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You boycott them?

Mr. BAxeEr. Why, I am doing just as they are doing.

Commissioner GArRreTson. That is

Mr. Baker. I have a policy that I want to run my own business, and I
can’t run it with hired union men because——

Commissioner GARRETSON. And you recognize their right to do just what
‘ou do?
¥ Mr.- BAXER. Absolutely. We Qiffer only as to their methods; if they will let
me alone—but they want to force me, force my men that don’t see fit to join
their organization alone, and that is the reason the antipicketing ordinance
was passed.

Commissioner GARBETSON. That has no bearing on the real question of the
boycott, though.

Mr. BAxER. No, sir.

Commissioner GarrersoN. That Is the question of policy followed by the
union.

Mr. BAkER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner G&RRETSON. Now, the objection of your organizations, either
one of them, it don’t matter which, the molders—what is it, the molders and
employers?

Mr., Baxer. Founders and employers’ associations.

Commissioner GARRETSON. The object of that association is to carry forward
and make effective the beliefs you have announced?

Mr. Baker. Well, I could not say to that. I don’t know that their policy

Commissioner GARRETSON, What is the object of the organization?

Mr. Bakgr. The organization, as I understand it—I have not read the by-
laws for a number of years, but it is to foster the foundry industry and—well,
follow it along successful lines to success in that line of business,

Commissioner GArrETsON. To attain its object?

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Do you question the right of your employees, then,
to organize for the purpose of attaining any legitimate obJect which they believe
they have in view?

Mr. BARER. Not a bit. I rather think it is a good thing.

Commissioner GARRETsON. What is your attitude, then, teward—are we to
understand your objection to unionism lies not in the existence of the union,
but in the method which it has in your opinion employed; is that the real
objection?

Mr. Baker. That is what I said this morning.

Commissioner GARReTsoN. Then, aside from that, what would be your r11:ti-
tude toward collective bargaining?

Mr. BAKER. I have never tried that; I don’t know. I do not believe I would
like it.

Commissioner GARRETSON. You have seen it carried on elsewhere?

Mr. Baxer. I don’t believe T would like it.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. Either—give it its broadest sense, with the em-
ployers organized as well as the employees and dealing for a craft or for a
section of the country.

Mr. Baxer. But the employers T have ever been associated with in any organi-
zation are not organized along the same lines as the workmen are in their
so-called unions.

Commissioner GArRreTson. I will cite you to where it has been carried probh-
ably to its greatest perfection. All the railroads on this continent—the steam
railroads are dealt for by three associations.

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir,

Commissioner GarrETsoN. That is, Canada and the States?

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner GARreTsoN. In that type, which is the mest far-reaching eof
any that I know of—the coal industry of course only being for a limited sec-
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tion—does it occur to you that it has advantages that the single mllload would
not have in dealing \uth its own men?

Mr. BAaKER. I believe that is a good thing for both emplover and employee,

Commissioner GARReTsON. And do you not believe that in such—well, put it
in the phrase of the man who has been there—that it gets around the hard
corners that arise in negotiations and takes personalities out of it.

Mr. Barer. That is correct. I can see very clearly where that can be
applied to that class of employment because it is of such a general nature and
s0 many employees all on a par. k

Commissioner GARRETSON. And you take your foundry association, all men
and trades engaged in that craft, couldn’t it be made reasonably applicable on
precisely the same basis, we will say? Does your industry here embrace the
county or only the town?

Mr. Baxker. We take in the eity, and there are a few little towns close by.

Commissioner GARRETsoN. What made me ask this is in San Francisco they
seem to embrace the county also and trans-bay points, Here if it only em-
braces the territory of the city all the employers acting as a unit in that one
craft, wouldn’t it be perfectly feasible to act on that common basis?

Mr. Baxger. It would, I presume, if the condition imposed on us was the same
as on our competitors in the Far East, those we have to compete with where
the rates for labor are less and where the raw material and the finished product
takes the same rate. Therefore the eastern manufacturers can come into this
market and go into the San Francisco market and compete, and if we are tied
up in such agreements as that we would not be on a par with our competitors,
and therefore we would have to go out of business as far as the foundry was
coneerned.

Commissioner GARReTsoN. Take all classes of the trade. Isn’t it true that—
now, it was.testified before us in the metal trade—the manager of the Union
Iron Works gave testimony?

AMr., BAKER. Yes, sir,

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. That with the wages that were paid in San Fran-
cisco in that craft, and I assume they are as high as yours, if not higher.

Mr. Baxer. I think they are higher.

Commissioner GAarrersox. That he had no difficulty, was placed at no dis-
advantage as against eastern bidders. If that statement is correct, is there
any evidence that the San Franecisco competitor could act injuriously upon
you if you dealt under the same conditions that they deal under?

Mr. Baker. But we don’t look to San Franeisco territory for the output of
our material—our product.

Commissioner GakrersoN. If you were at an advantage over San Irancisco
you would drive them out of the competitive territory, would you not?

Mr. BAKER. Why, we would

Commissioner GarreTsoN, Largely.

Mr. BAker. We would cope in there; yes, sir,

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. And if they had an advantage they would drive
you from the competitive territory. y

Mr. Baxer. Yes, sir; exactly; that is it.

Commissioner GARRETSON. The question, of course, hetween yourself as a Pa-
cific eoast proposition, and the East, is largely a question of transportation and
prices, is it not?

Mr. BARER. And labor,

Commissioner GARReTsoN. Putting labor on a parity, it is purely a tlanspor-
tation question that would stand between?

Mr. BAkkRr. Yes, sir, d

Commissioner GArreTsoN. I am only assuming this. The testimony in San
Francisco was to the effect that only two trades paid higher than the eastern
scale. I think I am quoting it correctly. There were two trades in San Fran-
cisco that paid less than the East. The others nearly on a parity. Then you
have no prejudice against collective bargaining?

Mr, BAkeR., Oh, no; not at all,

Commissioner GABRETSO.\’. If conducted on a closely organized basis on both
sides?

Mr. BAker. I have no objection to anything that- treats all alike—all fair.

Commissioner GarrersoN, That is all, Mr, Chairman.

Chairman WarsH. Anything else?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes,

Chairman Warsy. Commissioner Weinstock would like to ask some questions.
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Commissioner WEeINsTock. Will you again please tell us how many men you
have in your employ now? You mentioned it, but I have forgotten.

Mr. Baker. To-day I think we have only about 260.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you know what the proportion of those em-
ployees is that are married, and what proportion is not?

Mr. BAkeR. I could only tell by looking over our rate cards.

Commissioner WeInsrock. Could you approximate it?

Mr. BAKER. I eould not; no, Mr. Weinstock.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you know what proportion of those are owners
of homes?

Mr. Baxer. I don’t know that, either.

Comniissioner WEINSTOCK. Do you know what proportion of those are—
what the average length of time of your people are?

Mr., BAKER. No. A great many of the faces I know have been there a long
time, but I haven't any condensed records.

Commissioner WEiNsTocK. Could you tabulate that for the information of
the commission, the number of married and ummarried men, the number that
own their homes, and the average length of service of your men?

Mr. BakEer. I believe that we could get such a statement up.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. If you could, would you hand it in?

Mr. Bakrer. Yes; I will have one of the clerks go at that.

{The following statement was subsequently submitted by Mr, Baker:)

Many of our men are working on outside jobs, away from the city. We have
checked up with those present, and find that we have: 34 who own their
homes outright, 26 paying for their homes on the installment plan, 1 owning
a lot and contemplates building, and 9 buying lots on the installment plan, pre-
paring to build later. To-day we have only 190 on our pay roll—lowest mark
for years. We presume many of those who are laying off also own their homes,
or are paying for them. £

Commissioner WeIiNsTock, In answer to a question of Mr. Garretson, Mr.
Baker, you said that you had no objections to unionism, but you did criticize
some of the union methods?

Mr. BAKER. Yes.

Commissioner WEeINsTOCK. Now, may we ask you to point out what, in your
judgment, are the weak spots in unionism, as you see them?

Mr. BakEgr. Of course I can only talk about the points that affected us in
our little trouble. As I stated this morning, way back in 1886, with my little
experience with them then, it taught me I could not get along with them as
they seemed to operate——

Chairman WarsH. I can not catch that. Speak a little louder, please.

Mr. BAKER. As they operated at that time. And in 1910, when the strike
took place, prior to the strike we, like others, received a communication, I
‘- presume to be the one Mr. Grow set forth this morning, setting forth what the
unions wanted, like to_make arrangements with us for that elass of employ-
ment. I think I was the one that made the statement that it was relegated
to the waste-paper basket. The reason we do that was this: We had not any
communication in the past or any business dealings with the union of any kind ;
therefore the inducements that they held out to us in that eircular were not
attractive, I did not see where we could benefit by adopting them; they were
not along the lines that had been—that we had been used to working on and
were entirely unsatisfactory, were not given any consideration further than
to ¢heck up and find out that they would not suit our purposes.

So time went on and I met, I think in front of our place one day, I met
a member of the union who wanted to know if a committee could have a talk
with me. ‘“ Why,” I says, “certainly; I will talk with anybody. What do you
want to talk on?” He said, “I want to talk about that circular.” I said,
“1 don’t care to discuss it because we are not in the market for union labor.”
And he says, “ Then would you objeet to discussing it with a committee of your
men?” I says, “ No; a committee of our workmen are always welcome at our
office.”

The next morning a committee of some 12, I think it was, asked to have a
conference with me. It was granted. They came into my oflice and they
started in to dlscuss the matter and wanted to know if we could get together
on that circular. I stated my position as plainly as I knew how, covering a
period of about 30 minutes, and then one or two spoke up and said something,
and- I went further into it and answered their questions and told them of our
position, just as I am telling you, that I could not and I did not care to deal
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with the unions, but if they had any grievance as our employees I would be
glad, indeed, to take it up with them on that basis.

Then one of the men turned around and said, ‘“ What will we tell the men?”
I says, “ Have I sat here for 30 minutes and made our position clear and you
haven’t gathered what you can tell the men?” I says, “I can’t make it any
plainer.” I said, “ On the other hand, we are sending out circular letters every
day setting forth our produet to different prospective consumers, and it goes
in the waste-paper basket when it is not attractive.” * Well,” he says, * you
want to answer that letter.” I says, “I don’t know why, it comes to me in the
form of a circular letter, asking if they can’t contract with us. It is not ad-
dressed to us, only on the envelope. It is a circular letter sent to everybody.”
And that ended that. And a few days after that there was about 250 men,
I should judge, appeared in front of our place about 9 o’clock—a prearrange«d
arrangement from the appearance of it—and then about 5 or 6 men started
out from the front door, and a big roar and clapping of hands and shouting
took place. >

Then pretty soon four or five more men walked out. They kept that up
there until they had taken out & hundred or two hundred men. Then they
marched down the street. I was curious to see where they went. They marched
over to the Western Pipe & Steel Co.

Then they walked over to the Lacy Manufacturing Co., the Llewllyn Iron
Works, and so on. They kept that up daily, getting every man they could
induce to come out by that process. Of course a timid man would not stay at
work with men in bodies of that kind walking around, not knowing what is
going to happen to them.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. That occurred in 1910, you say?

Mr. BAKER. 1910.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That is called the metal trades’ strike? £

Mr. BaAker. That is called the metal trades’ strike. That js the great objec-
tion I have to the union men, is that they will not let those that are satisfied
to work, alone. If they want to induce them to join the union, and can hold
out some advantages that the men can see, I have no objection to the men
joining. And I don’t see why they don't all join. From what I have heard
this morning it would appear that that was the only place for a man to go for
employment,

Commissioner WeIxstock. One of the phases of the industrial problem that
this commission is called upon to investigate is that of violence in labor troubles.
Will you tell this commission, Mr. Baker, whether any violence followed that
strike, and with whom the responsibility for such violence rested, so far as
you know?

Mr. Baker. Well, I can’t tell unless—I would not lay it to the jewelers,
or the barbers, or the hotel keepers, or the bankers in town. - I should judge it
must come from the friends of the labor unions. They were the only ones
that seemed to be marching around endeavoring to Intiimldate the men by their
presence.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Were there any acts of violence committed against
any of your employees? $

Mr. Bakgr. Well, I can’t remember now. There was a good deal of that
going on, a good many men were got into seraps.

Commissioner WeINsTock. Do you recall of any arrests that were made for
violence against any of your employees?

Mr. Baxker. No; I can’t say that there was any arrests against any of our
employees. There were a good many arrests made because of the picketing
ordnance. And I might say, Mr. Grow spoke this morning about going before
the city council in reference to the picketing ordinance. He was representing,
as I understand, the labor unions on the one side, while I had a hand in rep-
resenting our association on the other. And one of his statements was that the
unions were law-abiding citizens, which we admitted, and the council accepted
as such, And my statement was, if they was law-abiding citizens, that law
wouldn’t hurt them. Why should they object to it? After the picketing
ordinance was then passed, against all the warnings of the authorities, they
insisted and persisted in continuing to picket, to picket, and contlnue picket-
ing, and that was why the authorities took up 35 in front of our place one
day because they had warned them on several occasions not to persist in break-
ing the law.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You don’t know then from your own knowledge,
Mr. Baker, whether acts of violence were committed against nonunion men,
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whether there were arrests made or whether there were any convictions that
followed?

Mr. BaAxer. Oh, yes; I know of—there was only two that I can recall.

Mr. Grow told of those this morning, with the exception of one that, I think,
was down to the Ornamental Iron Works., The young man admitted his guilt
and was fined, I think, 30 or 60 days—something of that kind—for beating up
a man in front of his place of employment as he went in.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Mr, Grow told us of his experience.

Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Of his arrest?

Mr. Baxer. I know nothing of that, only indirectly.

Commissioner WEINsTock. Was that in connection with one of your men?

Mr. BAkEr. No; I think that was a man from the Keystone Iron Works, Mr,
Grow said.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. I see. So you are not familiar?

Mr. BAKER. I am not familiar—only what I saw in the newspapers—not the
details of it.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. As an employer you understand, of course, that
one of the functions of this commission that it is expected to perform—a re-
sponsibility put upon it by Congress—is to find out, if possible, what are the
underlying causes in this country for industrial unrest. Now, with your broad
experience, Mr, Baker, as an employer, and with your knowledge of conditions
generally, what in your opinion are the underlying causes for industrial unrest?

Mr. Baxgr., Well, that is a pretty hard statement for me to make. I have
ideas that there are employers, like employees, that abuse their privileges.
And I have always been a believer that if we could have some national law that
treated us all alike to regulate many of these abuses—which I hope this com-
mission will find before it terminates its work—good can come of it.

Commissioner WeINsTockK. Well, among the suggestions that have been made
to the commission—you understand, of course, Mr. Baker, that the members of
this commission can not hope within their inner consciousness to solve all these
problems; that we must depend upon men like yourself and members of labor
to help point out the way to us and to aid us by their suggestions and by their
advice and by their experience.

Now, one of the suggestions that have been made to this commission and that
the commission has under serious consideration is recommending to Congress
the formation or the creation of a permanent industrial commission who shall
be to private industries what the present mediation board is to the transporta-
tion undertakings; that is, a commission that shall be in a position to tender
its good offices in the event of any industrial disputes, to both sides, and to act
as mediators, conciliators, and, if requested by both sides, to possibly act as
arbitrators.

In your judgment, would a commission of that sort be of any value?

Mr. BAkER. I think so, if it had powers to enforce their

Commissioner WeiNsTocK. No; without compulsory powers.

Mr. BaAker. Without compulsory powers? I could not say as to that.

Commissioner WeinsTocK. The board of mediation has no compulsory powers
to-day—the board that is dealing with the railroad labor disputes.

Mr. Baxgr. Well, they could not help but do good, Mr. Weinstock. They
could not help but do good.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. So far as you can see, you think that would be a
helpful situation?

Mr. BaxEer. I think so. -

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. We are also investigating into the matter of
workmen’s compensation, Mr. Baker.

Mr. BAKER. Yes.

Commissioner WrINsTocK. The so-called Boynton Act has been in operation
now for eight months. It is a compulsory workmen’s compensation act. Will
you give this commission the benefit of your opinion on workmen’s compensa-
tion as it has worked out in the State of California, whether you regard it as
good or as bad for the worker and the employer?

Mr. BAkER. Generally, I consider it a very good law for both the employee
and the employer.

It is a law that I have been in favor of something of that kind for a very
long time, because of the fact that in the past for & long period of years we
earried our own insurance and settledl with our own employees.as best we
could, eliminating wherever- it -was possible, the attorney that gets hold of
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them immediately after an accident takes place and gets the biggest portion of
the returns; and we have carried it through insurance companies. But the
action for the past eight months of that law has been very pleasing to us, be-
cause of the fact that we come pretty near knowing now what we have to pay
and the injured person knows what he is going to get; and there has been
cases where we have been by the law permitted—not kept from paying where
we know the situation. We have taken an opportunity on our side without

Commissioner WEeINsTOCK. That iIs, you have augmented the legal compen-
sation? ; 4

Mr. BAKrERr. Yes; we have advanced the money and we have given money.
In other words, some of the employees we have paid them the first two weeks’
salary that the law provides we don’t have to pay, carrying out the policy
that we have always carried out,

On the whole, I think the law a very good one, and I think, after the com-
mission has had a year’s run of that law, with the experiences of their reports
that they get, they will be able to suggest many remedies that will carry it
still further. And I hope that this commission will in some way get it to
become, maybe not a national law, but have the different States adopt it.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. I see. Now, what advantage have you found, as
an employer and manufacturer, the safety end of the law, the law that pro-
vides for a safety department, that authorizes the commission to make in-
spections in shops and factories and to aid the safety-first idea? Has that
been any advantage in your industry, so far as you can see?

Mr. BAxER. Yes, yes; we have in our plant a safety committee consisting
of some of the men, our superintendent, and one of the officials of our cor-
poration, and we receive suggestions from all of our men where they can safe-
guard any of our machines. And in 80 per cent of the cases we have adopted
their ideas. Some of my men have advanced some pretty good ideas, to the
extent that the commisslon, so our secretary says, has given us something like
20 points,

Commissioner WreINSTOCK. In your insurance rate?

Mr. Baker. No; credits for the lmprovements made above the average.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. One criticism that was launched against the
workmen’s compensation act was that it was putting a heavy burden upon in-
dustry. HMave you found that to be so, that the burden has been a heavy one?

Mr. BAkeER. No; we have not, 'The changes we have made in some instances
have been fairly expensive, but when you consider that-they are done for the
purpose of saving life and limb, and it has in a small degree accomplished that,
we have been repaid for it.

Commissioner Weinstock. That is all.

Commissioner GarrersoN. The fact is, Mr. Baker, that the man now gets
what you formerly pald out instead of over 60 per cent of it being lost between
you and him?

Mr. Baxer. I don’t know how much, but I imagine a good deal.

Commissioner GArrersoN., The testimony before all the commissions was
that it has run from 32 to 36 cents of every dollar that the employer paid
under the old system only reached the man.

Mr. Baxer. Something like that.

Commissioner O'ConnNerLr. I want to get a little information, Mr. Baker.
The founders’ employment office, that is carried on by a secretary of the
association?

Mr. BaAker. They have an executive committee and a secretary.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. And there are kept the records of the various
molders who make application for employment?

Mr. BARER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoxNeLL. Do all the molders employed by the founders in
Los Angeles make application through that office?

Mr. Baker. They don’t have to. Once they go to work—if we hire a molder,
as we have done many times, his name ix sent in the next week with the list
that they make of changes, so that they have a complete record there once
a week.

Commissioner O’CoxxeLL. If a molder is employed direct by the employer,
then they furnish the office with the information that they have employed
such a man?

Mr. BAkERr. The secretary gets the list from, as I testified this morning,
the foreman or the timekeeper, once a week, I think it is; something of
that Kind.
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Commissioner O’CoNNELL. I don’t know whether we have the secretary of
that bureau subpecenaed here or not. Do you know whether they keep——

Mr. Baxer. How is that?

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Do you know whether they keep an index-card
system of the molders in that office?

Mr. Baker. How is that?

Commissioner (’CoxNELL. Do they keep a card system, index-card system, of
the various employees of the foundries in that general office?

Mr. Baxer. I have never investigated that fact; I don’t know whether
they have or not; they have a record of somme kind there.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Well, one founder might hire an employee of
another who desires to make a change?

Mr. BaAkERr. Certainly. 4

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Any objection to his making a change?

Mr. Bakkr, No, sir.

Cominissioner O'CoxnerL, If an employee is discharged at one foundry for
cause suflicient to the employer and that cause made a record at the office
of the agency, the employing agency, that reason is supplied to the other
founders, if that makes an application to another plant?

Mr. Baxker, I think that is a faet; yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL, I suppose that cause would be suflicient from
securing employment at another plant?

Mr. Baxer. No; not by any means. I ean cite several cases where men
might have a little personal difference with the foreman at one shop and
known to the rest to be a geod workman, couldn’t get along; that doesn't
make it so that he could not work other places; the other places were glad
to get him. We have several instances in mind of that character.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Does the record show that he was discharged for
lack of turning out a suflicient amount of work?

Mr. Baker. There is no record kept of anything of that kind—what a man
should do for a day’s work. We have no knowledge of that. That is a mat-
ter of the individual shop foreman to handle, that feature of his business.

Cominissioner O’CoNNELL. Do you know whether that office furnishes in-
formation to similar offices located in other towns?

Mr. Baxkkr. I never heard of it.

Commissioner ’CoxnNerL. Your office is associated, I suppose, with the
National Founders’ Association, directly or indirectly?

Mr. Bakgr. I don’t think they are.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. This morning you said you were going to furnish’
a list, but can you approximately give us the wages paid meolders in your
foundry ?

Mr. BAkEer, Yes, sir; I have a memorandum here that I made. We had
a holiday to-day, or I could have gotten the list for you. I just copied this
from our pay roll. The highest, outside of our foreman, is 44} cents an
hour and the lowest paid helper is 25 cents an hour.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. What do you pay core makers?

Mr. Baker. I haven’t got that segregated. I have just taken the minimum
and maximum on the pay roll.

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Just this last question: I understood you to refer
several times to the fact you had no objection to the men organizing, that they
had the legal right and all that kind of thing to organize, and that they
might be dealt with under certain circumstances if organized along certain
lines. 1 would be glad if you would give this commission your idea of what
kind of organization you believe the wageworkers ought to have.

Mr. Baker. Well, I have an idea the wageworkers should be stockholders
in certain corporations just as you might be in our corporation, and when our
corporation fails in its contract our corporation is liable on its bond for the
faithful performance of the contract and we can be reached, and the labor-
union contract is not along that same line.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. You think, then, they ought to be incorporated so
they would be legally liable?

Mr. Baker. I think that they ought to be incorporated.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. So that they might be sued for damages or loss?

Mr. Baxker. So that they could be held to the strict letter of their contract.

Commissioner O’CoNnNerL. That is all.

Commissioner WrINsTOCK. Just one question: May I ask, Mr. Baker, how is
the wage scale determined upon in your industry here? Does each employer
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fix his own wage scale or does your association fix a common wage secale by
which all employers abide?

Mr. Baxker. We have no association that deals with the help in any line along
that line or fixes any salary, except the founders employers’ association fixed
a minimum and maximum wage some years ago. The different foundries
have deviated from that as they have seen fit and at times when they had a
man that they wanted to pay more they have paid him, and the record will
show that when it goes in. There is no set and fast rule about it as I under-
stand it. To-morrow if I saw fit to pay one of my men 4 or 5 cents a pound
more and I thought I was justified in doing it, I would not take it up with'
the asseociation,

Commissioner WEINsTock. If your competitor saw fit to pay him less than
you were paying him, would there be any issue raised?

Mr. Baxer. The man would prabably raise an issue.

Commissioner WeIxNstock. If the man was willing to accept it?

Mr. Baxker. That would be his privilege.

Cominissioner WEeINsTocK. Then, there is really individual bargalning be-
tween each employer and each worker?

Mr. Baxer. That is it, exactly.

Commissioner WEINsTock., And no uniformity among employers.

Mr. Baker. Except in a general way.

Commissioner WEeINsTocK. They suggest, I suppose, that the minimum should
not be below a certain figure and the maximum should not be above a certain
figure, but it is left to each employer to use his own judgment and his own
discretion?

Mr. Baker. Yes, sir; and that brings to my mind a suggestion, if I may be
permitted to state now, what this commission might do. I think a great deal
of trouble could be eliminated, as I said before, by the employer that endeavors
to take advantage of the workman under circumstances as an individual or
in a locality by paying him strictly in accordance with the law of supply and
demand if the Government should fix a minimum wage for each craft, and let
them pay as much more as they can earn, and that should be a fair living wage.

Commissioner Wrrxstock. That is, your idea would be that in order to
protect the fair employer against unfair competition——

Mr. Baker. Exactly, and at the same tlme proteet the workman, whether
union or nonunion man, who may be in a position where he can’t help hinselr
amnd he has to take it.

Commissioner WEINsTock. In other words, as it is to-day, you may be paying
your people the maximum wage?

Mr. BakEgr. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. And your competltor across the street, who
wants to take advantage of the unemployment of men, may equeeze them?

Mr. Baker. Yes, sir.

Commisstoner WEINSTOCK. And get them at a much lower rate than you are
paying your men and that would make competition between you aliost pro-
hibitive.

Mr. Baxer. I wasn’t looking at it in that sense. I don’t think that would
make much difference.

Commissioner WeiNsTock. If your competitor could get his labor 10 or 15
per cent cheaper, couldn’t he underbid you?

Mr. Baker. He could.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. And wouldn’t that be unfair competition?

Mr. Baxer. It would in a locality; yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. In the matter of efficiency, has there been any
attempt made to determine the efficiency of the average worker in San Fran-
cisco with the efficlency of the average workman in Los Angeles?

Mr. BAker. Not that I know of.

Commissioner WEinstock. The only thing that there is then is merely in-
dividual opinions as to whether the San I'rancisco worker is more or less efii-
clent than the Los Angeles worker?

* Mr. Baxer. I don’t know anything about that feature of it.

Commissioner WeINsTtock., That is all.

Chairman WarLss. Mr. Garretson would like to ask you some questions,

Commissioner Garkerson. In the opinion you gave a moment ago in regard
to the legal respongibility of wunions, Mr. Baker. 1 suppose that opinion
was originally formed on what is known, or based en what is known, as the
Taft-Vail decision in England? 3 :
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Mr. BARER. No, sir; that is simply just my own idea of it.

Commissioner GARReTsoN. You know in one instance the employers collected
£100,000 cash against the Amalgamated Railway service?

Mr. BAker. I hadr’t heard of that.

Commissioner Garrersox. They did. Do you know what took place immedi-
ately after that?

Mr. BAkER. No, sir.

Conmmmissioner GArrersoN. That collection took place under the common-law
process, and there was immediately a statute exacted making that impossible
‘in the future. That was the English process. Do you know any place where—
bear in mind the labor movement is older in some places than it is here. Do
vou know of any place where there has been a statute that made such re-
covery possible?

Mr. BaAxer. We have here in California, do we not, a statute that you can’t
pay less than $2 a day for eight hours?

Commissioner GARRETsON. I spoke in regard to the recovery of damages for
breach of contract by unions.

Mr. Baxer. No, sir; I have never thought along that line,

Commissioner WeINsTock. The hatters’ case.

Commissioner GARrReTsoN. That wasn’t founded on the Taft-Vail decision.

Comniissioner O’CoxnNeLL. That hasn’t been collected yet.

Commissioner GArrersoN. That hasn’t been collected yet. In regard to the
question that Mr. Weinstock asked you in regard to unrest, that brought to my
mind this—it is evident you looked this situation over pretty broadly—this
testimony was given before this commission: First, that one of the primal
causes of unrest was the widespread impression—bear in mind that came not
from a trade union or employer—the bald statement—that one of the most
prolific sources of unrest was the distrust of the courts and the courts’ applica-
tion of the law. Do you believe that that is an agency that would enter into
the creation of unrest largely or not?

Mr. BakEer. I could not say as to ‘that.

Comimissioner GArrRersoN. Would it in your opinion?

Mr. Baxger. I have always been taught to uphold the law and abide by its
decision, and I don’t care to express myself.

Commissioner Garrerson. It was testified by an officer, he is now a prose-
cuting attorney, in answer to he direct question whether the rich man and
poor man had any equality before the law, what wus the outgrowth of his
experience, both as prosecutor, which he is now in one of the counties of this
country, and as a defender in his general law practice, whether they had any
equality, and his answer was unqualifiedly, “ No.” If that condition does
exist, would it explain a large part of the unrest, or would it not?

Mr. BAKER. I could not say. I think he would be the one to answer that.
That is out of my line entirely. My training is not that way.

Commissioner GARRETSON. Do you believe that the enactment of unfair laws
would be anything of a factor?

Mr. Bakgg. I think so. I sometimes think we have too much law.

Commissioner GAarrersoN. That is all. Thank you.

Chairman WawLsH. That is all. Thank you.

Mr. Baxer., May I correct a statement that was made this morning? Mr.
Grow stated, and in my mind it left the founders and employers’ association
in a position of repudiating its act. He said that the strike was called off at
our request. Now, what took place was this—and that I came forth and re-
pudiated the acts of the officers. Well, Mr. Haswell was passing Labor Temple
one day, and knowing some.of the men that worked in the shop and had since
joined the union, they says, “ Why can’t we talk with you, Mr. Haswell ?”
“Well,” he says, “I am not authorized to act.,” And finally he agreed to go
in ahd sit down and listen to them:. He did that, and then reported that imme-
diately, of course, to Mr. Little, chairman of the executive committee, and Mr.
Little said, “ Why, no; we have no objection to a committee coming up and
talking with us.,” And the committee did come up and talked, and Mr. Little
listened to what they had to say. They said they were going to call the strike
off anyway—ifrom Mr, Little’s statement, and they wanted to see if there was
not some way we might get together. Mr. Little said he would take it up with
the association. Upon that they went down and called the strike off and gave
us credit for making an arrangement with them, which I never did, and I
simply came out in the papers, and made a counter statement of the facts
which existed, which are all of record,
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Chairman WarsH. Is that all, Mr. Baker?
Mr. BAKER. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsHd. Thank you.

Mr. Buzzell.

TESTIMONY OF MR. J. W. BUZZELL.

Chairman Warsn. State your name.

Mr. BuzzerLL., J. W. Buzzell.

Chairman WaLsH. What is your residence?

Mr. BuzzerL. My residence or business? My mail address?

Chairman WaALsH. Your business address.

Mr. BuzzeLL. Room 106, Labor Temple.

Chairman Warsi., What is your business?

Mr. BuzzeLL. At present secretary and business agent of the metal trades
council, Los Angeles.

Chairman WaLsH. How long have you lived in Los Angeles?

Mr. BuzzerL., About four and a half or five years; somewhere there.

Chairman WarsH. How long have you occupied your present position?

Mr. BuzzerL, About six months, '

Chairman WarLsH. Will you please try and pitch your voice higher? It is very
difficult to hear up here, and I know the audience would like to hear you. Try
and piteh it higher.

Mr. Buzzern., Thank you.

Chairman WArLsH. How long have you occupied your present position?

Mr. BuzzerL, Taking all my time, about six months, I have been secretary of
the council for approximately a year.

Chairman WaLsH, Prior to that time did you have any official position with
organized labor?

Mr. BuzzeLL, Recording secretary of the pattern makers’ assoclation.

Chairman WarsH. Local?

Mr. BuzzeLr., Yes, sir.

Chairman WALsH. Any other oflicial position?

Mr. BuzzerLL., No, sir.

Chairman WALsH. You are a pattern maker by trade?

Mr. BuzzeLL, Yes, sir,

Chairman Warsa. And have worked at your trade at what places?

Mr. BuzzerLr. Pretty nearly all over the country.

Chairman WaALsH. You have been around a great deal?

Mr. BuzzeLL, Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. You are a native of what State?

Mr. BuzzeLL, Minnesota.

Chairman WatLsH. You have worked as a journeyman in what States?

Mr. BuzzeLL. I served an apprenticeship in Alabama, and T have been through
the South and Mexico and the Eastern States and Middle States, and Southwest,
and as far north as Reddlng, Cal.,, but not through Colorado, Wyoming, and
Montana.

Chairman WarLsa. A list of questions, I believe, was submitted to you.

Mr. BuzzeLL. I believe so.

Chairman WarsH. And what we want you to direct your attention to par-
ticularly is a comparative exposition of the working conditions under union and
so-called open-shop conditions, or under union and nonunion conditions, First,
as to wages and hours, and, of course, that is confined to Los Angeles.

Mr. BuzzeLL, That is confined to Los Angeles entirely ?

Chairman Warsy, First it is.

Mr. BuzzerL. I see. You want me to go ahead now?

Chairman WaLsH. You may proceed in your own way as briefly as possible.

Mr. BuzzeLL. In the metal trades in Los Angeles, in which I am more familiar
than I am in other lines, the so-called open shop—there are no open shops, union
or nonunion, but in the so-called open shops the conditions under which the men
work are comparatively, in my own language, rotten.

Mr. Buzzerr. In the first place, in the nonunion shop a man starts out to—
a journeyman starts out to hunt work, and in this city ever since the strike
in 1904 of the molders was called off, particularly the molders and pattern
makers, the pattern makers not as bad as the molders, they have been told
when they go into a shop, if they are strangers in the town, about the first
question that is asked, * Where are you from?.- Do you belong to the union?
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Have you been to see Mr.? "—it used to be Mr. Anthony, and now it is Has-
well, They will give you a card to Mr. Haswell, with the name and address
on and you are told to proceed to that office, which is in the Bryson Building,
on the corner of Second and Spring Streets.

My experience on two or three different occasions going up there—I have been
there at different lapses of time—has been always about the same. I have
dressed differently; I have gone up there, I will admit, to find out if there
is any difference in the tactics used; I have given different names at different
times. The tactics are always the same. You are asked “ Where are you
from? Do you belong to the union?” On one occasion I asked him if that made
any difference. I said, “I have belonged to the union; I have been down in
Mexico for the last couple of years; been suspended since I was down there;
1 always carried a card when I was around when there was a local, and I
naturally expected when I got back on the coast to get reinstated.” 1 was
advised by Mr. Haswell if I wanted work in the city of Los Angeles I should
forget that, but when I got to San Francisco—San Francisco was the union
town—why, it would probably be to my advantage to get reinstated, but not to
do it until I got there.

Now, the molders up until recently, more recently where there have been a
few small shops that have made competition rather keen among the owners for
the small-shop work, have maintained what was practically a maximum rate
for molders. They maintained that maximum rate through the method that
they used, and, by the way, they have got the business-agent system down
fine in the foundrymen’s association. They have a business agent, what we
call a business agent, they have a secretary, and when a molder goes there he
gives his personal record. That is the first thing, and if my obgervation has
been correct—I have tried my best to see—they have different eolored cards
that they have different men’s names on, and my observation has been that
the molders who have been at all active in the labor movement, whether it was
coincident or intentional, have been the ones that loafed. It has been noticed that
the men with families loafed just about so long and then they are given a little
work. Then they loaf again. And men have come on different occasions—I
can’t prove that, but in one instance in Mr. Baker’s shop a man came down
to the temple, and he made a kick—by the way, the man was not in good stand-
ing in the molders’ union at the time, either—that he had been offered—IL
believe he was getting 374 cents an hour in the Baker foundry, and he had
been offered 40 eents in another shop, and he quit to go down and take that
job, and he took his tools into the shop one day figuring on starting the next,
or went to go in to work, when he was asked why he left the Baker shop.
That was the second time he went into the shop; whether he took his tools
or whether he went to work, I don’t know. He was asked why he quit Baker’s
shop, the ironworks, and he naturally told them that he was offered more.
He was not getting as much money as he was offered here. Well, they told
him that Mr. Baker objected to him going somewhere else, and he went back
to Baker, and he didn’t want to go.

Now, through the metal trades’ strike, or leading up to the nretal trades’
strike, the foundry employers’ association, they worked that business-agent
system down pretty nicely, with the result that the molders—there were no
union shops for molders in the town, except probably a molder who was a
member of a molders’ union, running a brass shop where he hired one man,
and to all intents and purposes he was working under unhion conditions.

The molders in Los Angeles work for 274 cents to 374 cents an hour, day-
work, 9 and 10 hours a day. Some few might get as high as 40. Mr. Baker
said he had one now getting 44; perhaps there are a few, but not many in-
stances of men getting near that except maybe those that kKeep their eyes and
ears open amongst the other molders. The molders—and I want to talk quite a
little on the molders—the molders started to organize again, actively organize,
in about 1908 or 1909, and there are many men that left here because of the
effects of that organization. Mr. Baker says he has several of them working
in his shop now that are trying to organize. He may have but they won’t
stay very long, I don’t think. But, anyhow, the molders, when they went on
a strike here in 1910, when they had quite a large membership of 240, I think,
two hundred and some odd, there are not more than a dozen cases where
those molders have ever been able to get back to work in any of the shops that
were running at that time; probably a dozen—somewhere in that neighbor-
hood. To-day the conditions are in some respects worse in ordinary times;
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the molders don’t have many written agreements. As I understand, they don’t
bhave many agreements with the foundry men anywhere except in the stove-
plate business. An then the agreements are more or less understandings.

In a union shop where the molders have a recognized shop. committee to
handle the work ‘and any petty grievances that may come up, all things are
settled between the boss of the foundry himself and the committee. Wages are
generally established at a minimum rate, with a sliding scale, and it slides
upward and not downward. And the hours are recognized, being 8, 9, or 10,
as the case might be. The minimum wage is for the given hours per day that
is customary in the given shop. All work that is in a foundry that they term
late in pouring off—that is, in casting their work at night—they get paid in
some places; they take 15 minutes, and they get paid for that work; if they
are half an hour overtime, they get time and a half overtime. They quit
molding when the wind goes on in most cases. The blast goes on and they
clear up their floor to get ready to pour off, so that everything will be out of
the way when they get to carrying iron. In Los Angeles—in a foundry there—
the men mold until all day long in most instances and the helpers carry their
iron in some instances. In some instances the molders mold nine hours
and afterwards they get straight time for overtime unless they work an
hour and a half. I know several cases over here, although I can’t prove it,
but I can bring the witnesses.

Now, Mr. Grow handled the machinists fairly well. The pattern makers up
until the strike, being small in number in the city and naturally small in pro-
portion to other mechanics, they had a good deal, a little bit better handle on
the situation, and as the business has gradually developed into what we call
job-shop business instead of foundry shops here, we had the situation fairly
well in hand when the metal trades’ strike came on. And during the metal
trades’ strike we figured it would be poor policy to strike the foundry shops and
not the job shops, so that one struck and then the pattern shops, and to-day
they are practically back to where they were before the strike,

The boiler makers and blacksmiths, the relative wages and hours here are
hard to say; what they claim for a scale, and what they get, are widely differ-
ent. The boiler makers want 50 cents. They claim a scale of 50 cents an hour.
You will find boiler makers working in the city for any rate the boss can get
them for. Blacksmiths a good deal the same way.

Now, then, the conditions in the so-called open shop are these compared with
the conditions in the union shop. They have no wage scale; they have no
agreement or no understanding as to what the standard of efficiency shall be, In
other words, when a mechanic, a Journeyman, starts out to look for a job, after
being asked the usual first two questions, * Where do you work and do you belong
to the union?” Then a few questions; sometimes “ Why did you leave the last
place?” Very often that is not asked. Then * You canstart in the morning.” And
they always make the man ask the question first *“ What are you going to pay?”
Well, then they pay what you are worth. Well, if a man is inclined to argue,
the answer is the foreman will do the judging, if the man asks him who is going
to be the judge of what he is worth. If a man sets out for a scale, he probably
in some instances gets it, and in some instances he don’t. It depends a good
deal on, as Mr. Baker's superintendent told a pattern maker, Mr. Rowe, last
winter, in January; I heard that they wanted a pattern maker at Baker’s, and
I wanted to get a man in there and sent Rowe down to apply for the job. IHe
was asked the usual question by the superintendent in the office, and he was
told he could go to work. He asked about the money. They offered him 40
cents an hour and he had been used to getting 55 to 62, and naturally objected
to 40 cents. Mr. Baker, or rather the superintendent—I take it for granted the
superintendent ; I wasn’t along and I don’t know whether Baker himself or not,
but he did not argue much about it. He simply told Rowe that if he would
come down there at 7 o'clock in the morning instead of 3 o’clock in the after-
noon, and see the bunch of men who would be tickled to work for less than
40 cents, he would change his mind; he wouldn’t argue about it if he wanted
the job very bad.

Now, those conditions are general. Generally speaking, that is about the
condition that prevails in the so-called open shop.

In the union shop we naturally have, even where there are no written
agreements, as is the case here, even in some of the foundries and pattern
shops, we have an understanding; we know what the bottom-price wage is.
A man when he goes in to get a job he is not asked, *“ Do you carry a card;
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where do you work?” Written references in places of that kind are not much
good, because if the man is competent, a competent mechanic, it don’t take the
foreman over a half a day to judge his capability. In the union shop a man
has to, as a rule, be given a reasonable excuse for being dischrged when he
is discharged. In a nonunion shop he is simply handed his time and told they
don’t need him any longer. *“ We don’t need you any longer, Jimmie; you can
drop around some other time.”

Now, to show some more methods, one that I overlooked here. There is
the machinist that came out of Lewellyn's, named Hilton. On several occasions,
after the strike was over, he applied at Lewellyn’s for a job. The foreman
down there told him, “ Of course, you will understand the situation, Wash "—
his name was Washington, his first name, and everybody called himm Wash—
“You will understand the situation, Wash. It will be quite a while before I
can put you in, but come back again.” And one day after he had been down
there on several occasions, he told him: * Wash, you and I are pretty good
friends for a long time, and I don’t like to fool you any longer. I was told in
the office to keep you and the rest coming just as often as we could get you to
run down, but you will never get a job. So, now, I don’t want you to come any
more, because you are only wasting your time.”

Now, I want to say a little on the policing here—I overlooked a couple of
things. In the summer of 1910, I believe it was—what I am getting at is this—
it has been stated here that they used the police to protect the property, and
we, or I do, at least, do not think that they were used to protect property, but
to picket shops for the employers during the strikes.

In the summer of 1910, this same man Hilton, who was rather an old man,
and a man named George Lockhead, were alone down near the Union Tool
on Palmetto Street. They spoke to a couple of men, and it happened that
they were alone, a couple of the bad ones in there that found it out, and they
came out after these two men, quite a number of strike breakers in the shop.
Mr., Grow, who was down there to kind of look over the pickets, heard of
some one that there was a riot going on down the street, and he run down the
street to where Hilton and Lockhead were to get them out of the corner
they were in, so that these fellows could not catch them, and merely—I can’t
explain it no other way—by his personality he stopped that crowd by standing
and talking to them. While he was standing the crowd opened up and
a policeman with badge No. 219 ran through the crowd. Grow rather let
up in his attitude, because he thought the policeman had come to stop the
row, but the policeman—he found out the policeman didn’t come to protect
him, Hilton, and Lockhead, but he took Grow and beat him, hit him several
times, in fact, Grow went down for the count pretty near, with the ordinary
night stick. And in many instances policing was off during the time. I could
name instance after instance where the police

Chairman WaLsH. Without giving particular instances or the details, just
sketch and show were there many of few.

Mr. BuzzerL. There were many instances just like that, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman WaLsHa. It is claimed, then, that the police sided with the other
side; is that correct? "

Mr. BuzzeLL. Yes, sir. I believe that the police were used for pickets for the
employers, and nothing else. That is my belief in the matter.

Chairman WarLsH. You haven’t finished yet?

Mr. BuzzerL. I just want that point under the first three questions. Safety
and sanitary conditions: I have only this to say, that in the ordinary manu-
facturing establishment there is a certain amount of hazard or dangerous occu-
pation. In the union shop my experience has been on two or three different
occasions that if there was something that apparently did not go for the safety
of the men, when a complaint was made to the management or to the foreman,
it was not made as a request that it be fixed, but it was made as man to man,
And it was usually attended to. If there were two or three screws loose, or
anything liable to come out, or the shaper used in the pattern shop, if the bear-
ings were worn and needed babbeting or an iron belt over a slippery floor and
a man likely to slip and fall, go and get those things remedied.

Now, I have seen them in nonunion shops here in Los Angeles and in other
places where if a man made a complaint like that he was told in rather strenu-
ous language to attend to his own business. And in one case in the Up-to-Date
Pattern Shop here last January they had some complaint from smoke and gas
that came up out of the Acme Brass Foundry underneath. They made a kick
about the gas over at the I'ulton Engine Works, The gas floated over there.
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They raised the stacks, and they then found the sparks descended from the
brass furnace and dropped into the pattern shop. And they was going to put a
sereen onto it. Instead of putting a hood screen on it that would cost a couple
of dollars they made an ordinary screen and put it on top of the smokestack,
with the result that the gas comes out from the furnace up through the fioor
into the pattern shop. That was about the time of the start of the enforce-
ment of the compensation law, Mr. Mason, who was then proprietor—now he is
only part owner—of the Up-to-Date Pattern Shop, boxed up his machinery, and
it cost him a little bit of money, and he was a little sore to say the least.
And then an argument over this gas where two or three men were made sick
and had to go home came up, and he called them up into the office one day at
noon. And he says, “ Shut the door. I want to talk to you fellows.” And he
gave them quite a lecture on what they should do, if there was anything wrong
in the shop, for perhaps three or four minutes. Then he wound up by saying;
he says, “ You people undoubtedly know who made this compensation law,
and,” he says, “I want to tell you right now I don’'t know whether any of you
are lined up that way or not, but if there is any man amongst you that is not
satisfied with this shop, with that gas that comes up through the floor, with the
wages or anything else in this shop, you will do me a favor and you will be
better off yourself if you will quietly pack your tools and come in the office and
get your money and disappear.” In other words, through thé individual bar-
gaining in that case, if they didn’t like it they could beat it.

That is about all that I would like to say.

Chairman Warsma. Now, did you want to make some comparison between
union and nonunion shops?

Mr. BuzzerLn. Yes, sir; just in Los Angeles.

Chairman WaArsH. I confined you to that to begin with.

Mr. BuzzerLn. I should like to; yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. Very good. Just proceed. Do it as concisely as possible,
but as exhaustively as you need.

Mr. Buzzerr. I would do it more with figures than anything else.

Chairman WarsH, All right.

Mr. Buzzerr. The difference in Los Angeles and San Francisco, where rail-
road facilities, classes of work, and that like are a great deal alike, our sta-
tistics show that in San Francisco the pattern makers are working an eight-
hour day for a $5 minimum rate. In Los Angeles they work nine hours, one
shop nine hours and a half, and in a couple of shops eight hours for about what-
ever the boss can get them to work for. To go a little farther east: In St. Louis
the pattern makers make in what we term foundry shops, where it is generally
understood a man does not have to work quite so hard, 48 to 50 cents an
hour, nine-hour day. In the job shops in St. Louis and vicinity they get from
543 to 5S cents for an eight-hour day. The molders in St. Louis get $4 or $4.25
as a rate, and a great many men as high as $4.75 for a nine-hour day. I will
venture to say there are not a half dozen molders in this town that get over
40 cents. In Texas, along the same line of work, a good deal the same competi-
tion, molders and machinists and pattern makers will average from $3.75 to
$5 a day for an eight and nine hour daywork. In an around Los Angeles we
find boiler makers and tank builders working all kinds of rates—$2.50 a day
to $4.50 for the same class of work. In northern California, in Bakersfield,
from Bakersfield north and through Oklahoma, Arizona, Texas, and southwest,
the same class of work, they work eight hours for $4 and $5.50 a day.

I think that is all.

Chairman Warsa. Mr. Weinstock would like to ask a question or two.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Have you the San Francisco wage scale in the
metal trades; have you a copy of it here?

Mr. BuzzeLr. Not entirely. Most of that—some of that is from memory., I
was in San Francisco and in that strike when the wage scale was up.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Now, in the metal trades there are how many
different crafts?

Mr. BuvzzerL. Practically what is known as the metal trades—machinists,
boiler makers, blacksmiths, and sometimes metal polishers.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. What is the minimum for machinists?

Mr. BuzzerLr. Four dollars and twenty-five cents, I believe.

Commissioner WEINsTock., Is that the minimum?

Mr. BuzzerL. That is the minimum.

Commissioner Wernstock. Has it been changed recently?

Mr. BuzzerLL. Not that I'know-of. Hi/ /i
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Commissioner WEINsTock. Well, I was a member of the couciliation board
that dealt with that two or three years ago in San Irancisco; but my recol-
lection is that the minimum for machinists was $3.50, so that there either has
been a change——

Mr, BuzzeLL. I understood in 1907 that the same scale was in effect, and then
I understood the machinists’ scale was $4.25.

Commissioner WEINSsTocK. In 1910 it was $3.50.

Mr. BuzzerLr. Perhaps it has been changed. ¢

jominissioner WEINsTocK. Now, the boiler makers is what?

Mr. Buzzerr. I am not sure of the boiler makers. I have heard that the
boller makers get as high as 75 cents an hour; the average scale is about 50
cents.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. About $4 a day?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Yes.

Commissioner WEINsTOocK. They work eight hours?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Eight hours in San Francisco.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Pattern makers?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Five dollars.

Comumnissioner WEINsTocK. And the molders?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Four and a half.

Commissioner WEINsToCK. And what are the other crafts?

Mr. BuzzeLr. The metal polishers I am not sure.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Those are the four principal crafts?

Mr. BuzzerL. Yes; the blacksmiths.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Machinists and blacksmiths; yes.

Mr. BuzzeirL. I am not sure of their rate. 1 wasn't familiar with them
so well.

Jomimissioner WEINSTOLA I suppose they get about what the molders do, do
they not? [

Mr. Buzzetr. The blacl\smnths have different rates for different kinds ot
work.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. They have a minimum, though, however; I know
that.

Mr. BuzzeLL. Well, it is about $4.50 a day, I think.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. About $4.50?

Mr. BuzzerL., 1 would not be sure.

Commissioner WrINsTock. Have you any means of knowing what the wage,
the average wage, for example, is in Los Angeles?

Mr. BuzzerL, The average wage?

Commissioner WeINsTocK. In these different crafts; yes.

Mr. BuzzerL. The average for molders is about 33 cents an hour.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. And he works how many hours a day?

Mr. BuzzeLLl. Nine.

X Commissioner WrinsTock. That would be 9 times 33; about $3 in round
gures.

Mr. Buzzerr. About. That is for a nine-hour day, you understand.

Commissioner WEINsTock. For a nine-hour day.

Mr. BuzzerLL. Many times they work longer than that.

Commissioner WeiNsTtock. How about blacksmiths?

Mr. BuzzerLL. That is hard to gather.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Could you give those figures; how do you get
your information, anyhow?

Mr. BuzzgLL. I have to get it. )

Commissioner WeINsTock. Do you get it by quizzing the men?

Mr. BDuzzeLL. By quizzing the men in this town.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. And compiling it?

Mr. Buzzerr. And compiling it.

Commissioner WEeINSTOCK. Have you any record at all, any data?

Mr. BuzzerLr. Some. I didn’t think that would be used, so I didn’t bring
it up.

Commissioner WrInsTock. Well, now, DMr. Baker has been asked to prepare
for the information of this commission a statement of his pay roll in the
different crafts.

Mr. BuzzerLL. Yes.

Commissioner WeiNsTocK. Now, will you do that from the union standpoint
for the purposes of comparison, aud send it In to the commission at your con-
venience?

‘OSOfLE
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Mr. Brzzern. I will. Roughly speaking, I have it here.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, you might state it roughly, and then verify
it later.

(The following communication was subsequently received from Mr. Buzzell:)

Los ANGELES, CaL., September 10, 191}.
Cox2118810N ONX INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS :

I hereby submit the following comparative wage scales of Los Angeles in the
nonunion, or so-called * open shop,” except in a few instances in small shops
there are no union, or “ closed shops,” in this city, so I submit the scales asked
for:

Present | Rate asked
rates. for.
Cents, Cents.
Molders and eore makers. 271373 50
Pattern makers 40 -50 50
Beiler makers 32845 50
Blacksmiths. 25 ~50 50
Machinists. .. 25 40 50

The hours are in most cases nine, with straight time for overtime; the hours
asked for are eight, with time and one-half for overtime.

J. W. BuzzELL,
Secretary Los Angeles Mctal Trades’ Counceil,

Mr. BuzzeLL. The average wages, the wages for molders, range from 27} to
373 cents an hour. I figure it out, roughly speaking, about 33 cents average
hour.

Commissioner WEiNsTock. Molders,

Mr. BuzzerLn. With straight time for overtlime.

Commissioner WEiINsToCK. Yes,

Mr. BuzzeLL. Machinists, 25 to 40, and Brother Grow cited an instance where
the Keystone paid a man off at 90 cents a day. Boilermakers work according
to their need, 30 cents to 40 cents an hour; in a few instances, 45. The scale
asked for is 50 cents.

Commissioner Weinstock. Well, you may send in that verified list, will you?

Mr. BuzzerL. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Now, did I understand you to say that in unionized
shops the work is standardized; is that correct?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Standardized how?

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Well, that it Is understood either by verbal or
written agreement that a molder is to do a certain amount of work a day, not
less than a certain amount?

Mr. BuzzeLr. Not less than a certain amount?

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Yes; they have a minimum amount of work that
he must do in order to justify his minimum wage; is that correct?

Mr. Buzzeir. That is generally correct.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. In a union shop?

Mr. BuzzeELL. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Now, is there also, while there is a minimum limit,
if I am to assume that there is a minimum limit of the amount of work that a
man shall turn out to be entitled to his wage, is there also a maximum limit?
In other words, is it understood that he must not produce more than a certain
quantity within a certain day?

Mr. BuzzerLn. Hardly ever that I have had come to my notice. As a rule
the minimum is just about all that a man can do anyhow.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You mean the minimum is really the maximum?

Mr. Buzzerr. It generally works out that way; yes, sir. The minimum Is
generally taken from the fastest man in the shop, even in the union shop to-day.

Commissioner WeinNsTock. Do you know the comparative efficiency of the men
working in the metal trades in Los Angeles compared with the efficiency of
the men working in San Franeisco? In other words, do the Los Angeles
workers turn out more or less work per day than the San Francisco workers;
have you any means of determining that?
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Mr., BuzzerL. Only in—really in one line; that is, pattern making, to be
specific; general in the other cases. A pattern maker in Los Angeles has to be
what we term “a star” to get away with it. He will do more in Los Angeles.
He don’t do the class of work, understand. He does what we call band-saw and
sandpaper work, but he does more of it in Los Angeles in 9 hours than they
will do in the average city in 15. They do; in the other cities they do a
better class of work.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You mean, then, that the worker in Los Angeles,
at the close of the day, his output in pattern making is greater than the output
of the worker in San Francisco?

Mr. BuzzeLrL. No doubt about it.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. On corresponding work,

Mr. BuzzerLL. No doubt about it.

Commissioner WEiNsTock. Well, then, isn't the San Francisco employer’s
candle burning at both ends? Isn’t he paying a higher wage and getting less
return than the Los Angeles competitor?

Mr. Buzzern, Well, I don’t know. As a rule, in San Francisco the man that
pays for patterns that I happen to know of more particularly, the man that
keeps them, and in the end he gets more for his money. In Los Angeles you
will find that the foundry business, except in one or two instances, is not very
great. What I mean, the shops are not large, and it has developed in the
pattern-making business a system of what we call job shops. In other words,
a fellow gets a few dollars saved up and buys a band saw and a hole in the wall
somewhere and starts a job shop.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Here in Los Angeles?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Here in Los Angeles. And the foundry employers that don’t
have work enough to keep what they claim to justify them in keeping a pat-
tern shop going, that naturally go to these jobbers, and between them keep
the different ones of them alive. Now, then, the jobber, the competition is
so keen between them for the jobs, and they claim that the different foundry-
men, or people having patterns made, will walk two blocks to save a dollar
on their blue prints in getting bids on small jobs. The jobs are all small, com-
paratively speaking, and they are compelled to figure it down right as close
as they possibly can, with the result that the journeyman pattern maker has
to be speedy to make it pay. And just as soon as the pattern is made and sold
the job pattern maker has nothing more to-do with it. And consequently in
the final analysis it is to his benefit if it don’t last long, while if it was made
in a foundry they would get less output, but the work would last longer after
it was finished, and in the long run would be really cheaper to the foundry man.

Commissioner WEINsTOocK, Well, is that difference that you speak of as relat-
ing to the pattern makers a common difference and condition in the metal
trades here; that is, that the men get a smaller wage than they do in San
Francisco, and for that smaller wage they are expected to and do, as a matter
of fact, turn out a greater output than in San Francisco?

Mr. Buzzerr, Well, in some instances the men claim they do and in some
instances they don’t. It is hard to get a line just on the output that it would
come out somehow. Now, I base my assertion about the pattern makers not
entirely on San Francisco but speaking generally of the country. Men who
are called first-class mechanics in New York City, in Chicago—and Chicago
is a stiff town to work In—will come to Los Angeles, men who are called
“stars,” and they find when they get here that the first short while that they
are here, to use the terms we use, they get bumped, and they don’t know what
it is for. And they are in the habit of holding a job on any kind of work they
are put at, and when they ask there is the answer, “ You don’t do enough; your
work is all right, but there is not enough of it.” ¢ Well,” the man will say,
“1 worked just as hard as I could, and I done a good job.” ‘ Well, the job
maybe was too good; you didn’t get it done fast enough,” with the result that
these same fellows become experts at that fast and rough stuff and they tur
out lots of it. s

Commissioner WEINsTock. Well, then, how much truth is there in the claim
that is made by many San Francisco employers that by virtue of the fact -that
living as they do under unionism, living as they do under the so-called closed
shop, they find it more and more diflicult to compete with the Los Angeles
manufacturers by virtue of the fact that they pay a higher wage and get a
smaller output?

Mr. BuzzeLL. Perhaps they do; perhaps they do.
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Commissioner WEINsTocK. Well, if that is true, then, then Los Angeles must
come more nearly being the employers’ mecea than San Francisco?

Mr. BrzzerLL. It sure is; there is no question of doubt about that; and there
is no question of doubt in the mind of anyone I don't think that ever studied
the question that all of those things that tend to make wages and the rates of
wages are all based, as Mr. Zeehandetaar, Mr. Otis, and Mr. Baker, too, they
say, on the law of supply and demand. In a nonunion town the law of supply
and demand is always in favor of the employer, my observation has been. In
Los Angeles it is always that way, and that is always apt to be. And a man
when he is asked says that the employer don’t need to bargain so closely, be-
cause he can get all the men he wants. It is a matter of a process of elimina-
tion with him until he gets the man he wants at the rate of pay he wants
to pay.

Commissioner WeinsTock. Well, then, if you were an employer who wanted
to make a success of his business, who wanted to make a profit, and that is
the only way you can demonstrate sueccess, by profit—a business man who shows
a loss is a failure in business, and the business man who shows a profit is a
success—if you were an employer, then, who wanted to establish a business and
wanted to make that business a success, I take it from what you say you would
locate in Los Angeles rather than San Francisco?

Mr. Buzzern. Undoubtedly ; that is, if I was that turn of mind.

Commissioner WEeINsTOoCK. How?

Mr. BvzzeLn., If I was of that turn of mind; yes.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. If you wanted to show a profit for your invest-
ment?

Mr. Buzzern. Well, I want to say that the manufacturers of San Francisco
undoubtedly make a profit on their investment or they would have closed up
long ago. The manufacturers of Los Angeles make greater profits out of their
labor, because of the fact that they don’t pay them, I think. That is the way
1 have it figured out--as they do in San Francisco—because labor don’t get as
great a share of it as they do there. That is the way I will answer that.

Chairman Warsa. That is all, thank you.

Mr. BuzzerLn. When will I bring that stuff in?

Chairman WarsH. Bring it any time to-morrow or the next day.

Mr. BuzzeLL. All right.

Chairman Wacrsa. Mr, Barker? Mr. Craig has been excused until to-morrow
morning. Is Mr. Barker in the room? [No response.] Is Mr. Tom Barker in
the room?

TESTIMONY OF MR. TOM BARXER.

Chairman WarsH. Please state your naine,

Mr. BArRkER. Tomm Barker.

Chairman Warsa. What is your business, Mr. Barker?

Mr. Barxer. The secretary of the Los Angeles County Building Trades’
Council.

Chairman WarLsH. And how long have you held that position?

Mr. BARKER. Since the 1st of August, 1914. .

Chairman WarsH. Do you hold any other official position in the labor organi-
zations in Los Angeles?

Mr. BARKER. In 1900 I was given a commission as a representative of the
Amalgamated Society of Carpenters and Joiners in this city. I held that po-
sition for five months.

Chairman WaLsH. Any other official position?

Mr. Barxer. In 1911, during the time of the carpenters’ strike, when their
wages were raised from $3.50 a day to $4, I was again appointed a special rep-
resentative of the amalgamated carpenters during that trouble in this city.

Chairman WarLsH. Are those all the official positions which you have held?

Mr. Barker. Omitting just minor positions in the local unions.

Chairman Warsi. You are a carpenter by trade, are you?

Mr. BAarkEeRr. Carpenter by trade.

Chairman WaLsx. How long have you lived in Los Angeles?

Mr. BarkER. Five years.

Chairman WarsH. Where did you live before you lived here?

Mr. BarkER. Birmingham, England.

Chairman WarLsH. Did you come direct from Birmingham, England, to this
place?

Mr. BARKER. Yes, sir.
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Chairman WarsH. And you have been a journeyman carpenter for a long
time?

Mr. BARKER., Twenty years.

Chairman Warsu. Man of family, are you?

Mr. Barkegr. No, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. Now, there were a list of questions submitted to you, Mr.
Barker, I believe, and I wish you would take them up in their order, please, and
tell us first the extent to which the building trades in Los Angeles are organized.

Mr. Barxgr. Take them in alphabetical order?

Chairman WaLsH, Yes.

Mr. Barxer. Now, this is only an estimate.

Chairman WaLsH. Yes.

Mr. BarkEer. It is almost impossible to give a correct estimate.

Chairman WALsH. You give us the best estimate that can be given.

Mr. BARKER. Yes. Bricklayers, 50 per cent.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Fifty per cent of what?

Mr. BArRkEr. Organized.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Oh.

Mr. BArxER. Plumbers, about 45 per cent; sheet-metal workers, about 45 per
cent ; carpenters, 23 per cent; plasterers, about 60 per cent; hod carriers will be
about 60 or 75 per cent; lathers, about 40 per cent.

Chairman WaLsm. Metal or wood or both?

Mr. BarxeR. The lathers are in one organization, known as the International
Association of Wood and Metal Lathers. The ironworkers have scarcely any
organization. I would not put the ironworkers down above 235 per cent. I am
speaking entirely from—I am just approximating. These figures might be
challenged. That is, I think, the extent of the building trades organizations.

Chairman WaLsH. What are the relations between the employers and their
workmen in Los Angeles in your industry ; that is, in the building industry?

Mr. Barger. Well, now, shall I just explain to you that while the building
trades as a whole can say that they work a union shop in this city, a number
of the crafts work a union shop in their own craft? I give you the bricklayers,
lathers, sheet-metal workers, plumbers, and laborers who all work a union shop
in their own craft. The carpenters work open shop. The painters work open
shop. 1 forgot to tell you, I put down the painters’ organization about 45 per
cent. I forgot to tell you. !

Chairman WarLsH. When you mean they work open shop

Mr. BARkER. The industry is worked on the open-shop plan; but the crafts I
have indicated, they work the closed-shop plan in their own particular craft.

Chairman WaLsH. In their own particular craft?

Mr. BARKER. Yes,

Chairman WarsH. Now, these other crafts; do you mean by an open shop
that they really do employ both union and nonunion men without discrimina-
tion?

Mr. Barger. Well, in some cases; yes. In other cases, no. You will find
union brickiayers on a job where there are nonunion carpenters employed.
And you will find union carpenters employed where there are nonunion brick-
layers, and so on right through the trade. Now, the way the crafts that operate
the union shop maintain their union shop is that the building industry in this
city is so cut up by means of subletting. One of the most notorious nonunion
firms in this city is the F. O. Engstrum Co., and yet 1 believe almeost invariably
their plumbing is done by union men. And the Alta Planing Mill, too; they
are another very notorious unfalr concern, the most of their brickwork is done
by union men, and that is done by subletting. And the master plumbers are
small firms, and the organization is thus able to get in with them and work in
accord with them.

Chairman WaLsH. Proceed with the relations generally between the em-
ployers and employees that you deem to be significant in Los Angeles.

Mr. Barxer. That is a very difficult question, Mr. Walsh, because the rela-
tions existing between the organizations which operate the union shop in their
own craft and their employers is good undoubtedly, and there is very little
trouble existing between those organizations and the employers who operate
under the union-shop agreement. The difficulty, the trouble, the diserimination
is all caused with the general contractor, usually caused with the general eon-
tractor. And that is where the trouble with the organizations largely exists.

I could say that the relations existing between the organizations and the
employers that have agreements with them, we have a written agreement in
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the sheet-metal workers and the plumbers particularly, and the relations are
good. The most of the sheet-metal workers and the most of the plumbers find
that their relations in Los Angeles are good. Our difficulty is with the general
contractor, with the big men. It usually happens in the case of his construc-
tion work, on his carpenter work he hires the men direct, and the same with
his laborers, but he sublets his plastering, his bricklaying work and his paint-
ing, and sometimes a union contractor gets that work, and then union men work
on the jobs. But, generally speaking, as I have said, there is no such thing
as a union shop in the building industry in this city.

Chairman WarsH., How are the wages and hours of labor in the building
trades of Los Angeles as compared for instance with San Francisco and other
cities on the coast?

Mr. Barxer. The bricklayers in Los Angeles, union bricklayers, get $6 a day ;
in San Francisco they get $7; union carpenters in Los Angeles get $4 a day; in
San Francisco they get $5; union plasterers in Los Angeles get $5 a day; in
San Francisco I think it is $6—I am not sure; union sheet-metal workers in
Los Angeles get $4.50 a day; in San Francisco they get $5.50, I believe; union
plumbers in TLos Angeles get $4.50 a day; in San Francisco I think they get §5;
union hod carriers in Los Angeles get from $3 to $3.75 a day; in San Francisco
they get $4 and $5; union painters in Los Angeles get $3.50 a day; in San
Francisco they get $4.75—I think that is It; ironworkers in Los Angeles I
believe get $4 a day; I think in San Francisco it is $6.50 or $7—1 think that
is it.

Chairman WaLsa, How as to hours?

Mr. BARkER. Union men in this city work 8 hours a day.

Chairman WarsH. How is that?

Mr. Barker. Union men in this ecity work 8 hours a day. Nonunion men, of
course, work longer—9 and 10.

Chairman Warsu. I wish, if you could, you would compare the quality of
work done in Los Angeles under the union and nonunion conditions; that would
be as to the question as to whether or not there is restriction of output on the
part of the unions, or a very largely Increased output in the case of nonunion
shops,

Mr, Barker. Well, I could say that in Los Angeles there can be no such thing
as restriction of output among the union men. We are constantly competing
with this cheaper labor, and employers who do hire union men, hire them on the
distinet understanding they are to deliver the goods and earn $4 a day, which
can only be expressed in quantity. I am speaking now as a carpenter. There
is no such thing as restriction of output In Los Angeles.

In regard to the cost of work—since 1910 I have only worked on work
where the carpenters have had a chance to control their particular end of
the industry, and I could take you to the jobs where I have been engaged—
that is, of course, where my observation must be confined—the particular jobs
I have worked on, and take you to jobs that have been done by nonunion
men, and I could ask any fair-minded man to compare the quality of work
done, and undoubtedly have the opinion expressed to me as I once had done
by a prominent architect here—I worked on one of his jobs for five months,
a large residence in this ecity. He didn’t know I was a union man when he
offered me the job. I was a stranger here from the old country. I said:
“Now, I am a union man; what are labor conditions here?” He sald to me,
“Well, T will tell you; the labor unions have not the power in Los Angeles
they have in other cities, but I find that the best of our work—the best of our
carpenter work—is being done by the union men.” That is the opinien of that
architect. He gave it to me without asking, but just simply talking with him.
And I would say—TI could affirm that the best work done in-this city is being
done and has been done by union men, speaking as a carpenter, and undoubtedly
that follows in the—as far as bricklayers are concerned, because you know you
can get nonunion bricklayers from $3.50 up. A union bricklayer won’t work
under $6, and he has not only to turn out quality but quantity, too.

Chairman WaLsH. Is there any other statement you think would enlighten
the commission that has not been touched in the specific questlons, or any
statement you would like to make on this or along these lines?

Mr. BARKER., Well, there is one phase of this which perhaps I might try and
make a statement on. j

Chairman WarsH. Very good.

Mr. BargEeR. That is the cost of the union and nonunion labor, and the com-
parison which has been attempted to be made between Los Angeles and San
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Francisco. Of course T am not a finaneler and don’t understand how these
things are arrived at, but here are some facts: Bighteen months ago the State
armory building in Exposition Park, the contractor was one Robert Trost, in
San Francisco. He operated a union shop in San Francisco, and naturally he had
to here. IHis carpenters were paid $4 a day. I myself was working on the job
11 months, and of course all crafts paid the union scale and union men were
employed, even right down to the common laborer. The highest scale of wages
was paid on that job. One Sunday afternoon I took a friend of mine down to
the job, and Mr. I". O. Engstrum came on the job, and my friend happened to
know him and entered into a conversation with him, and my friend came to me
afterwards and said: *“ Mr. Engstrum says, ‘I am simply bowled over on this
job; I can’t understand this job. This man Trost cut my figures right in two,
and his wage bill, I know, must be much heavier than mine would have been.’”
Mr. Trost manufactures all his interior finish in San Francisco under union
conditions at distinctly higher wages than the millmen in ILos Angeles here, and
in addition to that his stuff had to be shipped to Los Angeles, and it was all set
up by union men. That is one of the mysteries of the cost of union and non-
union labor. I can’t see how it can be approximated.

To take another case; the Alta Planing Mill had the contract to put up the
Examiner Building, and a union clause was inserted in the contract, and
they had to employ union carpenters and pay them $4 a day. Now, I don’t
think that the building of the Examiner job broke the planing mill company,
but I think I am right in saying that that clause was inserted after the bid
of the planing mill company was in. So that I have always affirmed that
the contractors in this city adopted a very good slogan, from the employers’
standpoint, when they adopted the * Industrial freedom " slogan, for I believe
the public would probably not have to pay any more if this city was operated
under union conditions ; what would happen would be this, that the men working
on the different jobs would obtain more money, and business conditions gener-
ally would be better, whereas I think if you take—if Mr. Engstrum’s state-
ment is worth anything, either he must be making an enormous pile of money
out of the jobs he does, or Mr. Trost must have lost an enormous amount on
that particular job. However, I have it from his superintendent, who is stiil
employed by Mr. Trost in San Francisco, that everything was lovely on that job.

If you ask me to compare the expense of any particular building put up
under nonunion and union conditions, I say I don’t know how to compare them;
because these cases simply puzzled me, not being a financier.

Chairman WarsH. Mr. Weinstock would like to ask some questions.

Commissioner WrIxnsTock. I gather from the figures you read off to-day
that in the building trades there are somewhere between 40 and 60 per cent
of the workers organized.

Mr. Barkir. That is the very highest figure,

Commissioner WEINSTocK. Say 40 to 50 per cent?

Mr. BarkEer. It is stretching it at 50.

Commissioner WrINsTocK. Do the contracting builders in Los Angeles recog-
nize and deal with the unions in the building trades?

Mr. Barger. The general contractors; no, sir,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. They do not?

Mr. BARKER. No, sir.

Commissioner WEeINsTocx. When they employ union men they simply em-
ploy them as individuals?

Mr. BARkER. As individuals; yes, sir.

Commissioner WreInsTockK. How have these wages you have read off been
arrived at? Iave ‘they been fixed arbitrarily by the employer, or is it the
result of an undérstanding between the unlons on the one hand and the em-
ployer on the other?

Mr. BARKER. Are you speaking of the union scale?

Commissioner WEINsTock, Yes, sir.

Mr. BArkeR. I stated the bricklayers operated on the union-shop basis. They
were enabled to do that by the subcontract system which is adopted in this
city.

Commissioner WeINsTock. What is the subcontract system?

Mr. BARKER. You take the job being put up at Seventh and Boadway; the
general contractor there sublet the brickwork, The outside brickwork is being
done by a man named Johnson, who contracted to put up the outside brickwork
with the general eontractor,

Commissioner WeIxsTock. Is Johnson a contractor?
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Mr. Barkxer. He is a brick contractor alone. He does nothing but brickwork,
Commissioner WeiNsrock. This subcontractor goes out and hires bricklayers
and pays them

Mr. Barxgr. Six dollars a day.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Who fixes this $6. Did he?

Mr. Barker. The bricklayers’ union.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Then when he employs union men he must be
prepared to pay whatever wage the union may have tixed, but he don't recognize
the union and won't deal with them?

Mr. Barxer. I want you to to distinetly understand that is the general con-
tractor, a man like Engstrum or the Alta Planing Mill or other general con-
tractors.

Conumnissioner WEINSTOCK. But will the subcontractor recognize and deal
with the union? b

Mr. Barxer. Yes, sir, 0

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Can unionism coexist with what is known as the
open shop?

Mr. BARKER. No, sir; I don’t think so,

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You think one or the other must pass away?

Mr. Barxer. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEeiNsTock. Well, now, point out why unionism can’t coexist
with the open shop. That is, when I say opén shop, it is perhaps important to
define what I mean by that, so that we don’t have a misunderstanding as to the
meaning of the word. As I understand, a closed shop is only where union men
are employed.

Mr. Barxer. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEINsTocK. An open shop is a shop where union and non-
union men work side by side. A nonunion shop is a shop where only nonunion
men are employed. Do you understand it as 1 do?

Mr. BARKER. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WrinsTock. I am referring particularly to the open shop, a
shop where unlon and nonunion men work side by side,

Mr. Barxker. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEINSToCK, I’oint out why, in your opinion, unionism and
the open shop can not go hand in hand. )

Mr. Barxier. Well, I think myself that you take the carpenter business in
the city here to-day; a man in Los Angeles who carries a union card as a car-
penter must do so because he believes in the principles of unionism. This city
in the last five years has almost doubled in population, but the organization
of carpenters has increased very, very little. Work has been plentiful. Dur-
ing the last five years, I would say, Los Angeles has had its fair share. The last
two years it has not been so good, but the first three years everyone will admit
business was good in Los Angeles,

The only reason we could arrive at for the carpenters’ organization being
so weak is the fact that the organization has not the power. to obtain for the
worker what the organization claims it ought to obtain. Then, on the other
hand, the fundamental principle of the labor movement is that it seeks to
obtain for the worker a better chance to live. You might admit it is a neces-
sary evil, but it takes money to keep up the organization, and the organization
always establishes the maximum rate in wages in any locality. The only way
that can be obtained is by the fact that the employers know there are a num-
ber of men who are willing to stand as a unit for certain things. They could
take us one by one and defeat us, but when they come to a big body of men
banded together, the employer has to think twice before he throws down the
rantlet. So that you will see the essential condition in the matter of the
labor movement is for the organization to control a particular shop or in-
dustry as far as the workingmen are concerned. All the rest will be followed
by agreement. Is that clear?

Commissioner WEINSToCK. Yes; that is clear, and if your reasoning on the
matter is sound, it means then that this Nation, sooner or later, industrially
must become all nonunion or all closed shop? :

Mr. BARKER. Exactly, as I think; yes, sir. There are two forces striving
for power. One can only attain power by the defeat of the other. That is an
accepted axiom, no matter whether in the industrial field, or the religious field,
or any other field. There are two forces contending. ’

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You approximate the workman’s idea in the
building trades in San Francisco?

38819°—S. Doc. 415, 64-1—vol 6—33
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Mr. BARKER. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEeinsTock., Where there is practically a closed shop and
wages higher and the hours no longer?

Mr. BARKER. Yes, sir,

(;;ognnissioner WEINsTocK. The hours are substantiaily the same, eight and
eight?

Mr. BARKER. Yes, sir,

Commissioner WEINsTocK. From your theory it would seem that all union
nien in Los Angeles would drift to San Francisco?

Mr. BArRkER. No, sir; I don’t think so. The fact that San Francisco is a
union town does not prove that San Franciseco controls the law of supply
and demand. Now, if you take, for instance, San Francisco immediately after
the fire; there was a big demand for men, but the inevitable slump came in
San Francisco, and for a number of years San Francisco has been overstocked
by workingmen—men hunting for Jobs.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. The mere fact of men going there does not create
employment for them?

Mr. BARKER. No, sir.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. What is the answer to the contention made on
this witness stand yesterday, and if you were here you doubtiess heard the
statement made by Mr. Zeehandelaar, the secretary of the merchants and
manufacturers’ association, and I think also by Gen. Otis, that in their opinion
one of the most important assets that Los Angeles had from a commercial
and industrial standpoint was its open shop; that that brought capital here;
that that developed industries here and brought people here. What is the
answer, if there is any truth in that statement?

Mr. Barker. I don’t know, but I would say, though, that while that state-
ment might have been made, the real cause for the great influx of capital, if
that has been the case, has been the fact that labor was cheap here, not that
labor was or was not organized, but that labor was cheap. I think if it eouild
be possible to get a comparison of the cost of, say, the Examiner Building in
San Francisco and a bullding of the same size in Los Angeles, the amount
would be very small—the difference would be very smail.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You think the cost per cubic foot would be sub-
stantially the same?

Mr. BARkER. San Francisco might have a slightly higher rate, but not any-
where sufficient to explain the difference in wages paid the men working on
the job.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK., You mean the San Francisco workers had a
higher efficiency?

Mr. Barxer. I would undoubtedly say so.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You mean when the employer in San Francisco
pays $5 a day to his carpenters and the Los Angeles employer pays $4 that the
San Francisco contractor gets $5 worth of labor and the Los Angeles contrac-
tor gets $4 worth of labor; is that what you mean?

Mr. BARKER. I can only say this, I have never worked in San Francisco, but
I know a number of union men who have, and they say a man certainly has got
to deliver the goods in San Francisco to hold his job, both in efficiency and in
quantity of work.

Commissioper WEINSTOCK. At that rate he would have to increase his effi-
ciency over Los Angeles to the amount of 25 per cent?

Mr. BArRkER. I should say so.

Commissioner WEINSToCK. And is it your opinion from your knowledge of
conditions that the San Francisco earpenfer is 25 per cent more efficient than
the T.os Angeles earpenter?

Mr. Barxker. I am unable to answer that question, because I have never
worked with men who have worked in San Francisco any length of time.

Commissioner WeINsTocK. They would have to do that for the San Francisco
employer to be as well off as the Los Angeles employer?

Mr. BARKER. I would not say so. Men that worked in San Francisco and
then came to Los Angeles said that they preferred San Francisco from the
standpoint of the workingman.

If I might refer back to the cost of construction. In 1910 during the time of
the metal-trades strike they were bhuilding the Alexandria Hotel Annex. A
committee from the Los Angeles Building Trades Council went before the men
who were finaneing the steel construction in the building and offered to erect
that steel and save the company who were erecting that hotel many thousands
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of dollars. They also offered to furnish a cash bond covering their responsibil-
ity and their liability on the job, They submitted their figures in writing.
They promised to erect the steel and save, as I said, the company these thou-
sands of doliars. I think it was between fifty and sixty thousand dollars. But
they were going to pay their men four dollars and a half a day while the struc-
tural men on the job at that time were getting two dollars and a half a day,
and the company in charge of the erection admitted that the bid was per-
fectly fair; that the bona fide was good and they did not doubt that the union
could do it and carry out that bid, but they said, “ You are not on our side and
therefore we can’t entertain it.”

Commissioner WEINSTOCK., That is all.

Chairman WaLsH. That is all; thank you.

Mr. Bryson.

TESTIMONY OF MR. H. W. BRYSON.

Chairman WaLsH. Your name, please.

Mr. Bryson. H. W, Bryson.

Chairman WaLsH. Your business, please,

Mr. BrysoN. General manager of the F. O. Engstrum Co., contractors.

Chairman WarLsH. They are building contractors, are they?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. How long have you lived in Los Angeles?

Mr. BrysonN. About 14 years.

Chairman WALsH. And how long have you occupied your present position?

Mr. Bryso~. I have been connected with the Engstrum Co. since I ecame to
Los Angeles. After the organization into a corporation, I have occupied the
same position. They were incorporated—I think it has been about six or seven
years. >
" Chairman WarsH. You have a fixed number of hours per day that your men
work?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. What is that, please?

Mr. Brysox. Eight hours for some departments and nine hours for others.

Chairman WarsH. Do you deal In your construction work in any instances
with unions? 4

Mr. Brysox. We have operated an open shop.

Chalrman WaLsH. In which you deal with union or nonunion alike, without
diserimination ?

Mr. Brysox. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. There were a number of questions, I belleve, submitted
to you, were there not?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir. .

Chairman WaLsH. We will follow those, as near as we can.

Mr. Brysox. I would be glad to.

Chairman WaLsH. Some will answer others, I noticed. First, which de-
partmients are eight hours and which are nine hours per day?

Mr. Bryson. I had better explain the basis on which our organization is
based, so that you can perhaps get a better idea of the general run of things.

Chairman WaLsH, Very good.

Mr. Brysox. We are building contractors. Qur organization is based on the
construction of buildings only, and we manufacture most of the necessary
articles that go in construction, such as millwork, galvanized iron, ornamental
iron, and so forth. Our force consists principally of foremen, subforemen,
timekeepers, plasterers, carpenters, brick masons, electricians, steam fitters,
plumbers, painters, decorators, sheet-metal workers, machinists, ornamental
iron workers, cement finishers, lathers, tile setters, artificial stone workers,
stationary engineers, and so forth.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, then, will you please answer my question, if you
can, at this point? In what departments of those various crafts or in what
crafts do you work eight hours a day and in what nine hours?

Mr. Bryson. On all buildings we work eight hours. In our mill and team-
Ing department and wherever we operate machinery it is operated on a nine-
hour basis.

Chairman WarLse. On the building is the union referred to, whether the
crafts are organized or unorganized?

Mr. Bryson. I don’t quite understand.
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Chairman WarLsyH. On the buildings, in addition to the eight-hour day, is
that adopted regardless of whether the craft is organized or unorganized?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. As to question No. 1:

The extent to which the unions are recognized in construction work in Los
Angeles.

Mr. Bryson. I do not think they are recognized by the contractors in gen-
eral, only as an open shop.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, take the plumbers, for instance. Do you deal with
them as an organization? Do you have any nonunion plumbers at all?

Mr. Bryson. Our organization is based on nonunionism altogether,

Chairman WarLsH. But you do employ union plumbers?

Mr. BrysoN. Not when we know it.

Chairman WaLsH. Union carpenters?

Mr. BrysoN. No, sir. g

Chairman WALsH. You don’t employ, then, any union craftsmen if you
know 1it?

Mr. BrysoN. Not if we know it. We are a nonunion shop.

Chairman WaLsH. I wish, now, you would give the wages in I.os Angeles
compared with the wages in San Francisco. g

Mr. Bryson. I can not speak definitely about San Francisco wages, only
what I have heard testified to here. The wages we pay in our operations are
based on the workings in San Jose, San Bernardino, Pasadena, L.ong Beach,
and San Digo. There is a slight variation, not enough to be taken into con-
sideration, on the L.os Angeles scale.

Chairman WALsH. As to hours of labor?

Mr. BrysoN. The same—eight hours.

Chairman WALsH. You have heard the comparison made here of the wages
in the building trades. Were those approximately correct?

Mr. Bryson. I don’t think so. We recognize elg,ht hours as the basis of all
work, except where all of our competitors have nine hours, aud we try to keep
in competltlon with our competitors. - ;

Chairman WaLsH. Now, with regard to the results in construction work
under union and nonunion conditions, I wish you would follow along these
questions. First, as to the quality of the work, what has been your experience?

Mr. BrysoN. Speaking from our standpoint, working nonunion, we find the
highest standard in our operations under nonunion conditions.

Chairman WaLsH. The highest standard you have found to be in the non-
union conditions?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. That is the quality. Now, as to quantity?

Mr. BrysoN. We regard the quantity more on account of no delay, not inter-
fering with overlapping of duties, such as a laborer assisting a carpenter, the
bricklayer and tender placing the brick at the most convenient place for the
bricklayer to work, apprenticeship more liberal, no restriction as to the amount
of work one man can perform.

Chairman WarsH. Now, as to the cost of construction. 'What do you find
the difference, if any, to be in union and nonunion? H

Mr. Bryson. The cost of construction naturally is less because of that effi-
ciency I just mentioned.

Chairman WarsH. Is there any difference in it on account of the wages
paid? The hours, you say, are the same?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. In the nonunion job are the wages less than they are on
the union job?

Mr. Bryson. I dont think so, generally speakmg, if a man is rqted accord-
ing to his efficiency, which we try to do.

Chairman WarsH. Have you observed closely enough to give the per cent
of difference there will be in cost of construction on a large building under
nonunion and union conditions?

: AMr. Bryson. I don’t know anything about the cost of construction of a union
uilding.

Chairman WALsH. You haven’t paid any attention to that?

Mr. Bryson. No, sir.

Chairman WarsH. You could not answer that questlcn then?

Mr. BrysoxN. No, sir; I could not.
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Chairman WarLsH. What are the particular features you object to in condi-
tions demanded by trade unions in the trade industry?

Mr. Bryson. The particular features objected to under conditions demanded
by building trades unions?

Chairman WaLsH. Yes, sir.

Mr. Bryson. Well, we found them dictatorial, domineering, selfish, not re-
sponsible for verbal agreements; in case we entered into contracts with them
they were broken. :

Chairman WaLsH. How many such cases have you had in your experience
of violation of contracts—breaking of contracts?

Mr. BrysoN. We had innumerable cases where we can’t place any confidence
in representations that were made while we were running an open shop.

Chairman WaLsH. For instance, what unions have broken contracts?

Mr. Bryson. Well, the galvanized iron department was an open'shop-at one
time, and we let the men know it was an open shop. As soon as they got to
work and got thoroughly ofganized they tried to unionize us, when they
promised that they wouldn’t.

Chairman WarsH. But I mean where contracts have been entered into by
the union as to wages and hours, have you any instance where those contracts
were violated, where the union did not keep their part of the agreement?

Mr. BRYSON No; we did not go into it on that line.

Chairman Wu.sn. Have you in mind any instance that came under your
observation where an agreement was made, either verbally or in writing, by
any organization as a whole, through its officers with your ecompany, or any
association of employers, which was violated? - That is, which was not carried
out by the union?

Mr. Bryson. No, sir; we never bothered about that peoint.

Chairman WALSH. 10u never knew any such instance. You have no such
instance in your mind. What has the Engstrum Co. done to improve working
conditions? = First, have you increased wages or reduced hours at any time?

Mr. BrysoN. queq are based entirely on efliciency at the mill ‘and paid
accordingly. We recognize eight hours and nine hours as a fair standard.

Chairman WaLsH. How long have you had the nine-hour standard you have
spoken of here?

Mr. Bryso~n. In the milling department we have always had it.

Chairman WarsH. Has there been any increase in wages, say, during the last
five years in your company—any general increase? -

Mr. BrYsoN. Yes, sir; when conditions are prosperous, such as lots of build-
ing, why, we increased wages sometimes. Of course, we are governed by sup-
ply and demand.

Chairman WarsH. When was the last increase?

Mr. BrysoN. Governed by supply and demand.

Chairman WaALsH. It is governed by supply and demand?

Mr. BrysoN. Yes, sir.

Chairman Warsu. And if it is difficult for you to get workmen you pay
more money?

Mr. Bryso~.  When the other contractors do; yes.

Chairman WarLsH. When the other coutmctum do?

Mr. BrYsoN. Yes.. We have to meet competition.

Chairman WarLsH. Have you raised wages at any time, a general ralse of
wages in any particular craft at any time that you want to call the attention
of the commission to? Say, during the last five years.

Mr. BrysoN. Yes; wages dropped considerably in 1907 on account of the
general financial depression; also building depression.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, take one craft.

Mr. Bryson. Labor went down a small percentage; carpenters to $3 to
$3.25, something like that. When conditions got better we voluntarily raised
them.

Chairman Warsa. On all carpenters?

Mr. Bryson. It speaks all the way down; all the craftsmen. I gave that as
an illustration.

Chairman WALSH. About how many men do you have employed in normal
times would you say?

Mr. Bryson. Fifteen hundred to two thousand.

Chairman WaLsH. Fifteen hundred to two thousand?

Mr. BrYsoN. Yes,

Chairman WaLrsH. You are president of this company, are you"
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Mr. Bryson. Manager

Chairman WarsH. Manager of the company ?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. Who is the president?

Mr. Bryson. F. O. Engstrum.

Chairman WaLsa. Where does he live?

Mr. Bryson. He lives in Los Angeles.

Chairman WaLsH. What means have you for adjusting individual griew
ances of these men?

Mr. Bryson. Glad to take it up with them any time they have a grievance—
some officer of our company.

Chairman Warsz. With some officer?

Mr. Beysox. And analyze it and try to treat them falir.

Chairman WaArsH. Is there any organization amoug your men at all for pre-
senting grievances?

Mr. Bryso~n. Not as I know of. .

Chairman WarLsH. What efforts have you made along the lines of safely
and sanitation in your work?

Mr. BrysoN. We spent thousands of dollars for public safety, such as rail-
ings around openings, danger, and other signs of warning prominently dis-
played; specific instructions to superintendents, foremen, and timekeepers :
general supervision by officers for them to use every means of protection for
safety first. Sanitation has equal consideration.

Chairman WarsH. Did you have any questions?

Commissioner O’CONNELL. Yes.

Mr. Bryson, is your company a corporation?

Mr. Bryso~N. Yes, sir.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. What s its capitalization?

Mr. Bryson. What is its capitalization?

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Yes; what is it?

Mr. Brysox. We have records. I will refer you to the records on that.

Chairman WaLsH. If you have it in mind kindly state it, because it is diffi-
cult to go to the records.

Mr. BrysoN. One hundred and fifty-five thousand two hundred dollars.

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. What are the shares issued at?

Mr. Bryson. What?

Commissioner O’CoxNELL. Par value?

Mr. BrysoN. Four dollars, par value, what they are worth now—par value,
$100 a share.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. How much?

Mr. Bryson. One hundred dollars a share.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. They are now?

Mr. BrysoN. One hundred dollars a share.

Commissioner O’'CoNNELL. They are now worth four dollars, you mv?

Mr. Brysox. I think so.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Who owns the majority share of the stock?

Mr. Bryson. It is owned equally between F. O Engstrum, F. E. Iungqtmm,
and myself.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. You say your company doesn’t employ union men
or contract with them. Do you subcontract your work?

Mr. Bryson. On very rare occasions.

Commissioner O’ConxrrLL. Well, on such oceasions do you question whether
your subcontractor employs union or nonunion men ?

Mr. Bryso~x. Don’t look into that. We look inte the financial responsibility
of the man we give the subcontract to. 2

Commissioner O’ConNELL. The question of the setting of wages: You as
general manager say what the wages shall be?

Mr. BrysoN. Yes; I have the last say in the matter.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Do you confer by method of conference with em-
ployvees at all, whether the rate you say is satisfactory to them or not?

Mr. Bryso~N. Well, I know it is in general; it is satisfactory because it is
based on close observation of what others pay in general, and the men on our
pay roll have been with us a long time. If they could do better financially
they would be apt to take advantage of it, if we were not paying about the
same scale of wages that our competitors did.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. But you designate the wage to be paid, and if they
don’t like it they leave it, I suppose?
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Mr. Bryson. No; we don’t do it that way. The basis of wages is something
that was started when we entered the contract business, and we have tried to
meet competition wherever it is necessary by paying the highest scale of wages
consistent with efficiency, long service, etc. ;

Commissioner O’CoNnxeLL. Well, what I am trying to get at is whether the em-
ployees are taken into those at all in the matter of the regulation of their
wages, or whether your company simply reasons among yourselves, your offi-
cials, or you as general manager say that three or three dollars and a quarter
or three and a half shall be the rate for carpenters that you pay?

Mr. Brysox. They all understand that. We tell them what we pay before
they are employed in case they ask the question.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Having no organization among your employees,
seeing that they are not an organization, consequently they are not dealt with
en masse or either individually as to whether they like it or not.

Mr. Bryso~n. Well, we will deal with them individually any time there is
any dissatisfaction among any of our men, or we deal with any number of
them at any time.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Suppose a grievance arises on one of your jobs.
How is it adjusted? These men that have grievances of some kind.

Mr. Brysox. We don’t have them usually.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Never have grievances?

Mr. Bryson. They seem to be all thoroughly satisfied with general condi-
tions. Of course you can find a man individually who says perhaps he has
not got all he wants, he can’t get all he wants.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. In your mill, where you are operating nine hours,
if the employees there desire to have the hours reduced to eight, would it be
possible under the unorganized condition they have, individually, to bring about
that reduction of hours to eight there?

Mr. Bryson. I would be glad to consult with any Individual or any eom-
mittee that they might appoint.

Commissioner O'CoNNELL. Supposing one individual after another from your
mill—I don’t know how many of them are employed there—comes to you one
after another.

Mr. BrysoN. Yes.

Commissioner O’CoNxNELL. And say they would like to have the eight-hour
day.

Mr. BrYsoN. Yes.

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Would -those men coming in in that way, giving a
reason to you how and why you should grant an eight-hour day——

Mr. BrysoN. Take each man’s demand under consideration.

Commissioner O'CoNNeLL. What would be the result?

Mr. Bryson. Well, if they could demonstrate wherein the claim was justified
consistent with general business conditions and our meeting competition we
would be glad to accede to the demand ; otherwise we would not. An exampie
like that happened in our mill, where there was general dissatisfaction on
account of the nine-hour basis, and when I looked into it I found all the
other mills working nine hours, and there were some of them working 10—a
few of them, the smaller, working 10.. I found out Injustice was being done
our men on aceount of the scale of wages not being as high as what they
claimed other mills were getting, so I left it to them whether they wanted
to work on the eight-hour basis or nine-hour basis. So I adjusted each
man’s rate according to efficiency, long service, and we had a nine-hour basis,
which we are now operating under.

Commissioner O’ConnNELL. Did I understand you are operating absolutely
a nonunion shop?

Mr. Bryson. Absolutely nonunion. ’

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Absolutely nonunion, open shop? Not the so-
called open shop?

Mr. Bryso~. Not the open shop.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. That seems to bhe the general impression here,
that it is the open shop, is absolutely nonunion shop in Los Angeles, as near
as I can get it.

Mr. BrysoN. It is nonunion shop without any question, doubt, or argument.

Commissioner O’CoxnNELL. That is all.

Commissioner WEeINsTock. Can you tell the commission, Mr. Bryson, about
what proportion of your workmen are married? ]
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Mr. Bryson. Withut having any exact data, I should judge it would be

about 75 per cent of them,

Commissioner WEINsSTOCK. Are married men?

Mr. BrysoN. Yes, sir.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Do you know what proportion. of your workers
own their own homes, live in their own homes?

Mr. BrysoN. On the same basis, about 60 or 70 per cent.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Between 60 and 70 per cent?

Mr. Bryson. Yes.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. You mean, own their own homes

Chairman WaLsH. One minute, please. Mr. Weinstock has not finished.

Commissioner WeINsTock. Have you any data to show the average duration
of employment on the part of your workers?

Mr. Bryson. The average what?

Commissioner WEINsTocK. The average time that your workers work for you,
or the average period of employment?

Mr. BrysoN. Well, we have no report of 1t sone work over five years, a
great many of them have been working 10 years, and some have worked 12
to 14 years.

Commissionrer WEINSTOCK. You have never attempted to strike an average
to see what the average is?e

Mr. Bryso~N. Never have. The whole foundation of our business now as it
exists is based on almost old employees. It is on the rarest occasions that we
have to take on new men except for temporary purposes.

Commissioner WEinNsTocK. How do you deal with the matter .of overtime
and Sunday work ; how is that handled?

‘Mr. BRYSON. Try to eliminate it altogether; but when it is necessary from
conditions which we can control that is, where it is to safeguard life or some-
thing like that, or when we run a ﬂoor of concrete to get to a certain point,
then we will work overtime half an hour or an hour or two hours; we consider
it as part of the day’s work.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. And is there any compensatlon allowed for that?

Mr. BrysoN. Straight time, B

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Straight time?

Mr. Bryson. Now and then in very unusual cases, which we don’t encoura"e,
why there is sometimes we have to work Sundays on very rare occasions; and
we have allowed time and a half.

Commissioner WEINSTOoCK. But you don’t.make that a rule?

Mr. Bryson. No; we try to keep away from it as much as we can.

Commissioner WEst'rocx. Were you present, Mr. Bryson, when Mr. Barker
testified?

Mr. Bryson. Mr. who?

Commissioner WeiNnsTocx. Tom Barker.

Mr. Bryso~N. The last man?

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Yes.

Mr. Bryson. I was here part of the time; yes,

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. He made a statement that you may have heard
giving it purely as his opimon—he had no figures to go on—that. the effi-
ciency, for example, of the San Francisco carpenter who gets $5 a day was
approximately more efficient than the Los Angeles carpenter who gets $4 a day.
Have you any means of determining that in any way?

Mr. Brysow. Yes; very frequently—not very frequently either, but some-
times. I have uppermost in mind our plasterers—when we haven’t work for
them they go to work for other contractors. I have known instances where
they have gone to San Francisco and worked up there for months and months
and then have come back and worked for us, and we operated much the
same men, and men came from San Francisco down here, or go from here
up there, and there couldn’t possibly be any difference in the efliciency provid-
ing they are properly handled, in my judgment.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. You mean the output per day per man in Los
Angeles, in your opinion, is about the same as it is in San Francisco?

Mr. Bryso~. I don’t think it is; no, sir. I think it is more than what it is
in San Francisco under the union domination.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That is, the output here is more than it is in
San Francisco?

Mr. Bryson, Yes. g

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. In that partlcular trade?
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Mr. Bryso~. Yes.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. IHave you any exact comparison that has ever
been made? For example, has it ever been determined what a day’s work here
is in laying brick? How many brick a day shall constitute a day’s work in
San Francisco?

Mr. Bryson. No; it is not based upon that, because one man will lay more
brick than another. We have never operated in San Francisco; and T can only
speak from general observation of what I know of the several buildings going
up. I see bricklayers doing about half a day’s work, it may be more than
that; but they lose a great deal of time by stopping to smoke on the job. They
talk.

(‘fommissioner WEINSTOCK. Here in Los Angeles or in San Francisco?

Mr. BrysoN. San Francisco; yes. My observation from some of the build-
ings I have noted, is that they stop to smoke on the job, and they’ ‘stop ‘to
talk—Ilabor men come to visit them. I have actually seen them walk out fo
a saloon and spend 10 or 15 minutes and then go back to their work. In one
particular instance, why, I saw a gang of bricklayers in San Francisco, dur-
ing working hours, stop an(l flip nickels, gamble, saw that with my own eyes.
And I verified it by the timekeeper there, he saying that it is a condition
which they can not control.

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Are those things permitted here?

Mr. Brysox. Absolutely not in our organization. We try to 1instill into
every man ‘that there is a better future ahead of him, depending upon his
loyalty to the firm, his services, and his efficiency.

Commissioner WEINsTocK. Did you hear Mr. Barker's statement also to the
effect that the armory building liere in Los Angeles had been construced by
a San Francisco union contractor?

Mr. Bryson. I'didn’'t hear that statement; no, sir. g .

Commissioner WEINSTOCK. Well, he made the statement that the c¢ontract for
the armory bullding liere had been awarded to the lowest bidder——doubtle%
because it was the lowest bid—a San Francisco union contractor, and that
he employed only union men. Well, now, if the nonuplon’ men are more
efficient than the union men, and the wage scale is lower, how was it’ pmsible
for this San Francisco union contractor to have suecessfully and proﬁtably
handled that contract as Mr. Barker said he thought he did?

Mr. Bryson. Well, that is only one of many instances of the Kkind' "that
happen. TUnless you figure on the building, unless you know all thé figures
that are put in, you ecan't tell. Now, there has been lots of building here in the
last 5 or 10 years. Very few outside contractors have come in, and they
have come in in the instances where they have beat us fizuring. That does
not mean to say it is a profitable business or that they made any profit on
that particular building. But they have come in and stayed for one, two,
four, or five years. You can't very easily tell whether they have made a
success from a profit standpoint or not.

Commissioner WeINsTocKk. Are there any building contractors in L.os Angeles
who confine themselves altogether to union labor?

Mr. Brysoxn. I don’t know. I have my own business to attend to and I don’t
try to look into the other fellow’s except in a "(‘nm ul way to protect our 0\\n
investments and interests.

Commissioner WeINSTOCK. Is there a builders’ association in Los Angeles?

Mr. BrysonN. Master builders’ assoclation?

Cominissioner WeINsTock. Master builders’ aqsochtion.

Mr. BrYsoN. Yes.

Commissioner WEINsTOCK. Contractors’ association?

Mr. Bryson. I think its name is tlie master builders’ assoeiation.

Commissioner WeixsTock. That takes in all the general contractors?

Mr. Brysox. I think so.

(fommissioner WEINSTOCK. And not the subcontractors?

Mr. Bryso~. I don’t know. I know very little about it.

Commissioner WeInNsTocK. Is your company a member of that aiioclatlon?

Mr. BrysoN. Yes; we are a member of it.

Commissioner \VEI\‘STOCK. Does that association deal with labor organiza-
tions in any way? :

Mr. Bryso~. I don’t think they do, except—iwell, they leave it to the indi-
vidual members as far as I know. I have never been to one of their meetings.
I am satisfied my business associates rarely ever attend, though they do some-
times go to them. I never heard any of them say, that have attended whether
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they have discussed that particular point or not. I know they take up other
matters that should be adjusted in general for the welfare of the State and
town,

Commissioner WeinNsTock. What has Dbeen your experience, Mr. Bryson,
with the workmen’s compensation act?

Mr. Bryson. We are in favor of it. It only went into effect on the 1st of
last January, and since that time I have tried to keep closely in touch with it.
I think with modifications that it might show after it has been in effect—with
some of those things eliminated as they present themselves, I think it is much
better for the employer and employee than the old style and way.

Commissioner WeInNsTock. The charge was made in the beginning it would
prove a very serious, heavy burden upon industry. Have you found it so?

Mr. Bryson. No. On the contrary, I favor it.

Commissioner WEINsTock. If you had a vote upon the matter to either con-
tinue or drop it, how would you vote?

Mr. Bryson. I would vote to adopt it with modifications, which would creep
into anything of that magnitude. I think the rates are a little high based on
what they have been up to date, with a liberal profit, and so forth, less expenses ;
but I understand that will be adjusted just as soon as they can go through a
certain period to get the basis to work on,

Commissioner WEINsTocK. That is all.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. About these homes, owning the homes. You say
that a certain per cent of the men, of the workmen here, own their own homes?

Mr. BrysoN. Yes, sir; we encourage that.

Commissioner (’CoNNELL. No mortgage on them?

Mr. BrysoN. I don’t know about that. I don’t go to my men to the extent
of asking any of their personal business. I encourage them to start bank
accounts, buy the lots, and encourage them to build their houses and furnish
them.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Are there systems of home building here, like
building and loan associations that loan money out to build homes?

Mr. Bryson. What is that?

Commissioner O'CoxNELL. Are there building and loan associations that
loan money out

Mr. Bryson. Yes; we have all those facilities.

Commissioner (’CoxneLL. Facilities?

Mr. Bryson. Facilities.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Are there real-estate concerns here that erect
buildings on land, build homes on them, and sell them so muech down and so
much per week or month thereafter?

Mr. Bryson. Yes, sir.

- Commissioner (’ConNELL.. To what extent do such things go on in the city?

Mr. BrysoN. We try to encourage that all we can as long as people come in
here and make a good demand.

Commissioner O’ConNELL. Is it possible, therefore, that the statement made
by the secretary of the merchants and manufacturers’ association the other
day, in which he said over 50 per cent in the eity of Los Angeles owned their
own homes?

Mr. Brysox, I should say——

Commissioner (YCoxneLL, If that is based largely on the fact that they own
their own homes through this method?

Mr. Bryso~N. Not altogether.

Commissioner O’CoNNELL. Give me an idea of what per cent of the workmen’s
homes are owned outright by the workmen of Los Angeles

Mr. Bryson. Noj; I don’t think I could get it unless I would go to the records
and find out what mortgﬂges were against them.

Chairman WarsH. At this point the eommission will stand adjourned until
10 o’clock to-morrow morning.

Mr. BrysoN. Shall I come back? ~

Chairman WarLsH. No; you may be exeused.

(Whereupon, at 4.30 o’clock p. m. on this Wednesday, the 9th day of Sep-
tember, 1914, an adjournment was taken until the following day, Thursday,
September 10, 1914, at 10 o’clock a. m.)
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Los ANGELES, CAL., Thursday, September 10, 191}—10 «. m.
Present : Chairman Walsh, Commissioners O’Connell, Garretson, Commons,
and Weinstock. Basil M. Manly.
Chairman WatrsH. Is Mr. Craig in the room?

TESTIMONY OF MR. JOHN CRAIG.

Chairman Warsa. What is your name, please?

Mr. Craic. John F. Craig.

Chairman WarLsH. What is your business address, Mr. Craig?

Mr. Crare. Long Beach.

Chairman WarsH. Mr. Craig, please pitch your voice a little higher. It is
very difficult to hear in this room. What is your address?

Mr. Craic. Long Beach.

Chairman WaLsH. Your business, please?

Mr. Crare. Shipbuilder,

Chairman WaLsH. How long have you been engaged in that business?

Mr. Craig. Ever since I left school.

Chairman WALSH. A number of years?

Mr. Craic. Thirty years.

Chairman WarLsz., How long have you been in this lOCilllt) ?

Mr. Craic. About six years; going on seven,

Chairman WaLsi. Where were you engaged in business prlor to that time?

Mr. Crara. Toledo, Ohio.

Chairman WaLsH. Where?

Mr. Craic. Toledo, Ohio.

Chairman WarLsg. How long at that point?

Mr. Crarg. I was there 19 years.

Chairman WaLsH. About 19 years?

Mr. Cralc. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. Now, you were furnished with a list of questions, I be-
lieve, were you not, Mr. Craig?

Mr. Crale. Yes, sir.

Chairman Warsi. I will direct your attention to those, and ask you first,
as I understand it—do you run a nonunion concern?

Mr. Crarg. No, sir; we run open shop.

Chairman WarLsH. You run what is called * open shop ”?

Mr. Crara. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsi. That is, do you or do you not emp]ov men without ques-
tion as to whether or not they belong to a union?

Mr. Craic. We employ them without question.

Chariman WaALsH. Do you discriminate between union and nonunion men
in any way?

Mr. Craia. No; I can’t say we do. .

Chairman WaLsH. Do you have a preference for eithier one or the other?

Mr. Craic.’ Not under ordinary conditions.

Chairman WarLsH. Well, what are the conditions under which you might
have a preference?

Mr. Craic. Why, in case there was a strike on here or anything of that kind,
then we might be influenced.

Chairman WaLsH. So far as you are concerned you are willing that men
should work side by side whether they belong to the unions or don’t do so0?

Mr. Crarg. We insist they do that.

Chairman WarsH. You insist they do that?

Mr. Crate. Yes.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, now, I wish you would please give us the wages of
the different classes of workmen you have in your industry.

Mr. Craig. Here is a list of them.
: Chziitrman WarsH. Will you please read it, so that the commissioners may
hear it.
5 Mr. Craic. The foremen in the plant average from 46} cents to 93 cents an
our.

Chairman WarsH. Forty-six and a half to ninety-three cents an hour?

Mr. Crare. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. How many foremen are there?

Mr. Craig. Oh, I suppose there are six or eight of them.

Chairman WaLsH. How wmany get 93 cents an hour?
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Mr. Crale. I think there are three.

Chairman WALsH. And how many get 46, was it?

Mr. Craze. I think there are only two.

Chairman WaLsH. Very good.

Mr. Cratc. Mold loft work, 273 to 48 cents an hour.

Chairman WarsH. How many get 48 cents?

Mr. Craig. The boss of the shop.

Chairman WatsH. Just one,

Mr. Craie. There are only four or five in there,

Chairman WaLsH. How many get the minimum?

Mr. Crara. It is only the helper gets the minimum.

Chairman WarsH. What do the others get?

Mr. Crarg. They get about 35 to 40 cents.

Chairman WaALsH. Proceed.

Mr. Cralc. Ship fitters get 35 to 45 cents.

Chairman WarsH. How many have you?

Mr. Crara. I think at the present time we have about 15 or 20; yes; I guess 25.

Chairman WaALsH. How many get the higher rate?

Mr, Crara. I should think over 50 per cent of them get the higher rate. ’

Chairman WaLseH. How many the lowest?

Mr. Craig. I think something like 20 per cent—just a few of the younger ones
learning.

Chairman WatrsH. Very good; go to the next. !

Mr. Crale. Blacksmiths, 274 to 45 cents per hour.

Chairman WaALsH. How many of them are there?

Mr. Craig. Well, I think there are six or eight gangs working thew at the
present time.

Chairman WarsH. How many in a gang?

Mr. Craic. Three men,

Chairman WawLsH. Proceed with the next.

Mr. Crate. Blacksmiths, 273 to 45 cents per hour. :

Chairman WaLsH. How many blacksmiths do you employ ?

Mr. Crarc. I think we have at the present time seven or eivht fires.

Chairman WarLsH. How many to a fire?

Mr. Crarc. Well, there is only one blacksmith. |

Chairman WALSH. Do they have helpers at each one?

Mr. Craic. Oh, yes; two or three helpers.

Chairman WarLsH. How many of the blacksmiths get 45 cents?

Mr. Cralc. There are three of them to my knowledge at the present time.

Chairman WarsH. How many get the minimum figure?

Mr. Crare. I think only one.

Chairman WaLsH. ‘And how do they range in between?

Mr, Crarc. These figures I am giving you are the average. We have some
we are paying more than that right now.

Chairman WaLsH. We like to get the average, but we also hke to get the
highest and lowest and generally in between. A

Mr. Crare. I think only 20 per cent of theim.

Chairman WarLsH. Well, the others of course range in between?

Mr. Cra1ig. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarsH. Go to the next.

Mr. Crarg. Carpenters, 374 to 45 cents.

Chairman WarLsH. How many carpenters have you?

Mr. Crare. We haven’t very many, I don’t suppose over S or 10.

Chairman WaLsaH. How many of those get the highest, 45 cents?

Mr. Crarc. I think there are only three that are "ettmg the highest.

Chairman WarsH. Only three?

Mr. Crala. Yes, sir.

Chairman WaLsuH. Then go to the next.

Mr. Crarg. Machinists, 35 to 40 cents per hour.

Chairman WarLsH. How many machinists have you?

Mr. Cra1G. Only at the present time I think about 8 or 10.

Chairman WaLrsH. Go to the next.

Mr. Cralrc. Pipe fitters, 35 to 40 cents.

Chairman WarsH. How many have you?

Mr. Crarg. Very few of themn there now, probablv a half a dozen.

Chairman WaLsH. Approximately?
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Mr. Craze. I think about a half a dozen at the present timme. I might explain
to you that at the present time our works are pretty low. We are not running
near the men we ordinarily do.

Chairman WaLsH. I will ask you about that later.

Mr. Crarc. Reamers and drillers, 30 to 323 cents an hour.

Chairman WaLsiz. How many of those do you employ ?

Mr. Crarg. I suppose about a dozen there now.

Chairman WaLsH. Go to the next.

Mr. Crarc. The lowest we pay is 20 to 273 cents an hour for laborers.

Chairman Warsd., What is that?

Mr. Cralg. Twenty to twenty-seven and one-half cents an hour for laborers.

Chairman WarsH., How many have you?

Mr. Cratg. Oh, I suppose we have 50 laborers.

Chairman WarsH. Fifty, and how many of them get 27% cents?

Mr. Craxg. I think over 50 per cent of them.

Chairman WarLsa. How much is yqur present force diminished, b‘mn" it
upon the normal condition?

Mr. Cra1g. Oh, it is only about half.

Chairman WarLsH. About half?

Mr. Crare. Yes, sir.

Chairman WALSH I wish you would brlefly state the reasons you hme for
maintaining open-shop conditions rather than a closed shop exclusively?

Mr. Crare. Well, it is just simply an economic condition—ecanomic problem,
econonlic reason.

Chairman WarLsa. Well, I would like for you to give them yourself if you
will, without suggestion from me.

Mr. Crarg. Well, we have tried the closed shop back in the old yard a num-
ber of years, and from our experience there we found that we could not. get
the economy out of the yard. .

Chairman Wars#. Could not get what?

Mr. Cralg. Could not get the economy out of the yard we could with the
open shop.

Chairman WaLsa., Well, do I take it from that, then, that you can do your
work more economically?

Mr. Craic. We can; yes.

Chairman WALSH. \\ ell, now, from what, from the standpoint of wn"es or
the standpoint of efﬁclency or one or both? i

Mr. Cratc. From the standpoint of efliciency in general.

Chairman WarLsH. Well, now, what have you found with respect to the
conditions as between the open and the closed shop, so far as efficiency of
production is concerned?

Mr. Crarc. Well, in the closed shop there is not that loyalty of the men,
or interest taken in the work by the men that there is in the open shop.

Chairman Warsa. Does a carpenter do as much work approximately in
a closed shop as he does in an open shop?

Mr. Cralza. I don’t think he does in the conditions we run under.

Chairman WaLsH. Well, could you give us the amount of that difference
comparatively ?

Mr. Craic. No; I would not say that I could.

Chairman \VALSH. 1ou could not undertake to do that?

Mr. Crarg. No.

Chalrman WarsH. Is there any difference, any material difference in the
character of the work which you did under union conditions and under the
conditions that you have now?

Mr. Craic. No.

Chairman Warsm. It is about the same, is it?

Mr. Crarc. Yes, sir.

Chairman WarLsH. Now, as to wages, do you find that the men work cheaper
in an open shop than they do in a closed shop?

Mr. Craie. No, sir.

Chairman WaLsH. You don’t find any difference?

Mr. Crale. No, sir; but we pay more wages ordinarily than the closed shops.

Chairman WarsH. You are paying higher wages now as a whole than are
paid in the union shops?

Mr. Craic. In lots of union shops, yes. 0

Chairman WarsgH. In lots of union shops where. In Los Angeles?

Mr. CrAaig. No. In Toledo. I don’t know anything about those here.
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Chairman Warsi. Well, just basing this rate of pay upon the rate of pay
for the same class of labor, we will say, on the Pacific coast, what do you
find, is your cost reduced on the wage part of it or not?

Mr. Cralc. I am not conversant with the union scale and union wages here.

Chairman WaLsH. Now, are there any other reasons that you would like
to give us, Mr. Craig, that might illuminate this subject that we are study-
ing here, particularly the maintenance of open shop conditions about which I
have been asking you?

Mr. Craig. Well, in our work there is a great deal of work that can he done
piecework. It is much more economical to do piecework than it is daywork;
the men take more interest in their work, they make more wages, and they
take more interest.

Chairman WarLsH. What charaecter of work?

Mr. Cralc. Riveting, shipping, and ecalking. -

Chairman WarsH. Will you give me the amount per hour—the amount that
you gave was based upon the earnings of the men on piecework?

Mr. Crarg. No; that is based upon what the men earn when they work on
daywork.

Chairman WaLsa. When they are working daywork?

Mr. Craic. Yes.

Chairman WarsH. What is the difference when they are working piecework?

Mr. Craic. Oh, they will make, most of those men working piecework, will
make anywhere,from 25 to 50 per cent more.

Chairman WarsH. Do I understand that you work partially daywork and
partially piecework?

Mr. Craig. Sure.

Chairman WarLsH. What determines that, please?

Mr, Craic. There is a certain preportion of that work yon can not work on
piecework; where it is straight work, right straight ahead and a man has a
fair chance then he takes it and does it on piecework.

Chairman WarLsH. Where the same character of labor works piecework, your
testimony is that it earns 25 to 50 per cent more?

Mr. Crare. They do regularly; yes.

Chairman WarsH. In the same number of hours?

Mr. Crare. Yes, sir.

Chairman Warse. I wish you would state, please, what the hours of labor
are in your concern.

Mr. Cratc. At the present time we work eight hours.

Chairman WarLsH. Sir?

Mr. Craie. At the present time we work eight hours.

Chairman WaLsH. Is that the number of hours that they work normally ?

Mr. Craig. No. Nine hours is normal.

Chairman WaLsH. Nine hours is normal? When you say you work eight
hours you do that as an economic measure?

Mr. Crarc. When we work eight hours, we are working that because we have
a certain class of work that requires eight hours.

Chairman WarsH. That work requires eight hours?

Mr. Cralc. Yes.

Chairman WarsH, What wind of work is/that?

Mr. Cralc. Government work.

Chairman WaLsH. You work eight hours on Government work alone?

Mr. Craic. Yes.

Chairman WaLsH. And when your work is not Governmment work you work
nine hours?

Mr. Crarg. Work nine hours. i

Chairman Wavrse. What do you find with respect to your ability to compete
with shipbuilding companies that employ union labor on the coast? Do you do it
successfully or not?

Mr. Cratc. We really are not in competition with most of the plants in the
north, because the work we have been doing is work they could not do.

Chairman WarsH, Do I understand you have no conditions upon which you
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